
   
 

AGENDA – Engineering and Construction Committee 
 Thursday, May 15, 2025      5:45 PM 
 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 1 | 
 
 

Committee Members 
J. Fennell, Chair 
N. Cuzzone 
T. Noonan  
F. Saverino 
J. Zay 

 
I. Roll Call 

 
II. Approval of the March 20, 2025, Engineering & Construction Committee Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: To approve the Minutes of the March 20, 2025, Engineering & 
Construction Committee Meeting of the DuPage Water Commission. 

III. Report of Status of Operations and Construction 

IV. Resolution R-41-25: Approval of Master Services Agreement and Task Order #1 with 
Consor/Raftelis for Professional Services as Source Water Project Technical Advisor (Not-
To-Exceed $500,000) 

V. Resolution R-42-25: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Task Orders Under a 
Master Contract with Arcadis USA, Inc. to Perform a Gap Analysis of AWIA Required 
Documentation (Estimated Expense of $20,000) 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To recommend approval of Items 2 and 3 of the Engineering and 
Construction Committee Report section of the Commission meeting agenda  

VI. Other Business 
 

VII. Adjournment 
 

 

Agendas\Engineering\2025\Eng2505.docx 

 
                                                1 of 131



Minutes of a Meeting 
of the  

ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 
DuPage Water Commission 

600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 

March 20, 2025 
 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 3 | 

 

Commissioner Saverino called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 

Committee members in attendance: D. Bouckaert, D. Novotny, F. Saverino and J. Zay 

Committee members absent: J. Fennell 

Also in attendance: C. Bostick, D. Cuvalo, J. Loster, D. Panaszek and M. Weed 

Commissioner Bouckaert moved to approve the Minutes of the January 16, 2025, Engineering & 
Construction Committee Meeting of the DuPage Water Commission. Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Novotny and unanimously approved by a Voice Vote. 

Manager of Water Operations Bostick provided a report of the ongoing Operations and Maintenance 
activities as listed in the Report of Status of Operations and Board Action Items and provided a report 
on the Status of Capital Construction, Capital Engineering and other Improvement Projects. 

Manager of Water Operations Bostick advised the Committee of recent and ongoing maintenance 
items including the return of the rebuilt High Lift Pump No. 3 motor, the replacement of the Medium 
Voltage Switchgear Batteries in the Emergency Generation Facility, and the imminent replacement of 
the High Lift Pump No. 9 pump control cone valve. 

Manager of Water Operations Bostick also updated the Committee regarding the City of Chicago’s 
transition from a blended phosphate treatment to an orthophosphate treatment. He indicated that 
Staff continues to share information with customer communities and monitor specified water quality 
parameters to ensure there are no issues with the water that the Commission is pumping out. He also 
noted that the transition is expected to continue through late spring and that Staff has not received 
any negative feedback from the Contract Customers.  

Regarding the ongoing discussions with the City of Chicago regarding Lexington Manager of Water 
Operations Bostick advised the Committee that there are no substantive updates to share. He stated 
that staff continues to await progress updates from the City regarding the SCADA View Node, which 
remains in a state of failure, as well as the vibration analysis equipment which continues to require 
replacement. 

Manager of Water Operations Bostick noted that Pipeline and Remote Facilities Staff continue to 
inspect and maintain remote facilities and continue working with DeLasCasas to perform corrosion 
testing and maintenance at designated feeder main and meter station locations.  

Regarding R-20-25, Manager of Water Operations Bostick advised the Committee that this action 
appears on the agenda to approve Work Authorization Order No. 31 to QR contractor Benchmark 
Construction to reconfigure the outfall in the DuPage Pump Station’s Stormwater Detention Tank.  

 
                                                2 of 131



March 20, 2025 

| 2 of 3 | 

 

Manager of Water Operations Bostick also noted that resolution R-21-25, would provide authorization 
to the General Manager to purchase cathodic protection rectifiers from Mesa Products to replace units 
that have exceeded their useful life and to keep stock spares. 

Manager of Water Operations Bostick reported on the progress of the SCADA Replacement Project, 
stating that the factory acceptance testing for remote telemetry units at meter station, remotely 
operated valves and tank site locations is complete and installation of the new equipment may begin 
by the end of March.  

Regarding R-22-25, Manager of Water Operations Bostick advised the Committee that this action 
appears on the agenda to approve the purchase and installation of six additional security door access 
latches, card readers and accessories from Schneider Electric to address concerns of the Elmhurst Fire 
Department at high-hazard facility locations. 

Engineering Manager Loster stated that the ongoing design of a joint metering and pressure adjusting 
station for the Village of Lombard’s fifth connection point will likely be completed in the next 4-6 
weeks, with construction to follow at Lombard’s discretion.  

Engineering Manager Loster also noted that Commission Staff recently participated in a kick-off 
meeting to initiate work with Burns & McDonnell to begin working on a new hydraulic model for the 
Commission, as an alternative to continually updating the existing model.  

Regarding the WaterLink Project, Engineering Manager Loster stated that the phase II effort continues 
and is approximately 74% complete at this time. He advised the Committee that permit submittals 
continue to be made, with the initial submittals starting to yield review comments and/or approval.  

Engineering Manager Loster also shared that the corrosion control study, managed by the three 
WaterLink communities, continues to progress and recently transitioned to the phase wherein water 
from Chicago is being circulated through the harvested piping to simulate the conditions when the 
WaterLink Project is completed. He noted that the overall study is anticipated to continue through 
November of this year but may be completed early.  

With regard to property acquisition on the WaterLink Project, Engineering Manager Loster stated that 
nearly 40 property owners have been contacted to date. He stated that Staff plans to bring an initial 
round of action items to the Board starting in April, which will be the first of two phases. The first of 
which will seek general authority to negotiate and the second to authorize approval to make the 
designated offer. 

Engineering Manager Loster noted that multiple workshops with the Program Management team of 
Burns & McDonnell have taken place over the past month, including topics such as project 
communications, stakeholder engagement and website construction. Additional construction 
engineering assignments will likely be brought forward for the remaining bid packages during the 
summer months.  

Engineering Manager Loster also advised the Committee that earlier in the week, the project team 
held a contractor outreach event in order to engage the contractor community and inform them of 

 
                                                3 of 131



March 20, 2025 

| 3 of 3 | 

 

the project details and schedule. He noted that approximately 70 people attended the event, with 
nearly 50 of them being from the contractor community.  

Regarding resolution R-24-25, Manager of Water Operations Bostick advised the Committee that this 
action approves the land surveying work performed by Haeger Engineering to prepare for the 
proposed sale of excess property on 75th Street in Lisle Township. 

Commissioner Saverino inquired with the Committee if there were any further questions regarding 
the action items. Hearing none, Commissioner Bouckaert moved to recommend approval of items 2 
through 5 of the Engineering and Construction Committee portion of the Commission Agenda (Items 
IV through VII on the Engineering and Construction Committee Agenda).  Seconded by Commissioner 
Novotny and unanimously approved by a Voice Vote. 

Commissioner Saverino asked the Committee if any other business or other items to be discussed. 
Hearing none, and with no other items coming before the Committee, Commissioner Bouckaert 
moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:20 P.M. Seconded by Commissioner Novotny and unanimously 
approved by a Voice Vote. 
 

BOARD/MINUTES/ENGINEERING/2025/ENG250320.doc  

 

 
                                                4 of 131



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 4 | 

 

To: Paul May – General Manager  

From: Chris Bostick – Manager of Water Operations  
 Jeff Loster – Manager of Engineering 

Mike Weed – Operations & Instrumentation Supervisor 
Dariusz Panaszek – Pipeline & Remote Facilities Supervisor  
Denis Cuvalo – Systems Engineer and Information Technology Supervisor  

Date: 5/8/2025 

Subject: Status of Operations, Engineering and Construction 

 

Operations Overview  

The Commission’s sales for April 2025 were a total of 2.04 billion gallons.  This represents an 
average daily demand of 67.9 million gallons per day (MGD), which is higher than the April 
2024 average day demand of 65.0 MGD.  The maximum day demand was 75.9 MGD, recorded 
on April 28, 2025, which is higher than the April 2024 maximum day demand of 71.5 MGD.  
The minimum day flow was 58.8 MGD. 

The recorded total precipitation for April 2025 was 2.66 inches compared to 3.73 inches for 
April 2024.  The level of Lake Michigan for April 2025 is 578.28 (Feet International Great Lakes 
Datum (IGLD) 1985) compared to 578.9 (Feet IGLD 1985) for April 2024.  
 
DuPage Operations & Instrumentation Maintenance and Construction Overview  

High Lift Pump Motor (HLP) No. 3 was repaired at the motor repair shop and reinstalled, 
electrical terminations completed, cooling water lines were reinstalled, and the drive shaft 
realigned. Start-up and testing is underway.   

HLP No. 9 Pump Control Cone Valve was removed and shipped out for rebuilding. Once the 
rebuilt cone valve is returned, it will be inserted into the discharge of a HLP to be determined, 
and the removed valve will be rebuilt.  This process will continue until each of the High Lift 
Pumps has a new or refurbished valve in place.  

The annual meter testing program started in April and is at 4% complete.  

  

 
                                                5 of 131



Status of Operations and Construction 
May 8, 2025 

 

| 2 of 4 | 

 

R-42-25 Appears on the agenda to approve a Task Order with Arcadis USA, Inc. to perform a 
Gap Analysis of the Commission’s 2020 submittal of the AWIA required Vulnerability 
Assessment (VA), developed a Risk and Resiliency Assessment (RRA), updated the Emergency 
Response Plan (ERP), and a Crisis Communication Plan (CCP) in time for the 2025 resubmittal 
and certification deadline. 

City of Chicago Water Treatment Modifications 
No Change: The City of Chicago has reported as of March 31st, the transition has been 
completed from blended phosphate to phosphoric acid, to optimize the control of lead and 
copper release through household plumbing.  DWC staff will continue monitoring certain 
water quality parameters to follow the progress through late spring 2025. 

Lexington Operations and Maintenance Overview 

Investigation and pre-proposal site inspections were scheduled for May 13th in advance of the 
potential installation of vibration analysis instrumentation; proposals will be brought forth 
for Board consideration at a future Commission meeting. 

No Change: Chicago DWM reports that they will continue to troubleshoot their SCADA system 
deficiencies to identify the root cause of the ongoing issues. 

Alternate Water Source 

R-41-25 appears on the agenda seeking approval of a contract with Consor and Raftelis as an 
Technical Advisory Team with the intention that the Technical Advisory team, consisting of 
uniquely qualified individuals with the ability to marshal additional expertise and resources 
when needed from within their firm(s) or from external vendors as necessary based upon the 
task(s) as necessary to assist the Commission with advancing the Source Water Concept 
through the next steps in a manner that provides certainty to variables which would 
otherwise be accepted as project risk.  This cost for this endeavor will be reimbursed 30% 
from NSMJAWA in accordance with the IGA for cost sharing, previously approved as R-37-25. 

Pipeline & Remote Facilities Maintenance Overview 

Pipeline and Remote Facilities staff continue to inspect Remote Facilities and perform the 
annual valve exercising program.  

Pipeline staff assisted Corrpro with the installation of cathodic protection system 
improvements at Standpipe No. 01. 

Pipeline staff continues working with Cathodic Protection Management and De Las Casas 
inspecting, evaluating and assessing functionality of the cathodic protection systems with 
emphasis on the Commission’s Reverse Current Switch and rectifiers.  

SCADA & Information Technology Overview 

The SCADA Replacement Project (Contract PSD-9/21) is ongoing.  The DWC campus control 
panel replacement has been completed with final site acceptance testing has been completed 
with a majority of the open items completed.  Commission and Concentric staff are continuing 
to work on communication stress testing in the field and will begin replacing RTU panels at 

 
                                                6 of 131



Status of Operations and Construction 
May 8, 2025 

 

| 3 of 4 | 

 

the remote sites once completed, anticipating the first remote site starting end of May.  In 
addition, electrical improvements to remote sites are underway in anticipation of the RTU 
replacements work.  The inspection and maintenance of remote site antenna systems has 
continued and is about 90% complete.  Replacement of the fiber network for the DWC 
campus is anticipated to begin late Spring/early Summer, with the addition of a new duct 
bank to complete a ring topology for the new fiber network. 

Engineering & Capital Improvement Program Overview 

Design of a Joint Facility (Metering Station and Pressure Adjusting Station) at Lombard’s fifth 
connection point nears completion, with current efforts focused on the coordination of 
construction site activity sequencing with the Village of Lombard Staff.  

Additional efforts regarding Cathodic Protection have also begun, with the initial quarterly 
inspection of the Commission’s Reverse Current Switch having recently taken place.  

WaterLink Communities (Montgomery/Oswego/Yorkville) 

The Phase II engineering effort remains ongoing and is over 80% complete. Permit submittals 
associated with all bid packages continue to be coordinated, with all review comments 
assessed and incorporated as necessary into the design drawings by the design team. 
Additional communications with ComEd have also recently taken place, the result of which 
hopes to initiate a slightly expedited review process for those portions of the project located 
within ComEd properties.  

The corrosion control treatment study, performed by the Cornwell Engineering Group, 
continues to move forward with positive results. In its current stage, water from the Jardine 
Water Purification Plant is being circulated through the harvested pipes in an effort to 
simulate the final project conditions so that the corresponding impacts can be studied. This 
study is required by the IEPA and is expected to be completed by November 2025, though 
preliminary results indicate that it could be completed much earlier. 

Efforts related to easement acquisition also continue, with an additional group of easements 
prepared for consideration. Ordinance O-6-25 will be discussed in Executive Session regarding 
the acquisition of real estate (easements and property purchase) and will be acted upon as 
part of the Regular Commission Meeting agenda. This action will be the first of two Board 
approvals required for each acquisition. Each will require Board authorization to initiate the 
negotiation process with the property owner and all will ultimately need additional 
authorization at a future Board meeting to approve the compensation amount offered, which 
is based on the appraised value of the land.  

Recent efforts also include a workshop that was held last week with the design and Program 
Management teams to review and discuss the final project specifications and contract 
documents as well as the coordination of a meeting to be held later this month with IDOT to 
discuss the detours associated with the WaterLink Project and the associated impacts they 
may have on the surrounding IDOT routes.  

  

 
                                                7 of 131



Status of Operations and Construction 
May 8, 2025 

 

| 4 of 4 | 

 

 Board Action Items 

Resolution R-41-25: Approval of Master Services Agreement and Task Order #1 with 
Consor/Raftelis for Professional Services as Source Water Project 
Technical Advisor (Not-To-Exceed $500,000) 

Resolution R-42-25: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Task Orders Under a 
Master Contract with Arcadis USA, Inc. to Perform a Gap Analysis of 
AWIA Required Documentation (Estimated Expense of $20,000)  

Attachments 

1. DuPage Laboratory Bench Sheets for April 2025 
2. Water Sales Analysis 01-May-2020 to 30-April-2025 
3. DuPage Water Commission Chart Sales vs. Historical Average 
4. DuPage Water Commission Chart Sales vs. Allocation 
5. WaterLink Status Report 

 

 
                                                8 of 131



DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION
WATER SALES ANALYSIS 01-May-92 TO 30-Apr-25

PER DAY AVERAGE 77,770,136

DOCUMENTED TOTAL DWC
SALES TO PURCHASES FROM GALLONS BILLINGS BILLINGS DOCUMENTED COMMISSION ACCOUNTED OPER. &

CUSTOMERS CHICAGO BILLED TO FROM COMMISSION WATER USE FOR MAINT. CHGO
MONTH (GALLONS) (GALLONS) % CUSTOMERS CHICAGO WATER USE (2) % % RATE (3) RATE

------------------ -------------------------- --------------------------- -------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ------------------- --------------- --------------
May-21 2,331,364,000 2,401,447,849 97.08% $11,586,879.08 $9,778,695.64 1,625,835 0.07% 97.15% $4.97 $4.072
Jun-21 2,646,312,000 2,727,518,236 97.02% $13,152,170.64 $11,226,465.06 872,815 0.03% 97.05% $4.97 $4.116
Jul-21 2,661,520,000 2,750,318,994 96.77% $13,227,754.40 $11,320,312.98 772,815 0.03% 96.80% $4.97 $4.116
Aug-21 2,736,795,000 2,818,422,046 97.10% $13,601,871.15 $11,600,625.14 458,555 0.02% 97.12% $4.97 $4.116
Sep-21 2,616,212,000 2,698,022,374 96.97% $13,002,573.64 $11,105,060.09 1,237,080 0.05% 97.01% $4.97 $4.116
Oct-21 2,128,141,000 2,179,013,387 97.67% $10,576,860.77 $8,968,819.10 396,147 0.02% 97.68% $4.97 $4.116
Nov-21 1,896,311,000 1,961,815,221 96.66% $9,424,665.67 $8,074,831.45 462,613 0.02% 96.68% $4.97 $4.116
Dec-21 1,950,793,000 2,010,917,641 97.01% $9,695,441.21 $8,276,937.01 382,031 0.02% 97.03% $4.97 $4.116
Jan-22 2,046,043,000 2,110,214,643 96.96% $10,168,833.71 $8,685,674.26 621,078 0.03% 96.99% $4.97 $4.116
Feb-22 1,879,376,000 1,935,513,559 97.10% $9,340,498.72 $7,966,573.81 247,750 0.01% 97.11% $4.97 $4.116
Mar-22 1,990,472,000 2,061,912,643 96.54% $9,892,645.84 $8,486,832.44 459,838 0.02% 96.56% $4.97 $4.116
Apr-22 1,935,992,000 1,981,414,298 97.71% $9,621,880.24 $8,155,501.25 285,652 0.01% 97.72% $4.97 $4.116

May-22 2,276,513,000 2,344,221,635 97.11% $11,792,337.34 $9,648,816.25 5,698,667 0.24% 97.35% $5.18 $4.116
Jun-22 2,682,480,000 2,772,533,130 96.75% $13,895,246.40 $11,982,888.19 690,925 0.02% 96.78% $5.18 $4.322
Jul-22 2,804,661,000 2,892,532,635 96.96% $14,528,143.98 $12,501,526.05 883,858 0.03% 96.99% $5.18 $4.322
Aug-22 2,688,224,000 2,772,533,130 96.96% $13,925,000.32 $11,982,888.19 906,806 0.03% 96.99% $5.18 $4.322
Sep-22 2,415,535,000 2,474,643,822 97.61% $12,512,471.30 $10,695,410.60 1,021,063 0.04% 97.65% $5.18 $4.322
Oct-22 2,153,410,000 2,220,050,683 97.00% $11,154,663.80 $9,595,059.05 2,891,786 0.13% 97.13% $5.18 $4.322
Nov-22 1,919,552,000 1,979,550,491 96.97% $9,943,279.36 $8,555,617.22 1,008,092 0.05% 97.02% $5.18 $4.322
Dec-22 2,071,113,000 2,123,449,660 97.54% $10,728,365.34 $9,177,549.43 552,389 0.03% 97.56% $5.18 $4.322
Jan-23 2,014,750,000 2,060,255,805 97.79% $10,436,405.00 $8,904,425.59 337,423 0.02% 97.81% $5.18 $4.322
Feb-23 1,835,597,000 1,883,158,917 97.47% $9,508,392.46 $8,139,012.84 529,206 0.03% 97.50% $5.18 $4.322
Mar-23 1,971,974,000 2,026,257,691 97.32% $10,214,825.32 $8,757,453.41 306,690 0.02% 97.34% $5.18 $4.322
Apr-23 1,962,197,000 2,010,451,747 97.60% $10,164,180.46 $8,689,172.45 349,596 0.02% 97.62% $5.18 $4.322

May-23 2,474,377,000 2,540,440,833 97.40% $13,336,892.03 $10,979,785.28 684,441 0.03% 97.43% $5.39 $4.322
Jun-23 2,971,436,000 3,043,540,086 97.63% $16,016,040.04 $13,814,628.45 678,930 0.02% 97.65% $5.39 $4.539
Jul-23 2,567,425,000 2,639,887,376 97.26% $13,838,420.75 $11,982,448.80 1,047,600 0.04% 97.29% $5.39 $4.539
Aug-23 2,708,945,000 2,773,069,509 97.69% $14,601,213.55 $12,586,962.50 832,992 0.03% 97.72% $5.39 $4.539
Sep-23 2,406,858,000 2,471,708,096 97.38% $12,972,964.62 $11,219,083.05 753,904 0.03% 97.41% $5.39 $4.539
Oct-23 2,071,291,000 2,116,545,770 97.86% $11,164,258.49 $9,607,001.25 1,034,131 0.05% 97.91% $5.39 $4.539
Nov-23 1,902,725,000 1,957,768,374 97.19% $10,255,687.75 $8,886,310.65 809,342 0.04% 97.23% $5.39 $4.539
Dec-23 1,972,754,000 2,031,158,416 97.12% $10,633,144.06 $9,219,428.05 2,329,064 0.11% 97.24% $5.39 $4.539
Jan-24 2,058,390,000 2,131,445,175 96.57% $11,094,722.10 $9,674,663.60 730,427 0.03% 96.61% $5.39 $4.539
Feb-24 1,868,175,000 1,916,869,806 97.46% $10,069,463.25 $8,700,672.05 268,834 0.01% 97.47% $5.39 $4.539
Mar-24 1,927,795,000 1,971,770,225 97.77% $10,390,815.05 $8,949,831.10 340,529 0.02% 97.79% $5.39 $4.539
Apr-24 1,951,120,000 1,992,959,991 97.90% $10,516,536.80 $9,046,045.40 426,636 0.02% 97.92% $5.39 $4.539

May-24 2,285,252,000 2,331,031,384 98.04% $12,751,706.16 $10,580,551.45 964,148 0.04% 98.08% $5.58 $4.539
Jun-24 2,558,136,000 2,613,555,125 97.88% $14,274,398.88 $12,265,414.20 669,121 0.03% 97.91% $5.58 $4.693
Jul-24 2,577,734,000 2,637,750,416 97.72% $14,383,755.72 $12,378,962.70 5,976,667 0.23% 97.95% $5.58 $4.693
Aug-24 2,723,982,000 2,791,119,391 97.59% $15,199,819.56 $13,098,723.30 5,570,100 0.20% 97.79% $5.58 $4.693
Sep-24 2,607,811,000 2,668,243,213 97.74% $14,551,585.38 $12,522,065.40 887,220 0.03% 97.77% $5.58 $4.693
Oct-24 2,256,800,000 2,311,304,709 97.64% $12,592,944.00 $10,846,953.00 715,430 0.03% 97.67% $5.58 $4.693
Nov-24 1,872,414,000 1,918,174,238 97.61% $10,448,070.12 $9,001,956.60 517,416 0.03% 97.64% $5.58 $4.693
Dec-24 2,003,025,000 2,053,944,598 97.52% $11,176,879.50 $9,639,162.00 465,013 0.02% 97.54% $5.58 $4.693
Jan-25 2,084,797,000 2,142,229,363 97.32% $11,633,167.26 $10,053,482.40 295,500 0.01% 97.33% $5.58 $4.693
Feb-25 1,882,269,000 1,935,765,374 97.24% $10,503,061.00 $9,084,546.90 225,910 0.01% 97.25% $5.58 $4.693
Mar-25 1,991,703,000 2,037,452,909 97.75% $11,113,702.74 $9,561,766.50 307,123 0.02% 97.77% $5.58 $4.693
Apr-25 2,007,784,000 2,062,448,476 97.35% $11,203,434.72 $9,679,070.70 4,167,787 0.20% 97.55% $5.58 $4.693

------------------ -------------------------- --------------------------- -------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ------------------- --------------- --------------
TOTALS (1) 937,363,445,798 964,252,058,843 97.21% $2,437,113,523.80 $2,148,811,252.55 892,270,405 0.09% 97.30% $2.60 $2.229

=============== =============== ======== ================ ================ ============= ============ =========== ========= ========

(1) - SINCE MAY 1, 1992
(2) - REPRESENTS DU PAGE PUMP STATION, METER TESTING AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECT USAGE
(3) - DOES NOT INCLUDE FIXED COST PAYMENTS

YTD
Apr-24 26,881,291,000 27,587,163,657 97.44% 144,890,158 124,666,860 $5.39 $4.519

Apr-25 26,851,707,000 27,503,019,196 97.63% 149,832,525 128,712,655 $5.58 $4.680

(29,584,000) (84,144,461) $4,942,367 $4,045,795
-0.1% -0.3% 3.4% 3.2%

Month
Apr-24 1,951,120,000 1,992,959,991 97.90% 10,516,537 9,046,045 $5.39 $4.539

Apr-25 2,007,784,000 2,062,448,476 97.35% 11,203,435 9,679,071 $5.58 $4.693

56,664,000 69,488,485 $686,898 $633,025
2.9% 3.5% 6.5% 7.0%

Apr>Mar 16,081,000 24,995,567 89,732 117,304

H:\Accounting\2024-2025\Com m ission Reports\April 2025\h2osales 0425.xlsx

 
                                                9 of 131



 
                                                10 of 131



1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500

4.000

FEB MAR APR

BI
LL

IO
N

 G
AL

LO
N

S
DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION SALES

FY 2024-25, 2023-24 & 2022-23 VS. HISTORICAL AVERAGE

Historical Average

FY 2022-23

FY 2023-24

FY 2024-25

 
                                                11 of 131



1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500

4.000

4.500

FEB MAR APR

BI
LL

IO
N

 G
AL

LO
N

S
DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION SALES

FY 2024-25 VS. ALLOCATION

Actual Allocation

 
                                                12 of 131



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Lincoln Centre, Suite 920 •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 1 of 6 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

 
LAN PROJECT #: 128-10031-001 
 
PROJECT: DuPage Water Commission WaterLink Extension Phase II 
 
REPORT DATE: May 6, 2025 
 
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2025 
 

I. Progress through May 6, 2025 

A. Field data collection and surveying. 

1. Supplemental topography completed along Hill Rd to accommodate revised Montgomery #1 Delivery site 

configuration. Additional topographic survey underway at proposed chlorination building / future pump 

station site is complete. 

2. Additional topographic survey was completed along IL Route 34 and Kendall Point Drive to collect 

Oswego utility field-locates for requested realignment. 

3. Final cadastral surveying work complete. 

a) All 13 additional sections authorized in Phase 1 complete. Site surveying for 3 of the 7 delivery sites 

has been completed, with remainder coming from WaterLink municipal engineers. 

b) Site topo at Oswego East HS began Aug 6 and is complete.  High school engineer provided existing 

utility map at site. 

c) Existing structure rim/invert data collection 100% complete. Total of approximately 1,094 structures 

located with rim/inverts surveyed.   

4. Processing of collected Aerial LIDAR data is complete. 

a) 100% of original scope complete. Overall width of data processing increased to facilitate design 

drawing set-up and minimize future re-work. Increased width processing complete. 

b) SAM delivered additional processed data along Wolf’s Crossing Rd and Douglas Rd for modified 

FW1 Segment 1 & 2 route to REL on August 26th. 

c) Due to ComEd alignment changes west of Ogden Falls Blvd., additional topo processing was 

completed by SAM LLC.  Processed data was received last week. 

5. Subsurface Utility Locates 

a) SUE field activities completed in mid-December.   

 
                                                13 of 131



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Lincoln Centre, Suite 920 •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 2 of 6 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

6. Utility Potholing Locates 

a) Additional potholes completed on Naperville electrical duct bank along 75th Street for TW-6 S1. 

b) Over 440 potholes completed along ComEd corridors 100% complete.   

7. Geotechnical 

a) Total of 185 borings (90%) completed to date in Phase 2 through January 31.  S2 geotechnical report 

delivered last week; borings logs and report for S3 expected in next two weeks.  

8. Cathodic Protection 

a) Soil resistivity testing along project routes complete for cathodic protection design.  

b) Draft final report provided for TW-6 S1, remaining report(s) in progress. 

B. Data Collection (as-builts, GIS, design drawings). 

1. WaterLink Delivery Point proposed site layouts. 

2. Design team has set initial priority parcels to move to the plat preparation stage. 

C. Ongoing Coordination with ComEd. 

1. Drawings submitted to ComEd 1/23/25 to initiate legal and real estate appraisal process. 

2. Subsequent ComEd design reviews and coordination will be performed during Phase II design as part of 

legal and appraisal process. 

D. Land Acquisition 

1.  222 of 232 Titles Received 

2. 160 total parcels for easement preparation 

3. Easement legal descriptions & exhibits 

a)    125 total prepared to date (78%) 

b) 12 Appraisal Packages complete  

 
                                                14 of 131



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Lincoln Centre, Suite 920 •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 3 of 6 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

E. Contract TW-6 Section 1 (Book Rd) in progress. 

1. Water transmission main plan and profile design ongoing. 

2. Proposed connection design at Book Road & 75th Street.  Comments received 2/10/25 from DuPage DOT 

have been addressed. 

a) Will schedule additional meeting, if needed. 

3. Remote operated valves and associated electrical design complete. 

4. Roadway plans and traffic control plans have been prepared. 

5. IEPA construction permit application submitted 1/3/25. 

a) Permit received dated 2/28/2025. 

b) Subsequent sampling plan approved to amend the requirement for sampling every 1,200 feet.  

6. Permit applications with USACE, IDNR, DuPage County Stormwater, City of Naperville, Naperville 

Township, and Wheatland Township submitted.  

a) Comments received from City of Naperville. Comment responses and revised drawings were 

prepared, including ROV electrical. Revisions have been resubmitted to the City. 

b) Comments from DuPage DOT received and revisions are being finalized. 

c) Comments received from USACE and are being addressed. 

1) Applications have been submitted to two Soil & Water Conservation Districts at the request of 

USACE. 

7. Comments received from DuPage Stormwater have been addressed and resubmitted.   

8. 100% Design Drawings for TW-6 Section 1 submitted to DWC on 5/2/25. 

F. Contract TW-6 Section 2 & 3 in progress. 

1. Water transmission main plan and profile design ongoing.  

2. DWC review comments received and revisions are in progress. 

3. Alignment revision into Aurora 95th Street ROW was reviewed with the City and will not be pursued. 90% 

design will remain in ComEd ROW. 

4. Realignment on 248th Avenue to accommodate two-way traffic during construction is complete.  

5. In-field route review for valve locations completed to confirm actual conditions. 

6. Tunnel locations reviewed based on DWC comments – one tunnel removed and one tunnel shortened on 

TW-6 Section 2.  

 
                                                15 of 131



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Lincoln Centre, Suite 920 •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 4 of 6 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

7. Drawings submitted to ComEd 1/23/25 to initiate legal and real estate appraisal process. 

a) Wetlands reports subsequently submitted to ComEd environmental reviewer.  

b) Update provided to DWC on 4/1/25 indicates 72–90 business day review period by various ComEd 

Departments. ComEd to forward comments as they are received. 

1) Completion of reviews anticipated by end of May. 

2) Reviews completed by Capacity Planning, Vegetation, and Economic Development w/ no 

comments. 

8. TW-6 Section 3 alignment revisions in progress at Route 34 and Kendall Point Drive. 

a) Oswego notified design team and DWC of high profile proposed development along pipeline and 

requested alignment change. 

b) Oswego field-located existing village utilities in area of alignment change for design team to survey 

and evaluate route options. 

9. Permit applications / design submittals are being prepared for various agencies, including IDOT and 

railroads. 

a) IDOT District 1 plan review applications have been submitted and IDOT has responded without 

comment.  

1) Contractor will need to submit bonds in accordance with IDOT response letter.   

b) TW-6 S2 City of Naperville plan review submitted and comments received from the City. Work is 

ongoing to address the City of Naperville comments.  

c) Plan review submittals made to four gas pipeline companies (west of 95th & Wolf’s Crossing).  

d) Permit submittal to CN Railroad has been submitted and received.  

G. Contract FW-1 Section 1 & 2 in progress. 

1. Water transmission main plan and profile design ongoing. 

2. 90% Submittal Drawings submitted to DWC 12/13/24.  

3. Ongoing coordination w/ Kendall County Hwy. Dept. regarding design review comments. Coordination 

meeting will be scheduled after review of latest comments. 

 

 

 

 

 
                                                16 of 131



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Lincoln Centre, Suite 920 •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 5 of 6 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

H. Contract FW-1 Section 3 in progress. 

1. Water transmission main plan and profile design ongoing. 

2. 90% Submittal Drawings Submitted to DWC 12/22/24.  

3. Ongoing coordination with IDOT District 3 on IL Route 71 project overlap. 

4. Permit application to IDOT District 3 will request several variances with regards to pipe alignment 

proximity to ROW line and drainage ditches. Permit application was submitted on 3/11/25.  

a) IDOT District 3 has apologized for the delay and noted the review will continue for 2-3 more weeks. 

I. Contract FW-1 Section 4 in progress. 

1. Water transmission main plan and profile design ongoing. 

2. 90% Submittal Drawings submitted to DWC 12/13/24.  

3. IDOT District 1 permit submittal is nearly complete.  

J. Contract MS-22 Meter Stations in progress. 

1. Piping modifications to address DWC pipe trench removal complete. 

2. Oswego request for building location modifications under review. Design of the chemical feed building is 

ongoing. Architectural preferences for the chem feed building received.  

3. 90% Submittal drawings to be submitted to DWC 4/18/25. 

II. Scope Changes – Phase II (to date) 

A. Design of Additional Architectural Treatments for WaterLink Meter Stations. 

1. Fee: Pending (to be submitted to DWC for review/approval). 

B. Permit Fees 

1. Fee: Pending (fees being tracked and submitted w/ invoices) 

III. Financials 

A. Total Phase II Contract:  $19,956,942 

1. Fee Expended through April 30, 2025: 

a) Total:  $16,008,570 (80.2%) 

1) Basic Services:  $10,836,990 (54.3%) 

2) Additional Services:  $5,171,580 (25.9%)   

 

 
                                                17 of 131



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Lincoln Centre, Suite 920 •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 6 of 6 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

IV. Completed Workshops, Meetings and Visits (April – May) 

A. Monthly Progress Meeting w/ DWC – April 17,2025 

B. 90% Design Submittal for MS 22 – April 18, 2025 

C. ComEd Status Meeting – April 23, 2025 

D. USEPA/WIFIA Project Update Meeting – April 30, 2025 

E. Final Design Submittal for TW-6 Section 1 – May 2, 2025 

F. Specification and Contract Documents Review Meeting – May 6, 2025 

V. Upcoming Tasks & Meetings 

A. ComEd Coordination Meetings – As Needed 

B. Phase II geotechnical field work – As Needed 

C. Permit submittals to various review agencies. 

D. Contract TW-6 Section 1 Advertisement – May 2025 

E. IDOT Detour Committee Meeting – May 29, 2025 

 

 
                                                18 of 131



Activity through

April 26, 2024

Activity through

May 31, 2024

Activity through

June 30, 2024

Activity through

July 31, 2024

Activity through

August 31, 2024

Activity through

September 30, 2024

Activity through

October 31, 2024

Activity through

November 30, 2024

Activity through

December 31, 2024

Activity through

January 31, 2025

Activity through

February 28, 2025

Activity through

March 31, 2025

Activity through

April 30, 2025
Planned Planned Planned Planned Planned Planned Planned

Description May 2024 June 2024 July 2024 August 2024 September 2024 October 2024 November 2024 December 2024 January 2025 February 2025 March 2025 April 2025 May 2025 June 2025 July 2025 August 2025 September 2025 October 2025 November 2025 December 2025

Basic Services 625,960$                876,344$                980,607$                1,011,525$             994,029$                993,016$                999,176$                1,117,315$             1,116,854$             745,163$                499,762$                498,028$                378,984$                386,564$                261,372$                261,372$                261,372$                261,372$                125,192$                125,192$                

Additional Services 545,788$                1,126,706$             586,700$                561,317$                594,996$                64,786$                  149,871$                438,311$                350,417$                283,233$                83,116$                  205,871$                180,466$                408,242$                408,242$                409,450$                365,117$                365,117$                155,000$                155,000$                

MONTHLY SUBTOTAL 1,171,748$             2,003,050$             1,567,307$             1,572,842$             1,589,025$             1,057,802$             1,149,047$             1,555,626$             1,467,271$             1,028,396$             582,878$                703,899$                559,450$                794,805$                669,613$                670,822$                626,488$                626,488$                280,192$                280,192$                

SUBTOTAL

IGA ESCROW DEPOSITS

Cash Flow/Invoicing Forecast - Phase II Services

DuPage Water Commission

WaterLink Extension

19,956,942$                                                                                                                                             TOTAL PHASE II CONTRACT

$7,764,000 $5,532,000 $6,660,942

May 2025

$6,314,947 $5,351,501 $8,290,495

Sheet 1 of 1 5/7/2025
 

                                                19 of 131



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 DWC WATERLINK PHASE II DESIGN 436 days Mon 6/3/24 Wed 8/13/25

2 30% Design Submittal 74 days Mon 6/3/24 Fri 8/16/24

3 30% Design Preparation 60 days Mon 6/3/24 Fri 8/2/24

4 Submit for QC 0 days Fri 8/2/24 Fri 8/2/24

5 QC Review 4 days Mon 8/5/24 Fri 8/9/24

6 Address QC Comments 3 days Mon 8/12/24 Thu 8/15/24

7 30% Submittal to DWC 0 days Fri 8/16/24 Fri 8/16/24

8 75% Design Submittal 53 days Mon 8/19/24 Fri 10/11/24

9 75% Design Preparation 32 days Mon 8/19/24 Fri 9/20/24

10 Submit for QC 0 days Fri 9/20/24 Fri 9/20/24

11 QC and Constructability Review 4 days Mon 9/23/24 Fri 9/27/24

12 Address QC Comments 10 days Mon 9/30/24 Thu 10/10/24

13 75% Submittal to DWC 0 days Fri 10/11/24 Fri 10/11/24

14 90% Design Submittal 312 days Mon 10/14/24 Fri 8/22/25

15 90% Design Preparation 39 days Mon 10/14/24 Fri 11/22/24

16 Submit for QC 0 days Fri 11/22/24 Fri 11/22/24

17 QC and Construcability Review 4 days Mon 11/25/24 Fri 11/29/24

18 Address QC Comments 8 days Mon 12/2/24 Tue 12/10/24

19 90% Submittal to DWC 0 days Fri 12/13/24 Fri 12/13/24

20 ComEd Review Schedule 211 days Thu 1/23/25 Fri 8/22/25

21 Design Review 29 days Thu 1/23/25 Fri 2/21/25

22 Appraisals 61 days Fri 2/21/25 Wed 4/23/25

23 Legal Review 150 days Fri 2/21/25 Mon 7/21/25

24 Design Resubmittal Preparation 29 days Thu 7/24/25 Fri 8/22/25

25 Permitting Schedule 243 days Fri 1/3/25 Wed 9/3/25

26 IDOT District 1 & 3 70 days Fri 2/21/25 Fri 5/2/25

27 USACE 60 days Wed 2/5/25 Sun 4/6/25

28 IEPA 90 days Fri 1/3/25 Thu 4/3/25

29 IDNR Office of Water Resources 90 days Thu 2/6/25 Wed 5/7/25

30 DuPage County DOT 60 days Thu 1/16/25 Mon 3/17/25

31 Kendall County Highway 60 days Fri 1/24/25 Tue 3/25/25

32 Will County 60 days Mon 2/10/25 Fri 4/11/25

33 DuPage County Stormwater 60 days Wed 2/5/25 Sun 4/6/25

34 City of Naperville 59 days Tue 2/4/25 Fri 4/4/25

35 City of Aurora 60 days Fri 2/21/25 Tue 4/22/25

36 Village of Oswego 60 days Fri 2/21/25 Tue 4/22/25

37 Village of Montgomery 60 days Fri 2/21/25 Tue 4/22/25

38 City of Yorkville 60 days Fri 2/21/25 Tue 4/22/25

39 Naperville Township 59 days Tue 1/28/25 Fri 3/28/25

40 Wheatland Township (Courtesy Review) 60 days Fri 2/14/25 Tue 4/15/25

41 Oswego Township 60 days Fri 1/24/25 Tue 3/25/25

42 Bristol Township (no permit, Coordinate through Kendall County)60 days Fri 1/24/25 Tue 3/25/25

43 Naperville Park District 60 days Fri 2/21/25 Tue 4/22/25

44 Oswegoland Park District 60 days Fri 2/21/25 Tue 4/22/25

45 Morgan Creek Drainage District * 60 days Fri 2/21/25 Tue 4/22/25

46 Nicor Gas 73 days Fri 2/21/25 Mon 5/5/25

47 Kinder Morgan 73 days Fri 2/21/25 Mon 5/5/25

48 Enbridge 73 days Fri 2/21/25 Mon 5/5/25

49 BNSF Railroad (TW-6 S3, FW-1 S4) 145 days Fri 4/11/25 Wed 9/3/25

50 Illinois Railway / OmniTRAX (TW-6 S3) 145 days Fri 4/11/25 Wed 9/3/25

51 Canadian National Railway (TW-6 S2) 145 days Fri 4/11/25 Wed 9/3/25

52 NPDES Permit 60 days Thu 5/15/25 Mon 7/14/25

53 Final Design Submittal TW6-S1 (Book Rd) 130 days Mon 12/16/24 Fri 4/25/25

54 Final Design Preparation 21 days Mon 12/16/24 Mon 1/6/25

55 Submit for QC 0 days Mon 1/6/25 Mon 1/6/25

56 QC and Constructability Review 4 days Thu 1/9/25 Mon 1/13/25

57 Address QC Comments 28 days Thu 1/30/25 Thu 2/27/25

58 Final Submittal to DWC TW6-S1 (Book Rd) 0 days Fri 4/25/25 Fri 4/25/25

59 Final Design Submittal (All other Contracts) 221 days Mon 12/16/24 Fri 7/25/25

60 Final Design Preparation 88 days Mon 12/16/24 Fri 3/14/25

61 Submit for QC 0 days Fri 3/14/25 Fri 3/14/25

62 QC and Constructability Review 4 days Mon 3/17/25 Fri 3/21/25

63 Address QC Comments 23 days Mon 3/24/25 Wed 4/16/25

64 Final Submittal to DWC 0 days Fri 7/25/25 Fri 7/25/25

65 BIDDING PHASE 259 days Fri 3/21/25 Fri 12/5/25

66 TW6-S1 (Book Rd) Advertise 0 days Fri 5/9/25 Fri 5/9/25

67 TW6-S2&S3 Advertise 0 days Fri 9/5/25 Fri 9/5/25

68 MS22 Advertise 0 days Fri 9/26/25 Fri 9/26/25

69 FW1-S1&S2 Advertise 0 days Fri 10/10/25 Fri 10/10/25

70 FW1-S3 Advertise 0 days Fri 11/7/25 Fri 11/7/25

71 FW1-S4 Advertise 0 days Fri 12/5/25 Fri 12/5/25

72 CONSTRUCTION PHASE 982 days Mon 5/26/25 Wed 2/2/28

73 TW6-S1 (Book Rd) Construction 730 days Mon 7/14/25 Wed 7/14/27

74 TW6-S2&S3 Construction 730 days Mon 11/3/25 Wed 11/3/27

75 MS22 Construction 730 days Mon 11/24/25 Wed 11/24/27

76 FW1-S1&S2 Construction 730 days Mon 12/8/25 Wed 12/8/27

77 FW1-S3 Construction 730 days Mon 1/5/26 Wed 1/5/28

78 FW1-S4 Construction 730 days Mon 2/2/26 Wed 2/2/28

79 COMMISSIONING 90 days Mon 4/3/28 Sun 7/2/28

80 Commissioning WaterLink System 90 days Mon 4/3/28 Sun 7/2/28

6/3 100%6/3

8/2

8/5 100%8/5

8/12 100%8/12

8/16

8/19 100%8/19

9/20

9/23 100%9/23

9/30 100%9/30

10/11

10/14 100%10/14

11/22

11/25 100%11/25

12/2 90%12/2

12/13

1/23 75%

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

7/24 0%

2/21 0%

2/5 55%2/5

1/3 40%1/3

2/6 40%2/6

1/16 25%1/16

1/24 40%1/24

2/10 50%2/10

2/5 50%2/5

2/4 75%2/4

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

1/28 75%1/28

2/14 35%2/14

1/24 35%1/24

1/24 35%1/24

2/21 60%2/21

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

2/21 0%

4/11 0%

4/11 0%

4/11 0%

5/15 0%

12/16 90%12/16

1/6

1/9 90%1/9

1/30 80%1/30

4/25

12/16 60%12/16

3/14

3/17 0%

3/24 0%

7/25

5/9

9/5

9/26

10/10

11/7

12/5

7/14

11/3

11/24

12/8

1/5

2/2

26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22

June 2024 July 2024 August 2024 September 2024 October 2024 November 2024 December 2024 January 2025 February 2025 March 2025 April 2025 May 2025 June 2025 July 2025 August 2025 September 2025 October 2025 November 2025 December 2025 January 2026 February 2026

2024 2025

DuPage Water Commission

WaterLink Extension

Phase II Design Schedule

Page 1

Critical

Critical Progress

Task

Split

Task Progress

Milestone
May 2025

 
                                                20 of 131



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-41-25 
Account:  01-60-772500 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           PDM      -   CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 5/7/2025 

Description:  Approval of Master Services Agreement and Task Order #1 with 
Consor/Raftelis for Professional Services as Source Water Project 
Technical Advisor 

Agenda Section:    Engineering & Construction  

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

The FY 2025-26 DWC Budget includes funding to advance the Source Water Project forward to ensure 
that DuPage County and the surrounding region is provided with the most reliable, efficient, and 
dependable water system for future generations.  DWC has previously studied and validated the 
concept of the Regional Source Water Project and is now ready to advance into the next phase, 
intending ultimately to select a Program Manager(s) - tentatively scheduled for 2026 - to bring the 
project to successful completion prior to the termination of the Chicago Water Purchase Contract in 
2041.   

Currently, this project is at a very critical stage, as the validation and feasibility studies have been 
completed, but the project is not advanced far enough to select a project manager and move into 
construction.  It is important at this time to select an owner’s technical advisor to advance the Source 
Water Concept through the next steps in a manner that provides certainty to variables which would 
otherwise be accepted as project risk by the Program Manager and would be reflected in the cost of 
the project.  Thoughtfully advancing through this gap period will allow DWC to retain management 
and decision-making control, and will allow for uncertainties to be reduced when a program manager 
is selected, likely resulting in more expedient implementation and reduced project costs. 

Therefore, in order to support staff resources and provide additional access to expertise and vendors, 
DWC determined that a Technical Advisory Team be selected to become embedded within the DWC 
leadership team through the duration of the project.  While the Technical Advisory personnel will not 
be required to be physically located at DWC, the team will consist of limited selected individuals who 
will be intimately involved with guiding leadership decisions throughout the duration of the project.  

 
                                                21 of 131



| 2 of 2 | 

 

The intention is that the Technical Advisory team consist of uniquely qualified individuals with the 
ability to marshal additional expertise and resources when needed, from within their firm(s) or from 
external vendors as necessary based upon the task.  It is required that the identified individuals will 
be committed to a presence within the leadership team for an extended period of time, but especially 
for the period from 2025-2030; during which time critical decisions will need to be made in a nimble 
yet deliberate manner.  These individuals will remain engaged with DWC, will organize, direct, and 
carry out preliminary activities, and will provide guidance to the leadership staff and board of DWC 
regularly - including presentations at monthly meetings when requested.  The individuals must be able 
to utilize existing relationships to identify, call upon, and activate additional qualified resources, firms, 
and vendors when necessary to move the project forward. 

DWC received two very qualified proposals and performed desktop reviews and convened a review 
panel which was presented with a 60-minute presentation followed by a 60-minute question and 
answer period.  The review panel identified the team proposed by Consor/Raftelis as most qualified. 

Attached for Commissioner information is the April DWC RFP solicitation document, which includes 
the scope of priorities for the short and intermediate term (page 9), as well as the Consor/Raftelis 
proposal which includes details on their approach and schedule.  Due to the nature of the work, it is 
not possible to precisely define the tasks which will be necessary to advance the project over this the 
next year; rather, the scope is intended to provide an understanding of the priorities, sequence, and 
expected level of work associated with known or anticipated tasks.  Payment will be rendered based 
upon hours applied and reimbursable costs, in an amount not to exceed $500,000 under Task Order 
#1.  Future Task Orders will be presented as necessary as the project advances. 

This cost of this project is subject to the Intergovernmental Agreement approved by the DWC Board 
of Commissioners at our April meeting (R-37-25), which establishes a mechanism for DWC to be 
reimbursed for 30% of the cost of this endeavor by NSMJAWA.  The IGA will be acted on at the 
NSMJAWA May 22 Board meeting.  After the IGA is approved by NSMJAWA, DWC will execute the 
Consor/Raftelis contract and authorize work to commence. 

Recommended Motion: 

To adopt Resolution R-41-25, authorizing approval of a Master Services Agreement in substantially 
the form as attached, and Task Order #1 with Consor/Raftelis to serve as Source Water Technical 
Advisor in an amount not to exceed $500,000, following NSMJAWA approval of the cost-sharing 
Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 
                                                22 of 131



| 1 of 4 | 

 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-41-25 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT AND TASK ORDER #1 WITH 
CONSOR/RAFTELIS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR SOURCE WATER PROJECT TECHNICAL ADVISOR 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has been organized under the Acts to supply water within its territorial 

limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has entered into a water supply contract with the City of Chicago to 

purchase Lake Michigan water sufficient to meet the water supply needs of the Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission’s water supply contract with the City of Chicago is set to expire in 

2041 and the Commission is advancing an alternative solution to obtaining Lake Michigan water; and 

WHEREAS, the services of a Technical Advisor are necessary to advance the Alternative Source 

Water Project; and 

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposals was posted for said services and proposal submittals and 

presentations were received and reviewed; and 

WHEREAS, the Technical Advisory Team proposed by the firm Consor Engineering in partnership 

with Raftelis, Inc was found to be most qualified; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of services associated with this Task Order will be reconciled based upon hours 

expensed and reimbursable costs, not to exceed $500,000; and 

WHEREAS, the a cost-sharing agreement has been developed with the Northwest Suburban 

Municipal Joint Action Water Agency in which that Agency will reimburse 30% of the cost of this Task 

Order, as required in the Intergovernmental Agreement between Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint 

 
                                                23 of 131



| 2 of 4 | 

 

Action Water Agency and DuPage Water Commission Regarding Joint Studies, approved by the DuPage 

Water Commission on April 17, 2025 as Resolution R-37-25 and pending approval by NSMJAWA; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  A Master Services Agreement and Task Order #1 with Consor Engineering, in 

substantially the form attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof 

as Exhibit 1, with such modifications as may be required or approved by the General Manager of the 

Commission, shall be and it hereby is approved.  The General Manager shall be and hereby is authorized 

and directed to execute the agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1 with such 

modifications as may be required or approved by the General Manager; provided, however, that the 

agreement shall not be so executed on behalf of the Commission until following authorization of the cost-

sharing Intergovernmental Agreement between the DuPage Water Commission and the Northwest 

Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency. 

 
                                                24 of 131



| 3 of 4 | 

 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Greaney, S.      

Honig, A.      

Noonan, T.      

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2025. 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2025/R-41-25.docx 

 

 

 
                                                25 of 131



| 4 of 4 | 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 
                                                26 of 131



 

MASTER CONTRACT BETWEEN 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

AND 

CONSOR ENGINEERING, INC. 

FOR 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

 
                                                27 of 131



 

 
-i- 

MASTER CONTRACT BETWEEN 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

AND 

CONSOR ENGINEERING, INC. 

FOR 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 
 

ARTICLE 1 THE SERVICES .............................................................................. 1 

 1.1 Performance of the Services ........................................................... 1 
 1.2 Commencement and Completion Dates ......................................... 2 
 1.3 Required Submittals ........................................................................ 2 
 1.4 Review and Incorporation of Contract Provisions ........................... 3 
 1.5 Financial and Technical Ability to Perform ...................................... 3 
 1.6 Time ................................................................................................ 4 
 1.7 Consultant's Personnel and Subcontractors ................................... 4 
 1.8 Owner's Responsibilities ................................................................. 7 
 1.9 Owner's Right to Terminate or Suspend 
  Services for Convenience ............................................................... 7 
 
ARTICLE II CHANGES AND DELAYS ............................................................... 8 
 
 2.1 Changes .......................................................................................... 8 
 2.2 Delays ............................................................................................. 8 
 2.3 No Constructive Change Orders ..................................................... 8 
 
ARTICLE III CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITY 
  FOR DEFECTIVE SERVICES ........................................................ 9 
 
 3.1 Standard of Care ............................................................................. 9 
 3.2 Corrections .................................................................................... 10 
 3.3 Risk of Loss .................................................................................. 10 
 
ARTICLE IV FINANCIAL ASSURANCES .......................................................... 10 
 
 4.1 Insurance ...................................................................................... 10 
 4.2 Indemnification .............................................................................. 12 

 
                                                28 of 131



 

 
-ii- 

ARTICLE V PAYMENT ..................................................................................... 12 
 
 5.1 Contract Price ............................................................................... 12 
 5.2 Taxes, Benefits and Royalties ....................................................... 12 
 5.3 Progress Payments ....................................................................... 13 
 5.4 Final Acceptance and Final Payment ............................................ 13 
 5.5 Deductions .................................................................................... 14 
 5.6 Accounting .................................................................................... 14 
 
ARTICLE VI REMEDIES ................................................................................... 15 
 
 6.1 Owner's Remedies ........................................................................ 15 
 6.2 Terminations and Suspensions Deemed for Convenience ........... 16 
 
ARTICLE VII LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS AND REQUIREMENTS ....................... 16 
 
 7.1 Binding Effect ................................................................................ 16 
 7.2 Relationship of the Parties ............................................................ 16 
 7.3 No Collusion/Prohibited Interests .................................................. 16 
 7.4 Assignment ................................................................................... 17 
 7.5 Confidential Information ................................................................ 17 
 7.6 Security ......................................................................................... 17 
 7.7 No Waiver ..................................................................................... 19 
 7.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries ......................................................... 19 
 7.9 Notices .......................................................................................... 19 
 7.10 Governing Laws ............................................................................ 20 
 7.11 Changes in Laws ........................................................................... 20 
 7.12 Compliance with Laws and Grants ................................................ 20 
 7.13 Documents .................................................................................... 21 
 7.14 Time .............................................................................................. 21 
 7.15 Severability ................................................................................... 21 
 7.16 Entire Agreement .......................................................................... 21 
 7.17 Amendments ................................................................................. 22 
 
 
ATTACHMENT A – Description of Basic Services 

ATTACHMENT B – Form of Task Order 

 
                                                29 of 131



 

 
-1- 

MASTER CONTRACT BETWEEN 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

AND 

CONSOR ENGINEERING, INC. 

FOR 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

In consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, the DuPage Water 
Commission, 600 East Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 60126-4642, a unit of local 
government created and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois (“Owner”), and 
CONSOR ENGINEERING, INC., a (“Consultant”), make this Contract as of the 23rd day 
of May, 2025, and hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
THE SERVICES 

1.1 Performance of the Services 

A. Consultant’s Services.  For each Project delineated and described in a Task 
Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
provide, perform, and complete all of the following, all of which is herein referred to as the 
“Services”: 

1. Labor, Equipment, Materials, and Supplies.  Provide, perform, and 
complete, in the manner described and specified in the Task Order 
for such Project and this Contract, all necessary work, labor, 
services, transportation, equipment, materials, apparatus, 
information, data, and other items necessary to accomplish such 
Project in accordance with such of the basic engineering services set 
forth in Attachment A to this Contract as may be specified or referred 
to in the Task Order for such Project and such other engineering 
services as may be specified or referred to in the Task Order for such 
Project and not set forth in Attachment A. 

2. Approvals.  Procure and furnish all approvals and authorizations 
specified in the Task Order for such Project. 

3. Insurance.  Procure and furnish all certificates of insurance specified 
in this Contract and such other certificates and policies of insurance 
as may be specified in the Task Order for such Project. 

4. Quality.  Provide, perform, and complete all of the foregoing in a 
proper and workmanlike manner, consistent with the recognized 

 
                                                30 of 131



 

 
-2- 

industry standards of professional practice and in full compliance 
with, and as required by or pursuant to, the Task Order for such 
Project and this Contract. 

B. Task Orders.  Consultant’s Services shall be rendered in connection with 
such Projects as are delineated and described in Task Orders issued pursuant to this 
Contract.  All Task Orders issued pursuant to this Contract shall be in the general form 
attached hereto as Attachment B, and all Services to be provided pursuant to any such 
Task Order shall be provided, performed, and completed in accordance with the terms 
and conditions contained in such Task Order and this Contract.  Consultant and Owner 
shall agree on the scope of Services to be provided, the time for performance of the 
Services to be provided, and the cost or, if the Services are to be performed in separate 
phases with separate costs, the costs for each separate phase of Services to be provided 
under each Task Order.  No Services shall be provided under this Contract without the 
issuance of a Task Order approved by Owner and Consultant. 

The terms and conditions set forth in this Contract shall apply to each Task Order 
unless specifically modified in such Task Order.  In the event of a conflict between this 
Contract and a Task Order, the conflicting provision of the Task Order shall take 
precedence for that Task Order.  In the event this Contract is amended by Owner and 
Consultant, such amendment shall apply to all Tasks Orders issued after the effective 
date of the amendment and, unless otherwise specifically provided in such amendment, 
shall not apply to any Task Orders issued prior to the effective date of the amendment. 

Owner reserves the right to employ other engineers on its projects and shall not 
be obligated to issue any Task Orders pursuant to this Contract. 

1.2 Commencement and Completion Dates 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall commence the Services not later than the “Commencement 
Date” set forth in the Task Order for such Project, and shall diligently and continuously 
prosecute the Services at such a rate as will allow the Services to be fully provided, 
performed, and completed in full compliance with the Task Order for such Project and this 
Contract not later than the “Completion Date” or, if the Services are to be performed in 
separate phases with separate completion dates, the “Completion Dates” set forth in the 
Task Order for such Project.  The time of commencement, rate of progress, and time of 
completion for each Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract are referred to in this 
Contract as the “Contract Time.” 

1.3 Required Submittals 

A. Submittals Required.  For each Project delineated and described in a Task 
Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Consultant shall submit to Owner all reports, 
documents, data, and information specifically set forth in the Task Order for such Project 
or otherwise required to be submitted by Consultant under this Contract and shall, in 
addition, submit to Owner all such reports, documents, data, and information as may be 

 
                                                31 of 131



 

 
-3- 

requested by Owner to fully document the Services for such Project (“Required 
Submittals”). 

B. Time of Submission and Owner’s Review.  For each Project delineated and 
described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, all Required Submittals shall 
be provided to Owner no later than the time, if any, specified in the Task Order for such 
Project or otherwise in this Contract.  If no time for submission is specified for any 
Required Submittal, such Submittal shall be submitted within a reasonable time in light of 
its purpose and, in all events, in sufficient time, in Owner’s reasonable opinion, to permit 
Owner to review the same prior to the commencement of any part of the Services to which 
such Required Submittal may relate.  For each Project delineated and described in a Task 
Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Owner shall have the right to require such 
corrections as may be necessary to make any Required Submittal conform to the Task 
Order for such Project and this Contract.  No Services related to any Required Submittal 
shall be performed by Consultant until Owner has completed review of such Required 
Submittal with no exception noted.  Owner’s review and stamping of any Required 
Submittal shall not relieve Consultant of the entire responsibility for the performance of 
the Services in full compliance with, and as required by or pursuant to the Task Order for 
such Project and this Contract, and shall not be regarded as any assumption of risk or 
liability by Owner. 

C. Responsibility for Delay.  For each Project delineated and described in a 
Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Consultant shall be responsible for any delay 
in the Services due to delay in providing Required Submittals conforming to the Task 
Order for such Project and this Contract. 

1.4 Review and Incorporation of Contract Provisions 

Consultant represents and warrants that it has carefully reviewed, and fully 
understood, this Contract, including all of its Attachments, and, by its approval of each 
Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, that it has carefully reviewed, and fully 
understood, each such Task Order, all of which are by this reference incorporated into 
and made a part of this Contract. 

1.5 Financial and Technical Ability to Perform 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant represents and warrants, by its approval of such Task Order, that it 
is financially solvent, and has the financial resources necessary, and that it is sufficiently 
experienced and competent, and has the necessary capital, facilities, plant, organization, 
and staff necessary, to provide, perform, and complete the Services in full compliance 
with, and as required by or pursuant to, the Task Order for such Project and this Contract. 

1.6 Time 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant represents and warrants, by its approval of such Task Order, that it 
is ready, willing, able, and prepared to begin the Services on the Commencement Date 

 
                                                32 of 131



 

 
-4- 

set forth in the Task Order for such Project and that the Contract Time for such Task 
Order is sufficient time to permit completion of the Services in full compliance with, and 
as required by or pursuant to, the Task Order for such Project and this Contract for the 
Contract Price set forth in the Task Order for such Project. 

1.7 Consultant’s Personnel and Subcontractors 

A. Consultant’s Personnel.  For each Project delineated and described in a 
Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Consultant shall provide all personnel 
necessary to complete the Services, including without limitation the “Key Project 
Personnel” identified in the Task Order for such Project.  Consultant shall provide to 
Owner telephone numbers at which the Key Project Personnel for such Task Order can 
be reached on a 24 hour basis.  Consultant and Owner may by mutual written agreement 
make changes and additions to the designations of Key Project Personnel in such Task 
Order.  Prior to terminating the employment of any such designated Key Project 
Personnel, or reassigning any of such designated Key Project Personnel to other 
positions, or upon receiving notification of the resignation of any of such designated Key 
Project Personnel, Consultant shall notify Owner as soon as practicable in advance of 
such proposed termination, reassignment, or resignation.  Consultant shall submit 
justification, including a description of proposed substitute personnel, in sufficient detail 
to permit evaluation by Owner of the impact of the proposed action on the Services to be 
provided, performed, and completed under such Task Order.  No such termination, except 
for voluntary terminations by employees, and no such reassignment shall be made by 
Consultant without prior written approval of Owner.  Consultant shall have no claim for 
damages, for compensation in excess of the Contract Price for such Task Order, or for a 
delay or extension of the Contract Time for such Task Order as a result of any such 
termination, reassignment, resignation, or substitution. 

B. Approval and Use of Subcontractors.  For each Project delineated and 
described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Consultant shall perform the 
Services with its own personnel and under the management, supervision, and control of 
its own organization unless otherwise approved by Owner in writing.  All subcontractors 
and subcontracts used by Consultant shall be acceptable to, and approved in advance 
by, Owner.  Owner’s approval of any subcontractor or subcontract shall not relieve 
Consultant of full responsibility and liability for the provision, performance, and completion 
of the Services in full compliance with, and as required by or pursuant to, the Task Order 
for such Project and this Contract.  All Services performed under any subcontract shall 
be subject to all of the provisions of the Task Order for such Project and this Contract in 
the same manner as if performed by employees of Consultant.  For each Project 
delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, every 
reference in the Task Order for such Project and in this Contract to “Consultant” shall be 
deemed also to refer to all subcontractors of Consultant, and every subcontract shall 
include a provision binding the subcontractor to all provisions of the Task Order for such 
Project and this Contract. 

C. Removal of Personnel and Subcontractors.  For each Project delineated 
and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, if any personnel or 
subcontractor fails to perform the part of the Services undertaken by it in a manner 

 
                                                33 of 131



 

 
-5- 

satisfactory to Owner, Consultant shall immediately upon notice from Owner remove and 
replace such personnel or subcontractor.  Consultant shall have no claim for damages, 
for compensation in excess of the Contract Price for such Task Order, or for a delay or 
extension of the Contract Time for such Task Order as a result of any such removal or 
replacement. 

D. Safety at the Work Sites.  For each Project delineated and described in a 
Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Consultant shall be solely and completely 
responsible for providing and maintaining safe conditions at its workplace on or in the 
vicinity of Owner’s facilities and appurtenances during performance of the Services.  
Consultant shall take all safety precautions as shall be necessary to comply with all 
applicable laws and to prevent injury to persons and damage to property.  In addition: 

1. It is expressly understood by the parties that Consultant’s 
responsibility for safety conditions shall be strictly limited to its 
employees.  It is expressly understood by the parties that Owner’s 
responsibility for safety conditions shall be strictly limited to its 
employees. 

2. Consultant is advised that potentially hazardous conditions 
described in the Illinois Health and Safety Act, federal OSHA 
Regulations and Guidelines, ANSI Standard B30.5-1968 as 
amended, ANSI Standard Z117.1-1995 as amended, and Illinois 
Department of Labor Rules and Regulations, could be encountered 
during the performance of the Services, including without limitation 
energized electrical facilities and overhead wires; cranes, derricks, 
and other hoisting machinery with operational and use limitations, 
special hazard warnings and instructions, and revolving 
superstructures requiring proper barricading; underground utility 
facilities requiring protection, support, or removal to safeguard 
employees; excavations requiring, among other things, safe means 
of egress and protection from cave-ins, fall-ins, hazardous 
atmospheres, hazardous substances, and other hazardous 
conditions; and confined or enclosed spaces that are subject to the 
accumulation of hazardous substances or toxic or flammable 
contaminants or that have oxygen deficient or other hazardous 
atmospheres, requiring, among other things, independent fall 
protection, respiratory equipment, ventilation, two-way 
communication with the outside, and safe means of egress.  
Consultant should take special notice of the potentially hazardous 
conditions identified in this paragraph and take all necessary 
precautions to guard against such potential hazards, including 
without limitation conducting employee safety training and education, 
posting warnings and instructions, testing and inspecting, and 
utilizing adequate protective and emergency systems, equipment, 
and devices, in as much safety remains Consultant’s sole 
responsibility under this Contract.  Consultant is directed to the 
Illinois Health and Safety Act, federal OSHA Regulations and 

 
                                                34 of 131



 

 
-6- 

Guidelines, including without limitation Occupational Safety & Health 
Standards and Construction Industry Safety & Health Regulations as 
outlined in Parts 1910 and 1926 of US Dept. of Labor Chapter XVII - 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Title 29, and US 
Dept. of Labor Document OSHA 2202 “OSHA Safety and Health 
Standards Digest,” ANSI Standard B30.5-1968 as amended, ANSI 
Standard Z117.1-1995 as amended, and Illinois Department of Labor 
Rules and Regulations for a further description of these potentially 
hazardous conditions and the regulations applicable thereto. 

3. Consultant is being notified of these potentially hazardous conditions 
so that Consultant may independently assess the potentially 
hazardous conditions and take the necessary precautions to ensure 
a safe workplace pursuant to this Contract and Consultant’s legal 
obligations.  Owner’s notification of these potentially hazardous 
conditions should not be construed to be, nor interpreted as, an 
exclusive listing of the potentially hazardous conditions that could be 
encountered during the performance of the Services but, rather, such 
notice shall be construed to be, and interpreted as, exemplary only.  
Owner’s notification of these potentially hazardous conditions should 
not be construed or interpreted as waiving Consultant’s sole and 
complete responsibility for its workplace conditions on or in the 
vicinity of Owner’s facilities and appurtenances or for providing and 
maintaining safe conditions at its workplace on or in the vicinity of 
Owner’s facilities and appurtenances, including the safety of all 
persons and property during performance of the Services.  This 
notification of potentially hazardous conditions is provided solely to 
assist Consultant in the performance of these duties, in the interest 
of maximum safety. 

4. Consultant shall not have control or charge of and shall not be 
responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, or for safety measures and programs 
including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, in 
connection with construction work performed by Owner's 
construction contractors.  Nor shall Consultant be responsible for the 
supervision of Owner's construction contractors, subcontractors or of 
any of their employees, agents and representatives of such 
contractors, with respect to their construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety measures and 
programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety 
requirements, in connection with construction work; or for inspecting 
machinery, construction equipment and tools used and employed by 
contractors and subcontractors on Owner's construction projects and 
shall not have the right to stop or reject work without the thorough 
evaluation and approval of Owner.  In no event shall Consultant be 
liable for the acts or omissions of Owner's construction contractors, 
subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the 

 
                                                35 of 131



 

 
-7- 

construction work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out 
construction work under contracts with Owner. 

1.8 Owner’s Responsibilities 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Owner shall, at its sole cost and expense and except as otherwise provided in 
the Task Order for such Project:  (a) designate in writing a person with authority to act as 
Owner’s representative and on Owner’s behalf with respect to the Services except those 
matters that may require Board approval of Owner; (b) provide to Consultant all criteria 
and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the Project or work to which the 
Services relate, including Owner’s objectives and constraints, schedule, space, capacity 
and performance requirements, and budgetary limitations relevant to the Project; 
(c) provide to Consultant all existing studies, reports, and other available data relevant to 
the Project; (d) arrange for access to and make all provisions for Consultant to enter upon 
public and private property as reasonably required for Consultant to perform the Services; 
(e) provide surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations, and utility 
locations for the Project and the services of geotechnical engineers or other consultants 
when such services are reasonably requested by Consultant, are necessary for the 
performance of the Services, and are not already provided for in the Task Order for the 
Project; (f) provide structural, mechanical, chemical, air and water pollution tests, test for 
hazardous materials, and other laboratory and environmental tests, inspections, and 
reports required by law to be provided by Owner in connection with the Project; (g) review 
and comment on all Required Submittals and other reports, documents, data, and 
information presented by Consultant; (h) except as otherwise provided in the Task Order 
for the Project, provide approvals from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction 
over the Project when such services are reasonably requested by Consultant, are 
necessary for the performance of the Services, and are not already provided for in the 
Task Order for the Project; (i) except as provided in Article IV of this Contract, provide all 
accounting, insurance, and legal counseling services as may be necessary from time to 
time in the sole judgment of Owner to protect Owner’s interests with respect to the Project; 
(j) attend Project related meetings; and (k) give prompt written notice to Consultant 
whenever Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of any development that affects 
the scope or timing of the Services, provided, however, that failure to give such notice 
shall not relieve Consultant of any of its responsibilities under the Task Order for the 
Project or this Contract.  Information as to the location of Owner’s existing facilities and 
data and recommendations received from other consultants have been indicated or 
provided solely for the convenience of Consultant.  Owner assumes no responsibility 
whatever in respect to the sufficiency or accuracy of such information and such 
information is not guaranteed. 

1.9 Owner’s Right to Terminate or Suspend Services for Convenience 

A. Termination or Suspension for Convenience.  Owner shall have the right, 
for its convenience, to terminate or suspend the Services under any Task Order in whole 
or in part at any time by written notice to Consultant.  Every such notice shall state the 
extent and effective date of such termination or suspension.  On such effective date, 
Consultant shall, as and to the extent directed, stop Services under such Task Order, 

 
                                                36 of 131



 

 
-8- 

cease all placement of further orders or subcontracts under such Task Order, terminate 
or suspend Services under existing orders and subcontracts for such Task Order, and 
cancel any outstanding orders or subcontracts under such Task Order that may be 
canceled.  Consultant shall be entitled to additional compensation or the right to terminate 
such Task Order in the event of any suspension that exceeds a period of 90 days. 

B. Payment for Completed Services.  In the event of any termination pursuant 
to Subsection 1.9A above, Owner shall pay Consultant (1) such direct costs, including 
overhead, as Consultant shall have paid or incurred for all Services done in compliance 
with, and as required by or pursuant to, such Task Order and this Contract up to the 
effective date of termination; and (2) such other costs pertaining to the Services, exclusive 
of overhead and profit, as Consultant may have reasonably and necessarily incurred as 
the result of such termination.  Any such payment shall be offset by any prior payment or 
payments under such Task Order and shall be subject to Owner’s rights to withhold and 
deduct as provided in this Contract. 

ARTICLE II 
CHANGES AND DELAYS 

2.1 Changes 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Owner shall have the right, by written order executed by Owner, to make 
changes in the Task Order, the Project, the Services and the Contract Time (“Change 
Order”).  If any Change Order causes an increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Services, an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time for such Task 
Order may be made.  No decrease in the amount of the Services caused by any Change 
Order shall entitle Consultant to make any claim for damages, anticipated profits, or other 
compensation. 

2.2 Delays 

For any delay that may result from causes that could not be avoided or controlled 
by Consultant for each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant 
to this Contract, Consultant shall, upon timely written application, be entitled to issuance 
of a Change Order providing for an extension of the Contract Time for such Task Order 
for a period of time equal to the delay resulting from such unavoidable cause and an 
equitable adjustment in the Contract Price for such Task Order.  No extension of the 
Contract Time for such Task Order shall be allowed for any other delay in completion of 
the Services. 

2.3 No Constructive Change Orders 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, no claims for equitable adjustments in the Contract Price or Contract Time for 
such Task Order shall be made or allowed unless embodied in a Change Order.  If Owner 
fails to issue a Change Order for such Task Order including, or fully including, an equitable 
adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time to which Consultant claims it is entitled, 

 
                                                37 of 131



 

 
-9- 

or, if Consultant believes that any requirement, direction, instruction, interpretation, 
determination, or decision of Owner entitles Consultant to an equitable adjustment in the 
Contract Price or Contract Time that has not been included, or fully included, in a Change 
Order for such Task Order, then Consultant shall submit to Owner a written request for 
the issuance of, or revision of, a Change Order for such Task Order, including the 
equitable adjustment, or the additional equitable adjustment, in the Contract Price or 
Contract Time that Consultant claims has not been included, or fully included, in a Change 
Order for such Task Order.  Such request shall be submitted before Consultant proceeds 
with any Services for which Consultant claims an equitable adjustment is due and shall, 
in all events, be submitted no later than ten business days after receipt of such Change 
Order or receipt of notice of such requirement, direction, instruction, interpretation, 
determination, or decision.  Unless Consultant submits such a request within ten business 
days after receipt of such Change Order or receipt of notice of such requirement, 
direction, instruction, interpretation, determination, or decision, Consultant shall be 
conclusively deemed (1) to have agreed that such Change Order, requirement, direction, 
instruction, interpretation, determination, or decision does not entitle Consultant to an 
equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time for such Task Order and (2) 
to have waived all claims based on such Change Order, requirement, direction, 
instruction, interpretation, determination, or decision. 

ARTICLE III 
CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DEFECTIVE SERVICES 

3.1 Standard of Care 

A. Standard of Care.  Consultant represents that the Services and all of its 
components shall be free from errors and omissions in design; shall conform to the 
requirements of this Contract; and shall be performed in accordance with recognized 
industry standards of professional practice, care, and diligence practiced by reputable 
consulting firms in performing services of a similar nature in existence at the time of 
performance of the Services for a similar type of owner operating similar facilities.  The 
representation herein expressed shall be in addition to any other representations 
expressed in this Contract, or expressed or implied by applicable law, which are hereby 
reserved unto Owner. 

B. Opinions of Cost.  It is recognized that neither Consultant nor Owner has 
control over the costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices.  Accordingly, any opinions of probable Project costs 
or construction costs provided for herein are estimates only, made on the basis of 
Consultant’s experience and qualifications and represent Consultant’s judgment as an 
experienced and qualified professional, familiar with the industry.  Consultant does not 
guaranty that proposals, bids or actual Project costs or construction costs will not vary 
from opinions of probable cost prepared by Consultant. 

C. Defective Services.  Whenever the term “defective” is used in the this 
Contract, the term shall mean professional services that fail to conform to this Section 3.1 
and/or any specific terms and requirements contained in this Contract. 

 
                                                38 of 131



 

 
-10- 

3.2 Corrections 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, 
completeness and coordination of all reports, documents, data, information and other 
items and services under the Task Order for such Project and this Contract.  Consultant 
shall, promptly and without charge, provide, to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner, all 
corrective Services necessary as a result of Consultant’s negligent errors or omissions, 
negligent acts, or failure to meet the requirements under the Task Order for such Project 
and this Contract.. 

3.3 Risk of Loss 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons 
as a result of Consultant’s negligent errors or omissions, negligent acts, or failure to meet 
warranty and for any losses or costs to repair or remedy any work undertaken by Owner 
based upon the Services as a result of any such negligent errors or omissions, negligent 
acts, or failure to meet the requirement of the Task Order for such Project and this 
Contract .  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, Consultant’s obligations 
under this Section 3.3 shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be 
waived by, the availability or unavailability of any insurance, either of Owner or 
Consultant, to indemnify, hold harmless or reimburse Consultant for such damages, 
losses or costs. 

ARTICLE IV 
FINANCIAL ASSURANCES 

4.1 Insurance 

A. Insurance Required.  Contemporaneous with Consultant’s execution of this 
Contract, Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance evidencing at least the 
minimum insurance coverages and limits set forth below in a form acceptable to Owner 
and evidencing insurance coverages from companies with a general rating of A minus or 
better, and a financial size category of Class V or better, in Best’s Insurance Guide and 
otherwise acceptable to Owner.  Such insurance shall provide that no cancellation of any 
insurance shall become effective until the expiration of 30 days after written notice thereof 
shall have been given by the insurance company to Consultant.  Consultant shall notify 
Owner of any substantial changes or modification in such coverage within 30 days after 
Consultant becomes aware of same.  Consultant shall immediately pass any such notice 
to Owner.   

B. Minimum Coverages.  Consultant shall, at all times while providing, 
performing, or completing the Services, including, without limitation, at all times while 
correcting any failure to meet the requirements of this Contract, maintain and keep in 
force, at Consultant’s expense, at least the following minimum insurance coverages and 
limits: 

 
                                                39 of 131



 

 
-11- 

1. Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability with limits not less 
than: 

(a) Worker’s Compensation:  Statutory; 

(b) Employer’s Liability: 

$500,000 injury-per occurrence 

$500,000 disease-per employee 

$500,000 disease-policy limit 

Such insurance shall evidence that coverage applies in the State of 
Illinois and provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of Owner. By 
entering into this agreement, the parties acknowledge that this 
limitation of liability clause has been reviewed, understood, is a 
material part of this agreement, and each party has had the 
opportunity to seek legal advice regarding this provision. 

2. Commercial Motor Vehicle Liability with a combined single limit of 
liability for bodily injury and property damage of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for vehicles owned, non-owned, or 
rented. 

All employees shall be included as insureds. 

3. Commercial General Liability with coverage written on an 
“occurrence” basis and with limits no less than: 

(a) Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

(b) General Aggregate: $2,000,000 

(c) Completed Operations Aggregate: $2,000,000 

(d) Personal Injury: $1,000,000 

Coverages shall include: 

- Broad Form Property Damage Endorsement 

- Blanket Contractual Liability (must expressly cover the 
indemnity provisions of this Contract) 

4. Professional Liability Insurance.  With a limit of liability of not less 
than $2,000,000 per claim and covering Consultant against all sums 
that Consultant may be obligated to pay on account of any liability 
arising out of Consultant’s negligent acts, errors, and omissions 
under the Contract and each Task Order issued pursuant to this 

 
                                                40 of 131



 

 
-12- 

Contract. Such insurance, or such insurance as may then be 
commercially available in the marketplace, shall be maintained for a 
three year period from and after Final Payment. 

5. Umbrella Policy.  The required coverages may be in any combination 
of primary, excess, and umbrella policies.  Any excess or umbrella 
policy must provide excess coverage over underlying insurance on a 
following-form basis such that when any loss covered by the primary 
policy exceeds the limits under the primary policy, the excess or 
umbrella policy becomes effective to cover such loss. 

6. Owner as Additional Insured.  Owner shall be named as an 
Additional Insured on the following policies: 

Commercial Motor Vehicle Liability 

Commercial General Liability 

Each such additional Insured endorsement shall identify Owner as 
follows:  The DuPage Water Commission, including its Board 
members and elected and appointed officials, its officers, 
employees, agents, attorneys, consultants, and representatives. 

4.2 Indemnification 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall, without regard to the availability or unavailability of any 
insurance, either of Owner or Consultant, indemnify, and save harmless,  Owner against 
any and all third-party lawsuits, claims, demands, damages, liabilities, losses, and 
expenses, (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and administrative expenses) 
(collectively “Claims”)  to the extent caused by any negligent act, error, or omission in 
Consultant’s performance of, or failure to perform, the Services or any part thereof, except 
to the extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Owner. 

ARTICLE V 
PAYMENT 

5.1 Contract Price 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Owner shall pay to Consultant, in accordance with and subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Article V and in such Task Order, and Consultant shall accept 
in full satisfaction for providing, performing, and completing the Services, the amount or 
amounts set forth in such Task Order (the “Contract Price”), subject to any additions, 
deductions, or withholdings provided for in this Contract. 

 
                                                41 of 131



 

 
-13- 

5.2 Taxes, Benefits and Royalties 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, the Contract Price includes all applicable federal, state, and local taxes of every 
kind and nature applicable to the Services as well as all taxes, contributions, and 
premiums for unemployment insurance, old age or retirement benefits, pensions, 
annuities, or other similar benefits and all costs, royalties, and fees arising from the use 
on, or the incorporation into, the Services, of patented equipment, materials, supplies, 
tools, appliances, devices, processes, or inventions.  All claim or right to claim additional 
compensation by reason of the payment of any such tax, contribution, premium, costs, 
royalties, or fees is hereby waived and released by Consultant. 

5.3 Progress Payments 

A. Payment in Installments.  For each Project delineated and described in a 
Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, the Contract Price shall be paid in monthly 
installments in the manner set forth in the Task Order for such Project (“Progress 
Payments”). 

B. Pay Requests.  Consultant shall, as a condition precedent to its right to 
receive each Progress Payment, submit to Owner an invoice accompanied by such 
receipts, vouchers, and other documents as may be necessary to establish Consultant’s 
prior payment for all labor, material, and other things covered by the invoice and the 
absence of any interest, whether in the nature of a lien or otherwise, of any party in any 
property, work, or fund with respect to the Services performed under such Task Order.  
In addition to the foregoing, such invoice shall include (a) employee classifications, rates 
per hour, and hours worked by each classification, and, if the Services are to be 
performed in separate phases, for each phase; (b) total amount billed in the current period 
and total amount billed to date, and, if the Services are to be performed in separate 
phases, for each phase; (c) the estimated percent completion, and, if the Services are to 
be performed in separate phases, for each phase; and (d) Consultant’s certification that 
all prior Progress Payments have been properly applied to the Services with respect to 
which they were paid.  Owner may, by written notice to Consultant, designate a specific 
day of each month on or before which pay requests must be submitted. 

5.4 Final Acceptance and Final Payment 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, the Services, or, if the Services are to be performed in separate phases, each 
phase of the Services, shall be considered complete on the date of final written 
acceptance by Owner of the Services or each phase of the Services, as the case may be, 
which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  The Services or each 
phase of the Services, as the case may be, shall be deemed accepted by Owner if not 
objected to in writing within 30 days after submission by Consultant of the Services or 
such phase of Services for final acceptance and payment plus, if applicable, such 
additional time as may be considered reasonable for obtaining approval of governmental 
authorities having jurisdiction to approve the Services, or phase of Services, as the case 
may be.  For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to 

 
                                                42 of 131



 

 
-14- 

this Contract, Owner shall pay to Consultant, as soon as practicable after final 
acceptance, the balance of the Contract Price or, if the Services are to be performed in 
separate phases, the balance of that portion of the Contract Price with respect to such 
phase of the Services, after deducting therefrom all charges against Consultant as 
provided for in this Contract (“Final Payment”).  For each Project delineated and described 
in a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, the acceptance by Consultant of Final 
Payment with respect to the Services or a particular phase of Services under such Task 
Order, as the case may be, shall operate as a full and complete release of Owner of and 
from any and all lawsuits, claims, demands, damages, liabilities, losses, and expenses 
of, by, or to Consultant for anything done, furnished for, arising out of, relating to, or in 
connection with the Services or a particular phase of Services under such Task Order, as 
the case may be, or for or on account of any act or neglect of Owner arising out of, relating 
to, or in connection with the Services or a particular phase of Services under such Task 
Order, as the case may be. 

5.5 Deductions 

A. Owner’s Right to Withhold.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Contract and without prejudice to any of Owner’s other rights or remedies, for each Project 
delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, Owner shall 
have the right at any time or times, whether before or after approval of any pay request, 
to deduct and withhold from any Progress or Final Payment that may be or become due 
under such Task Order such amount as may reasonably appear necessary to 
compensate Owner for any actual loss due to:  (1) Services that are not in accordance 
with the Standard of Care, defective, damaged, flawed, unsuitable, nonconforming, or 
incomplete, or contain errors; (2) damage for which Consultant is liable under this 
Contract; (3) liens or claims of lien regardless of merit unless bonded over by Consultant 
or unless such liens were a result of Owner’s failure to comply with its payment obligations 
in this Contract;  (4) delay in the progress or completion of the Services unless due to 
causes that could not be avoided or controlled by Consultant; (5) inability of Consultant 
to complete the Services; (6) failure of Consultant to properly complete or document any 
pay request; (7) any other failure of Consultant to perform any of its obligations under the 
Task Order for such Project and this Contract; or (8) the cost to Owner, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and administrative costs, of correcting any of the aforesaid 
matters or exercising any one or more of Owner’s remedies set forth in Section 6.1 of this 
Contract; provided, however, that Owner has provided Consultant with advance written 
notice of any such event, and Consultant has failed to cure or if efforts to cure with due 
diligence such matter within ten business days after receipt of such written notice. 

B. Use of Withheld Funds.  Owner shall be entitled to retain any and all 
amounts withheld pursuant to Subsection 5.5A above until Consultant shall have either 
performed the obligations in question or furnished security for such performance 
satisfactory to Owner.  If such matter is not cured or commenced to cure by Consultant 
within ten business days after receipt of written notice from Owner as provided herein, 
Owner shall be entitled to apply any money withheld or any other money due Consultant 
under this Contract to reimburse itself for any reasonable amount for services and 
expenses directly attributable to remedy by Owner and chargeable to Consultant under 
this Contract. 

 
                                                43 of 131



 

 
-15- 

5.6 Accounting 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall keep accounts, books, and other records of all its billable 
charges and costs incurred in performing the Services in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, consistently applied, and in such manner as to permit 
verification of all entries.  Consultant shall make all such material available for inspection 
by Owner, at all reasonable times during this Contract and for a period of three years 
following termination of this Contract or any Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract.  
Copies of such material shall be furnished, at Owner’s expense, upon request. 

ARTICLE VI 
REMEDIES 

6.1 Owner’s Remedies 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, if it should appear at any time prior to Final Payment for all work that Consultant 
has failed or refused to prosecute, or has delayed in the prosecution of, the Services with 
diligence at a rate that assures completion of the Services in full compliance with the 
requirements of the Task Order for such Project and this Contract, or has attempted to 
assign the Task Order for such Project or this Contract or Consultant’s rights under the 
Task Order for such Project or this Contract, either in whole or in part, or has falsely made 
any representation or warranty in the Task Order for such Project or this Contract, or has 
otherwise failed, refused, or delayed to perform or satisfy any other requirement of the 
Task Order for such Project or this Contract or has failed to pay its debts as they come 
due (“Event of Default”), and has failed to cure or start to cure with due diligence any such 
Event of Default within ten business days after Consultant’s receipt of written notice of 
such Event of Default, then Owner shall have the right, at its election and without prejudice 
to any other remedies provided by law or equity, to pursue any one or more of the 
following remedies: 

1. Owner may require Consultant, within such reasonable time as may 
be fixed by Owner, to complete or correct all or any part of the 
Services that are defective, nonconforming or incomplete, or contain 
errors; to accelerate all or any part of the Services; and to take any 
or all other action necessary to bring Consultant and the Services 
into compliance with this Contract. 

2. Owner may accept the Services that are defective, nonconforming, 
incomplete, or dilatory, or contain errors, or part thereof, and make 
an equitable reduction in the Contract Price. 

3. Owner may terminate this Contract without liability for further 
payment of amounts due or to become due under this Contract. 

4. Owner may withhold from any Progress Payment or Final Payment, 
whether or not previously approved, or may recover from Consultant, 

 
                                                44 of 131



 

 
-16- 

any and all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
administrative expenses, incurred by Owner as the result of any 
Event of Default or as a result of actions taken by Owner in response 
to any Event of Default. 

5. Owner may recover direct damages suffered by Owner. 

6.2 Terminations and Suspensions Deemed for Convenience 

Any termination or suspension of Consultant’s rights under a Task Order issued 
pursuant to this Contract for an alleged default that is ultimately held unjustified shall 
automatically be deemed to be a termination or suspension for the convenience of Owner 
under Section 1.9 of this Contract. 

ARTICLE VII 
LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS AND REQUIREMENTS 

7.1 Binding Effect 

This Contract, and all Task Orders issued pursuant to this Contract, shall be 
binding upon Owner and Consultant and upon their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, and permitted successors and assigns.  Every 
reference in this Contract to a party shall also be deemed to be a reference to the 
authorized officers, employees, agents, and representatives of such party. 

7.2 Relationship of the Parties 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall act as an independent contractor in providing and performing 
the Services.  Nothing in, nor done pursuant to, this Contract or any Task Order issued 
pursuant to this Contract shall be construed (1) to create the relationship of principal and 
agent, partners, or joint venturers between Owner and Consultant or (2) to create any 
relationship between Owner and any subcontractor of Consultant. 

7.3 No Collusion/Prohibited Interests 

Consultant hereby represents and certifies that Consultant is not barred from 
contracting with a unit of state or local government as a result of (i) a violation of either 
Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 
5/33E-1 et seq.; or (ii) a violation of the USA Patriot Act of 2001, 107 Public Law 56 
(October 26, 2001) (the “Patriot Act”) or other statutes, orders, rules, and regulations of 
the United States government and its various executive departments, agencies and 
offices related to the subject matter of the Patriot Act, including, but not limited to, 
Executive Order 13224 effective September 24, 2001. 

Consultant hereby represents that the only persons, firms, or corporations 
interested in this Contract as principals are those disclosed to Owner prior to the 
execution of this Contract, and that this Contract is made without collusion with any other 
person, firm, or corporation.  If at any time it shall be found that Consultant has, in 

 
                                                45 of 131



 

 
-17- 

procuring this Contract, colluded with any other person, firm, or corporation, then 
Consultant shall be liable to Owner for all loss or damage that Owner may suffer thereby, 
and this Contract shall, at Owner’s option, be null and void. 

Consultant hereby represents and warrants that neither Consultant nor any person 
affiliated with Consultant or that has an economic interest in Consultant or that has or will 
have an interest in the Services or will participate, in any manner whatsoever, in the 
Services is acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of any person, group, entity or 
nation named by the United States Treasury Department as a Specially Designated 
National and Blocked Person, or for or on behalf of any person, group, entity or nation 
designated in Presidential Executive Order 13224 as a person who commits, threatens 
to commit, or supports terrorism, and neither Consultant nor any person affiliated with 
Consultant or that has an economic interest in Consultant or that has or will have an 
interest in the Services or will participate, in any manner whatsoever, in the Services is, 
directly or indirectly, engaged in, or facilitating, the Services on behalf of any such person, 
group, entity or nation. 

7.4 Assignment 

Consultant shall not (1) assign this Contract or any Task Order issued pursuant to 
this Contract, in whole or in part, (2) assign any of Consultant’s rights or obligations under 
this Contract or any Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, or (3) assign any 
payment due or to become due under this Contract or any Task Order issued pursuant to 
this Contract without the prior express written approval of Owner, which approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld; ; provided, however, that Owner’s prior written approval 
shall not be required for assignments of accounts, as defined in the Illinois Commercial 
Code, if to do so would violate Section 9-318 of the Illinois Commercial Code, 810 ILCS 
5/9-318.  Owner may assign this Contract or any Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, in whole or in part, or any or all of its rights or obligations under this Contract or 
any Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, without the consent of Consultant. 

7.5 Confidential Information 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, all information supplied by Owner to Consultant for or in connection with the 
Task Order for such Project or the Services under such Task Order shall be held 
confidential by Consultant and shall not, without the prior express written consent of 
Owner, be used for any purpose other than performance of the Services under such Task 
Order. Confidential information shall not include any information of Owner that is required 
by law to be disclosed to any governmental agency, provided that before making such 
disclosure, Consultant shall give Owner a written notice and an opportunity to object to 
the disclosure or take action to assure confidential handling of the information. 

7.6 Security 

A. Description.  For security purposes, Owner investigates the background of 
personnel at its facilities and personnel engaged to perform certain off-site services and 
implements other security measures as it determines are necessary from time to time 

 
                                                46 of 131



 

 
-18- 

(“Security Program”).  To obtain authorization to work at Owner’s facilities or to be 
engaged to perform Services under a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, 
Consultant and its subcontractors must comply with the requirements of Owner’s Security 
Program.  Consultant shall remain as fully responsible and liable for the acts and 
omissions of all subcontractors and their respective agents and employees in connection 
with Owner’s Security Program as it is for its own acts and those of its agents and 
employees. 

B. Background Investigations.  Consultant personnel, including subcontractor 
personnel, that (i) will require access to Owner’s facilities or (ii) will be engaged to perform 
Services under a Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract for which such Task Order 
requires the background of off-site personnel to be investigated shall submit all 
information requested by Owner in order to perform the necessary background 
investigations.  Background information required by Owner may include: 

1. Information needed to complete a Conviction Information 
Request Non-Fingerprint Form (for background checks, 
including conviction information, conducted by the Illinois 
State Police Bureau of Identification) 

2. Education History 

3. Military Service 

4. Character and Reputation References 

5. Verification of Identity 

6. Fingerprints 

No Consultant personnel, including subcontractor personnel, will be granted 
unescorted access to Owner’s facilities, nor shall any Consultant personnel, including 
subcontractor personnel, be engaged to perform Services under a Task Order issued 
pursuant to this Contract for which such Task Order requires the background of off-site 
personnel to be investigated, until any background investigation required by Owner has 
been successfully completed.  Owner reserves the right to order Consultant to remove 
from Owner’s facilities any personnel, including subcontractor personnel, who Owner 
determines pose a threat to the security of Owner or its facilities.  Any such person so 
removed shall not be engaged again on the Services. 

C. Search.  Consultant personnel and vehicles, including subcontractor 
personnel and vehicles, allowed on Owner’s property shall be subject to search when 
entering and leaving the property.  By entering the property, Consultant personnel, 
including subcontractor personnel, authorize Owner to perform or have performed such 
searches of their persons or vehicles. 

D. Identification Badges.  Owner shall issue identification badges to all 
Consultant personnel, including subcontractor personnel.  All such personnel shall pick 
up their identification badges prior to entry onto Owner’s property and shall return the 

 
                                                47 of 131



 

 
-19- 

badges at the end of each work day.  All such personnel shall wear the identification 
badges in a prominent manner at all times when working on Owner property. 

E. No Liability.  Neither Owner, nor any official or employee of Owner, nor any 
authorized assistant or agent of any of them, shall be responsible for the adequacy of 
Owner’s security precautions and programs or any liability arising therefrom. 

7.7 No Waiver 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, no examination, inspection, investigation, test, measurement, review, 
determination, decision, certificate, or approval by Owner, nor any order by Owner for the 
payment of money, nor any payment for, or use, occupancy, possession, or acceptance 
of, the whole or any part of the Services by Owner, nor any extension of time granted by 
Owner, nor any delay by Owner in exercising any right under the Task Order for such 
Project or this Contract, nor any other act or omission of Owner shall constitute or be 
deemed to be an acceptance of any Services which are  defective, nonconforming, or 
incomplete  or contain errors, nor operate to waive or otherwise diminish the effect of any 
warranty or representation made by Consultant; or of any requirement or provision of the 
Task Order for such Project or this Contract; or of any remedy, power, or right of Owner. 

7.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries 

No claim as a third party beneficiary under this Contract or under any Task Order 
issued pursuant to this Contract by any person, firm, or corporation other than Consultant 
shall be made or be valid against Owner. 

7.9 Notices 

All notices required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed received by the addressee thereof when delivered in person on a 
business day at the address set forth below or on the third business day after being 
deposited in any main or branch United States post office, for delivery at the address set 
forth below by properly addressed, postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested. 

Notices and communications to Owner shall be addressed to, and delivered at, the 
following address: 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 East Butterfield Road 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126-4642 
Attention: Paul D. May P.E., General Manager 

Notices and communications to Consultant shall be addressed to, and delivered 
at, the following address: 

 
                                                48 of 131



 

 
-20- 

Pete Mulvaney 
Director of Utility Management 
503 Monroe Avenue, Glencoe, IL  60022 
Attention:  Pete Mulvaney 

The foregoing shall not be deemed to preclude the use of other non-oral means of 
notification or to invalidate any notice properly given by any such other non-oral means. 

By notice complying with the requirements of this Section 7.9 Owner and 
Consultant each shall have the right to change the address or addressee or both for all 
future notices to it, but no notice of a change of address or addressee shall be effective 
until actually received. 

7.10 Governing Laws 

This Contract and each Task Order issued pursuant to this Contract, and the rights 
of Owner and Consultant under this Contract and each Task Order issued pursuant to 
this Contract, shall be interpreted according to the internal laws, but not the conflict of 
laws rules, of the State of Illinois. 

7.11 Changes in Laws 

Unless otherwise explicitly provided in this Contract or in a Task Order issued 
pursuant to this Contract, any reference to laws shall include such laws as they may be 
amended or modified from time to time. 

7.12 Compliance with Laws and Grants 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall give all notices, pay all fees, and take all other action that may 
be necessary to ensure that the Services are provided, performed, and completed in 
accordance with all required governmental permits, licenses, or other approvals and 
authorizations that may be required in connection with providing, performing, and 
completing the Services, and with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, and 
regulations, including without limitation the Fair Labor Standards Act; any statutes 
regarding qualification to do business; any statutes prohibiting discrimination because of, 
or requiring affirmative action based on, race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex, or 
other prohibited classification, including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., and the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 
5/1-101 et seq.  For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued 
pursuant to this Contract, Consultant shall also comply with all conditions of any federal, 
state, or local grant received by Owner or Consultant with respect to such Project or the 
Services under the Task Order for such Project. 

Consultant shall be solely liable for any fines or civil penalties that are imposed by 
any governmental or quasi-governmental agency or body that may arise, or be alleged to 
have arisen, out of or in connection with Consultant’s, or its subcontractors’, performance 
of, or failure to perform, the Services under any Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract or any part thereof. 

 
                                                49 of 131



 

 
-21- 

Every provision of law required by law to be inserted into this Contract or in a Task 
Order issued pursuant to this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein or therein. 

7.13 Documents 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, drawings, plans, specifications, photos, reports, information, observations, 
calculations, notes and any other reports, documents, data or information, in any form, 
prepared, collected, or received by Consultant in connection with any or all of the Services 
(the “Documents”) shall, upon payment to Consultant of all amounts due under such Task 
Order, be and remain the property of Owner and shall not, without the prior express 
written consent of Owner, be used for any purpose other than performance of the 
Services; provided, however, that any use thereof by Owner for purposes other than 
specifically anticipated in Consultant’s scope of Services shall be at Owner’s sole risk and 
cost.  At Owner’s request, or upon termination of this Contract or any Task Order issued 
pursuant to this Contract, the Documents shall be delivered promptly to Owner.  
Consultant shall have the right to retain copies of the Documents for its files.  Consultant 
shall maintain files of all Documents unless Owner shall consent in writing to the 
destruction of the Documents.  Consultant shall make, and shall cause all of its 
subcontractors to make, the Documents available for Owner’s review, inspection and 
audit during the entire term of this Contract and for five years after termination of this 
Contract. 

Nothing in this paragraph shall constitute or be constructed to be any 
representation by the Consultant that the work product is suitable in any way for any other 
project except the one detailed in this agreement.  Any reuse by the Owner shall be at 
the Owners sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Consultant. 

7.14 Time 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, Consultant shall work diligently to avoid delays and to complete each Project in 
a professional and timely manner, consistent with the Standard of Care. of the Task Order 
for such Project and this Contract.  Except where otherwise stated, references in the Task 
Order for such Project or this Contract to days shall be construed to refer to calendar 
days. 

7.15 Severability 

The provisions of this Contract and each Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract shall be interpreted when possible to sustain their legality and enforceability as 
a whole.  In the event any provision of this Contract or a Task Order issued pursuant to 
this Contract shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, in whole or in part, neither the validity of the remaining part of such provision, 
nor the validity of any other provisions of this Contract or such Task Order shall be in any 
way affected thereby. 

 
                                                50 of 131



 

 
-22- 

7.16 Entire Agreement 

For each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to this 
Contract, this Contract and the Task Order for such Project set forth the entire agreement 
of Owner and Consultant with respect to the accomplishment of the Services under such 
Task Order and the payment of the Contract Price therefor, and there are no other 
understandings or agreements, oral or written, between Owner and Consultant with 
respect to the Services under such Task Order and the compensation therefor. 

7.17 Amendments 

No modification, addition, deletion, revision, alteration, or other change to this 
Contract shall be effective unless and until such change is reduced to writing and 
executed and delivered by Owner and Consultant. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Consultant have caused this Contract to be 
executed in two original counterparts as of the day and year first written above. 

(SEAL) 

Attest/Witness: DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

By:  ___________________  By:  _________________________________  
    Paul D. May, P.E. 

 

Title:  ___________________  Title: General Manager 
  
 
Attest/Witness: CONSOR ENGINEERING, INC. 

By:  ___________________  By:  _________________________________  
   Gregg Hostetler 
Title:  ___________________  Title:   Executive Vice President 
  
 

 
                                                51 of 131



 

 
Page 1 of 10 

ATTACHMENT A 

DESCRIPTION OF BASIC SERVICES  

[TO BE USED IN DEVELOPMENT OF INDIVIDUAL TASK ORDERS] 

Consultant shall cooperate and work closely with representatives of Owner and 
other parties involved in each Project delineated and described in a Task Order issued 
pursuant to the Contract.  Consultant shall meet with Owner and such other parties, and 
shall provide such consultation, advice, and reports, as required to adequately perform 
its responsibilities under each such Task Order and the Contract.  For each Project 
delineated and described in a Task Order issued pursuant to the Contract, Consultant 
shall produce and deliver to Owner the results of its Services, plus any reports, 
documents, data, information, observations, or opinions set forth below that are required 
to be provided under the Task Order for such Project or requested by Owner, in form or 
format as set forth below or, if none, in form or format of Owner’s choosing. 

1. Study and Report Phase.  If Study and Report Services are to be provided under 
a Task Order, such Study and Report Services shall include one or more or all of 
the following as set forth in the Task Order: 

a. Review available data and consult with Owner to determine a mutually 
agreed upon program, schedule and preliminary construction budget. 

b. Provide analysis of Owner’s needs, planning surveys, and site evaluation 
and comparative studies of prospective sites and solutions. 

c. Provide economic analysis of various alternatives. 

d. Prepare, for review and approval by Owner, a report summarizing the Study 
and Report Services, together with Consultant’s opinion of probable Project 
Costs and Construction Cost of the Project and provide five copies and 
review them in person with Owner. 

2. Preliminary Design Phase.  If Preliminary Design Services are to be provided 
under a Task Order, such Preliminary Design Services shall include one or more 
or all of the following as set forth in the Task Order: 

a. Determine the general scope, extent and character the Project. 

b. Prepare preliminary design documents consisting of drawings, 
specifications, a written description of the Project and other documents 
appropriate for Project. 

c. Furnish five copies of the Preliminary Design Documents, together with 
Consultant’s revised opinion of probable Project Costs and Construction 
Cost of the Project, for review and approval by Owner, and review them in 
person with Owner. 

 
                                                52 of 131



 Task Order No. __  
 
 

 
Page 2 of 4 

3. Final Design Phase.  If Final Design Services are to be provided under a Task 
Order, such Final Design Services shall include one or more or all of the following 
as set forth in the Task Order: 

a. On basis of accepted Preliminary Design Documents and the revised 
opinion of probable Project Costs and Construction Cost of the Project, 
prepare pricing and quantity proposal forms, final drawings, and 
specifications for incorporation in the construction contract documents.  
Such drawings and specifications shall show the general scope, extent and 
character of the work to be furnished and performed by the construction 
contractor. 

b. Assist Owner by providing all required criteria, descriptions and design data 
and consulting with officials and Owner to obtain permits and to prepare 
other bidding/negotiation and construction contract documents. 

c. Furnish five copies of the proposal forms, drawings and specifications, 
together with Consultant’s revised opinion of probable Project Costs and 
Construction Cost of the Project, based upon the drawings and 
specifications and the other bidding/negotiation and construction contract 
documents, for review and approval by Owner, and review them in person 
with Owner. 

4. Bidding or Negotiating Phase.  If Bidding or Negotiating Services are to be 
provided under a Task Order, such Bidding or Negotiating Services shall include 
one or more or all of the following as set forth in the Task Order: 

a. Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or negotiating proposals.  
Maintain a record of prospective bidders to whom bidding documents have 
been issue and attend pre-bid or negotiation conferences. 

b. Issue addenda as appropriate and approved by Owner. 

c. Consult with and advise Owner as to the acceptability of contractors, 
subcontractors, suppliers and other persons if such acceptability is required 
by the construction contract documents. 

d. Consult with Owner as to acceptability of proposed substitute materials and 
equipment. 

e. Attend bid openings, prepare bid or negotiation tabulation sheets, and assist 
Owner in evaluating bids or proposals and in assembling and awarding 
construction contracts. 

 
                                                53 of 131



 Task Order No. __  
 
 

 
Page 3 of 4 

5. Construction Phase.  If Construction Services are to be provided under a Task 
Order, such Construction Services shall include one or more or all of the following 
as set forth in the Task Order: 

a. Furnish advice and consulting services during the construction period. 

b. Review, return and comment on shop drawings and other equipment 
drawings furnished by contractors for materials and equipment to be 
incorporated into the work.  Submittals shall be returned within 30 days of 
receipt by Consultant. 

c. Consult and advise on the interpretation of the construction contracts. 

d. Provide a representative to observe the construction of the work on a daily 
basis; such representative to be acceptable to Owner at all times.  On the 
basis of such observation, Consultant may disapprove of or reject 
construction work while it is in progress if it does not conform to the 
construction contract or will prejudice the integrity of the design concept. 

e. Assist Owner and field personnel in checking laboratory tests of 
construction materials and equipment which are to be incorporated into the 
work. 

f. Review contractors’ breakdown of cost, material quantities and scheduling. 

g. Prepare monthly estimates and certification of construction progress 
payments, and report to Owner as required to keep Owner informed on the 
progress of construction and to allow Owner to perform its obligations under 
the construction contracts. 

h. Prepare and submit proposed change orders to Owner for its consideration, 
approval or denial.  Consultant shall, when requested, submit 
recommendations on proposed change orders. 

i. Maintain daily records of construction, including logs of weather conditions, 
accident reports, work accomplished, manpower, equipment and materials 
used, and problems encountered. 

j. Schedule and attend preconstruction and job conferences and promptly 
prepare and circulate minutes thereof to all participants. 

k. Maintain files of correspondence, reports of job conferences, field orders, 
addenda, change orders, shop drawings, samples, progress reports, 
product data, submittals, handbooks, operations and maintenance 
manuals, instructions and other project-related documents. 

 
                                                54 of 131



 Task Order No. __  
 
 

 
Page 4 of 4 

l. Conduct final inspection of the construction work, and prepare punchlists 
for corrections and recommend, when the construction work is complete, 
final payment to the construction contractors. 

m. Prepare and continuously update drawings of record, and submit quarterly 
updates to Owner in electronic CADD files and/or other electronic file format 
acceptable to Owner operating on an IBM compatible microcomputer under 
a Windows operating system. 

6. Operational Phase.  If Operational Services are to be provided under a Task Order, 
such Operational Services shall include one or more or all of the following as set 
forth in the Task Order: 

a. Provide assistance in the closing of any financial, refinancing or related 
transaction for the Project. 

b. Assist Owner in training Owner’s personnel to operate and maintain the 
Project and develop systems and procedures for operation, maintenance 
and recordkeeping for the Project. 

 

 

 
                                                55 of 131



 
Page 1 of 10 

ATTACHMENT B 

FORM OF TASK ORDER 

In accordance with Section 1.1 of the Master Contract between the DuPage Water 
Commission (“Owner”) and Consor Engineering (“Consultant”), for Professional 
Engineering Services dated 5/23/2025 (the “Contract”), Owner and Consultant agree as 
follows: 

1. Project: 

Title:  

Owner’s Technical Advisory Team for Lake Michigan Regional Source Water 
Project. 

Description and Scope:  

(1) Provide technical and financial assistance in the form of advisory services to 
the DuPage Water Commission and associated stakeholders, as they seek the 
highest value water supply for the region.  

(2) To assist in the selection of a program manager. 

(3) To provide the technical, stakeholder engagement, and communications 
services that allow for a defined footprint and NEPA process such as 
bathymetric surveys and facilitate meetings with key agencies. 

2. Services of Consultant: 

A. Basic Services: 

 Advisory Services to complete the tasks identified in the Consultant 
proposal titled “Owner’s Technical Advisory Team, dated April 21, 2025. 

 A summary of hours per 2025 task is extracted from the proposal and 
provided here for convenience. 

 Task Description Total Hours 

1 Conduct / Update Business Plan 320 

2 Prepare Communications Outreach 
Plan 

135 

3 Prepare Concept Governance 
Structure 

220 

4 Facilitate Development of Project 
Website 

100 

 
                                                56 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 2 of 11 

5 Prepare Project Risk Register 60 

6 Prepare Conceptual Finance Plan 220 

7 Facilitate Bathymetric Vendor 
Selection  

120 

8 Commence Route Validation 200 

9 Facilitate Coordination Meeting w 
ACOE/IDNR 

80 

10 Prepare Project Delivery Program 
Management Alternatives 

150 

 

B. Additional Services: 

 Provide bathymetric services such as sonar, lidar, or other relevant 
technology and associated equipment and man power to develop a clear 
understanding of Lake Michigan lake bottom. 

 Additional services as authorized by the General Manager of the 
Commission which may not be currently defined or identified but become 
necessary to advance the project, which may include facilitating meetings, 
preliminary survey/geotechnical work, preparing documents, reviewing and 
generating documents for permit submittals. 

3. Approvals and Authorizations:  Consultant shall obtain the following approvals 
and authorizations: 

None 

4. Commencement Date: 

� the date of execution of this Task Order by Owner. 

� ______________ days following execution of this Task Order by Owner. 

� ______________ days following issuance of Notice to Proceed by Owner. 

X May 23, 2025 

 
                                                57 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 3 of 11 

5. Completion Date: 

For use with single phase projects or multiple phase projects with single 
completion date: 

� ______________ days following the Commencement Date plus extensions, 
if any, authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the 
Contract. 

� __________________________, 200__, plus extensions, if any, authorized 
by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

For use with multiple phase projects with separate completion dates: 

See attached Schedule Target Document / Gantt Chart 

A. Study and Report Phase: ______________ days following the 
Commencement Date plus extensions, if any, authorized by a Change 
Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

B. Preliminary Design Phase: ______________ days following issuance of 
Notice to Proceed by Owner plus extensions, if any, authorized by a Change 
Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

C. Final Design Phase: ______________ days following issuance of Notice to 
Proceed by Owner plus extensions, if any, authorized by a Change Order 
issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

D. Bidding or Negotiating Phase: ______________ days following issuance of 
Notice to Proceed by Owner plus extensions, if any, authorized by a Change 
Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

E. Construction Phase: ______________ days following completion by, and 
final payment to, the construction contractor plus extensions, if any, 
authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the 
Contract. 

F. Operational Phase: ______________ days following issuance of Notice to 
Proceed by Owner plus extensions, if any, authorized by a Change Order 
issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

G. ___________Phase: ______________ days following issuance of Notice 
to Proceed by Owner plus extensions, if any, authorized by a Change Order 
issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

 
                                                58 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 4 of 11 

6. Submittal Schedule: 

Submittal:  SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT Due Date: 

7. Key Project Personnel: 

Pete Mulvaney Telephone: 847 316 1498 

Guy Carpenter Telephone: 602-689-2678 

John Mastrachio Telephone: 518-391-8944 

8. Contract Price: 

� LUMP SUM TASK ORDER 

For use with single phase projects or multiple phase projects with 
single lump sum cost: 
For providing, performing, and completing all Services, the total Contract 
Price of: 

____________________________ Dollars and ________________ Cents 
(in writing)     (in writing) 

____________________________ Dollars and ________________ Cents 
(in figures)     (in figures) 

For use with multiple phase projects with separate lump sum 
amounts: 
For providing, performing, and completing each phase of Services, the 
following lump sum amount set forth opposite each such phase: 

 Phase Lump Sum 

 Study and Report $ 

 Preliminary Design $ 

 Final Design $ 

 Bidding/Negotiation $ 

 Construction $ 

 Operational $ 

 
                                                59 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 5 of 11 

____________________ $ 

� COST PLUS FIXED FEE TASK ORDER 

For use with single phase projects or multiple phase projects with 
uniform pricing: 
For providing, performing, and completing all Services, a fixed fee of 
$____________ plus an amount equal to Consultant’s Direct Labor Costs 
times a factor of _____ for all Services rendered by principals and 
employees engaged directly on the Project. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the total Contract Price shall not exceed 
$________________, except as adjusted by a Change Order issued 
pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

For use with multiple phase projects with separate pricing: 
For providing, performing, and completing each phase of Services, the 
following fixed fee set forth opposite each such phase, plus an amount 
equal to Consultant’s Direct Labor Costs times the following factor set forth 
opposite each such phase, for all Services rendered by principals and 
employees engaged directly on the Project, but not to exceed, in each 
phase of Services, the following not to exceed amount set forth opposite 
each such phase except as adjusted by a Change Order issued pursuant 
to Section 2.1 of the Contract: 

 
Phase 

 
Fixed Fee 

Direct Labor 
Cost Factor 

 
Not to Exceed 

Study and Report $  $ 

Preliminary Design $  $ 

Final Design $  $ 

Bidding/Negotiation $  $ 

Construction $  $ 

Operational $  $ 

                      $  $ 

 

 
                                                60 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 6 of 11 

X DIRECT COST TASK ORDER 

For use with single phase projects or multiple phase projects with 
uniform pricing: 
For providing, performing, and completing all Services, an amount equal to 
Consultant’s Direct Labor Costs times a factor of _____3.1_______ for all 
Services rendered by principals and employees engaged directly on the 
Project, plus an amount equal to the actual costs of all Reimbursable 
Expenses. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the total Contract Price shall not exceed 
$500,000, except as adjusted by a Change Order issued pursuant to 
Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

For use with multiple phase projects with separate pricing: 
For providing, performing, and completing each phase of Services, an 
amount equal to Consultant’s Direct Labor Costs times the following factor 
set forth opposite each such phase, plus an amount equal to the actual 
costs of all Reimbursable Expenses, but not to exceed, in each phase of 
Services, the following not to exceed amount set forth opposite each such 
phase except as adjusted by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 
2.1 of the Contract: 

 
Phase 

      Direct Labor Cost 
       Factor        

 
Not to Exceed 

 ADVISORY     3.1 $ 500,000 

 

 
 9. Payments: 

For purposes of payments to Consultant, the value of the Services under this Task 
Order shall be determined as follows: 

For use with Lump Sum Task Orders: 
Consultant shall, not later than 10 days after execution of this Task Order and 
before submitting its first pay request, submit to Owner a schedule showing the 
value of each component part of such Services in form and with substantiating 
data acceptable to Owner (“Breakdown Schedule”).  The sum of the items listed in 
the Breakdown Schedule shall equal the amount set forth in the Schedule of 
Prices.  An unbalanced Breakdown Schedule providing for overpayment of 
Consultant on component parts of the Services to be performed first will not be 

 
                                                61 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 7 of 11 

accepted.  The Breakdown Schedule shall be revised and resubmitted until 
acceptable to Owner.  No payment shall be made for Services until Consultant has 
submitted, and Owner has approved, an acceptable Breakdown Schedule. 

Owner may require that the approved Breakdown Schedule be revised based on 
developments occurring during the provision and performance of the Services.  If 
Consultant fails to submit a revised Breakdown Schedule that is acceptable to 
Owner, Owner shall have the right either to suspend Progress and Final Payments 
for Services or to make such Payments based on Owner’s determination of the 
value of the Services completed. 

OR 

For purposes of payments to Consultant, the value of the Services shall be 
determined by Owner on the basis of Consultant’s estimate of the proportion of 
total Services actually completed at the time of invoicing. 

For use with Cost Plus Fixed Fee Task Orders: 
Direct Labor Costs shall mean salaries and wages paid to all Consultant personnel, 
including all professionals whether owners or employees, engaged directly on the 
Project, but shall not include indirect payroll related costs or fringe benefits. 

The charge on account of the fixed fee shall be determined by Owner on the basis 
of Consultant’s estimate of the proportion of total Services or, if separate fixed fees 
are provided for different phases of Services, the proportion of total Services in 
that phase, actually completed at the time of invoicing. 

For use with Direct Cost Task Orders: 
Direct Labor Costs shall mean salaries and wages paid to all Consultant personnel, 
including all professionals whether owners or employees, engaged directly on the 
Project, but shall not include indirect payroll related costs or fringe benefits. 

Reimbursable Expenses shall mean the actual expenses incurred by Consultant 
directly or indirectly in connection with the Project, including expenses for 
transportation, telephone, postage, computer time and other highly specialized 
equipment, reproduction and similar Project related items. 

Payments for each phase of Services shall be based upon the Monthly billing for 
services rendered. 

10. Special Safety Requirements: 

NONE. 

 
                                                62 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 8 of 11 

11. Modifications to Contract: 

[none] 

12. Attachments: 

1. Gantt Schedule 

2. Consor Cost Schedule 

Approval and Acceptance: Acceptance and approval of this Task Order, including the 
attachments listed above, shall incorporate this Task Order as part of the Contract. 
 
The Effective Date of this Task Order is May 23, 2025. 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

By: ________________________________ 
 Paul D. May, P.E. 
 General Manager 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name:  Paul D. May, P.E. 
 
Title:   General Manager 
 
Address:  600 East Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 60126-4642  
 
E-mail Address: may@dpwc.org 
 
Phone: (630) 834-0100 
 
Fax:  (630) 834-0120 

 
                                                63 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 9 of 11 

Consor Engineering, Inc 

 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: __Gregg Hostetler___ 
 
Title: __Executive Vice President_________ 
 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name:  Pete Mulvaney 
 
Title:   Director Utility Management 
 
Address:  503 Monroe Avenue, Glencoe, IL 60022 
 
E-mail Address: pete.mulvaney@consoreng.com 
 
Phone:  847 316 1498 
 
Fax: NA 

  

 
                                                64 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 10 of 11 

Attachments 
 
Gantt Chart – Schedule of Deliverables 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
                                                65 of 131



 Task Order No. _01_  
 
 

 
Page 11 of 11 

 
Consor 2025 Cost Table 

 
 

NAME SALARY COST ($/Hr) 
Gregg Hostetler 132 
Pete Mulvaney  110 
Libby Bakke 106 
Brendan O’Sullivan 97 
Kerry Winkler 93 
Jasmina Markovski 84 
Emily Flock 70 
Erin Cutlip 49 

 
 
 

 
                                                66 of 131



 
 
 
 

 

R E Q U E S T  F O R  Q U A L I F I C A T I O N S  
 
 
 OWNER’S TECHNICAL ADVISORY TEAM 

-for- 
  

LAKE MICHIGAN REGIONAL SOURCE WATER PROJECT 
 
 
 

POSTED: 
March 21, 2025 

 
 

DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTAL: 
April 21, 2025, 1:00 PM 

 
 
 

Paul D. May, P.E. 
General Manager 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 East Butterfield Road 
Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 

(630) 834-0100 
may@dpwc.org

 
                                                67 of 131

mailto:may@dpwc.org


 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 12| 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
LAKE MICHIGAN REGIONAL SOURCE WATER PROJECT – OWNER’S TECHNICAL ADVISOR TEAM 

 
1) Introduction 

The DuPage Water Commission (DWC) is a unit of local government existing and operating under the 
State of Illinois Water Commission Act of 1985. The Commission is responsible for the financing, 
construction, acquisition, and operation of a water system to provide Lake Michigan water supply to 
municipal and private-utility customers in DuPage, Cook, and Will, and Kendall counties. The DuPage 
Water Commission currently provides water to 30 entities, ultimately providing water service to 1 
million consumers.  Average annual delivery is currently approximately 30 billion gallons/year to the 
service area. 

Since 1984, the DuPage Water Commission (DWC) has provided Lake Michigan water its service area 
beginning with a 40-year water purchase agreement with the City of Chicago, which terminated in 
2024 and has been extended 17 years to 2041.  In 2025, the water commodity purchase from the City 
of Chicago will be approximately $125M at a 2025 rate of $4.88/tgal, a rate increase of 375% over 20 
years, and 150% over the last 10 years.   

As the 2024 termination date 
approached, DWC engaged the City of 
Chicago in good faith negotiations to 
develop a long-term contract which 
would provide a more appropriate 
rate computation structure based 
upon the industry best-practice “cost-
of-service” methodology, and 
consistent with the contract recently 
approved between the City of Chicago 
and the City of Joliet.  Those 
negotiations have not been 
successful, and DWC is now leading an 
initiative to construct a new regional 
Lake Michigan Source Water Project, 
to serve DWC and other participating 
agencies/municipalities. 
 

 
                                                68 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 2 of 12| 

 

2) Regional Cooperation / Participation: 

The DuPage Water Commission (DWC) intends that the proposed source water project provide a 
regional solution for Lake Michigan water supply - not only for DWC, but for the larger region as well.  
It is apprecaited that a project of this scale is most ecnonomical and effective when a larger 
geographica and population area is contemplated and ultimately serviced by the proposed project.   

In this regard, DWC engaged the Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency 
(NSMJAWA), the Northwest Water Commission (NWC), and the Village of Glencoe (Glencoe) in the 
early plannning and study stages for this project.  As the initial studies concluded, NWC elected not to 
further participate as their current and projected rate from their supplier (City of Evanston), presents 
a lower rate than would be realized by participation in the regional source water project.  DWC 
remains engaged with the Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency (NSMJAWA) and 
the Village of Glencoe - both of which have shared interest in securing an improved long-term source 
water supply; NSMJAWA is currently supplied with Lake Michigan from the City of Chicago similar to 
the DWC supply-chain and is motivated by the desire for improved rate control and system 
management.  Glencoe currently operates its own water treatment plant, but contemplates a future 
where the investment to maintain and update the facility would be cost-prohibitive, and therefore 
seeks an improved alternative.  While Glencoe is not a significant demand from a water supply 
perspective, Glencoe’s position on the shore of Lake Michigan, and as an active community among 
north shore municipalities, makes it an important potential strategic partner.   DWC continues to hold 
regular meetings with the appointed/elected officials and leadership staff from these agencies and 
have developed a meaningful and collaborative relationship which acknowledges the shared interests 
and vision for the future of Lake Michigan water delivery in Northeastern Illinois. 

 
                                                69 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 3 of 12| 

 

3) Project Objectives: 

This generationally significant project will serve up to 2M citizens in Cook and DuPage Counties with 
over $3B in infrastructure investment expected to occur over 15 years.  The project will include a new 
Lake Michigan raw water intake in northern Cook County, a new regional drinking water treatment 
plant in northern Cook County, and distribution infrastructure including tunnels, pipelines, and 
pumping stations in Cook and DuPage Counties.  This project is supported by labor as well as 
professional industry representatives and has been presented to DWC municipal customers and 
representatives of the DMMC, where it is widely supported as well. 

The DWC regional source water project seeks to enhance prosperity, natural resource management, 
and business investment in Northeastern Illinois by constructing a new Lake Michigan Source Water 
System for suburban Chicagoland, in partnership with suburban municipalities and other regional 
source water providers.  This project will position suburban Chicagoland to utilize the Great Lakes 
natural resources endowed to the State of Illinois to provide a stable, predictable, and reliable supply 
of drinking water, thus leveraging our competitive advantage to attract business investment from less 
resource-plentiful parts of the nation and create job growth within the region.  New infrastructure 
will provide updated state-of-the-art technologies to address PFAS and other emerging contaminants 
and will replace aging infrastructure that is nearing the end of its life currently operated by the City of 
Chicago.  Importantly, the new regional water system will provide suburban consumers with 
governance participation and improved rate control and certainty. 

 
4) Background / Feasibility Report(s): 

Preliminary Study [Draft], 4/20/2023: 

DWC engaged Carollo Engineering to perform a Source Water Study in 2022 as a means of evaluating 
alternatives to the Chicago water purchase paradigm and to inform the negotiations with the City of 
Chicago.   The study identified three prospective routes to access Lake Michigan source water, north 
of Chicago, south of Chicago, and through Chicago.  The study was presented to the DWC Board of 
Commissioners in April 2023, and concluded that the construction of a new source water system for 
DWC (independently) was technically feasible and financially viable.  The Carollo study was entitled 
“Alternative Water Supply Study Report”, dated April 2023 and organized into technical 
memorandum including the following:  

 TM1: Design Criteria 
 TM2: Regulatory Review 
 TM3: Treatment Plant Conceptual Design 
 TM4: Conveyance Alternatives 
 TM5: Project Schedule 
 TM6: Cost Estimate 
 TM7: Water Rate Projections 

Separately, DWC engaged the utility financial advisory firm, Raftelis, to perform a review of the Carollo 
study and prepare a conceptual financing plan.  The Raftelis memorandum was dated August 14, 2023, 
and further confirmed the financial viability of the prospective project.   

 
                                                70 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 4 of 12| 

 

“North” Route Update with DWC, NWC, and NSMJAWA: 

DWC then further evaluated the 2023 Draft Study and concluded that the “North” route was most 
suitable for further consideration because it provided the opportunity to encompass a larger service 
area by engaging NSMJAWA, the Northwest Water Commission, and potentially other north shore 
communities; and avoided the complications of penetrating through the City of Chicago (Central 
Route), or progressing to the State of Indiana (south Route).  In order to further advance this concept, 
DWC reached out to NSMJAWA and NWC to determine their interest in the project.  Both agencies 
indicated interest, and an IGA was executed to share costs in an updated study of the “North” route 
with a larger system demand and associated infrastructure sizing.  Carollo commenced work on the 
updated report, which was completed in draft form in September 2023 and presented to the DWC 
Board of Commissioners on October 19, 2023, the “TM #8 - Expanded Alternative Water Supply 
System”.  This report concluded that the advancement of the “North” Route remained technically 
feasible, and that the financial conditions were improved when compared to a DWC-only system, 
providing a suitable alternative to Chicago supply.   

Following concurrent evaluation and consideration by the NSMJAWA Board and NWC Board, NWC 
indicated that the project was not deemed to be financially preferable to their current supply through 
the City of Evanston, and noted that they would decline to participate in the initial project.  DWC and 
NSMJAWA indicated that the proposal was worthy of further consideration and elected to refine the 
“North” Route study with NWC removed. 

“North” Route Update II with DWC and NSMJAWA: 

DWC and NSMJAWA authorized an IGA to share costs for the refinement study, and coordinated with 
Carollo to advance the study with updated capacities and finished water conveyance routes which did 
not include an initial connection to NWC (although it is remains possible that the project may provide 
a means of connecting to NWC in the future).   

This evaluation also included the concept of repurposing the DWC 90” and 72” water transmission 
lines through the western Cook County suburban communities.  Currently, these pipelines serve to 
convey flow from the City of Chicago Lexington Pumping Station to the DWC DuPage County Pumping 
Station in Elmhurst, but the Cook County communities traversed by these pipelines are not connected; 
they receive this water directly from Chicago.  DWC acknowledged that these municipalities may be 
prospective future customers of a regional system as they would be presented with shared 
governance participation on the DWC Board and access to a new water treatment system; a likely 
improvement compared to their existing water purchase contracts with the City of Chicago.  It was 
determined that 14 municipalities could be easily serviced through existing DWC infrastructure, equal 
to a projected 2050 Average Day Demand of 35 MGD for those communities.   

Based upon the projected service areas and flow projections (including DWC, NSMJAWA, and the Cook 
County collar communities) a water treatment plat size of 360 MGD and 250 MGD was evaluated, 
along with the associated raw water and finished water pipelines/tunnels.  Based upon the projected 
2040 peak-hour flow, an initial 250 MGD design capacity for Water Treatment Plant was identified as 
most appropriate.  However, it was also determined that the WTP should be expandable to 360 MGD 
if it becomes necessary to accommodate additional flow due to additional customers or increase 
consumption within the existing service area.  Also, it was determined that the raw water pipeline 

 
                                                71 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 5 of 12| 

 

should be oversized to a minimum 400 MGD capacity to serve any future demands that are not 
currently contemplated.   

This expanded report also included a more detailed evaluation of tunneling routes and considerations, 
performed by Brierly & Associates, and identified and evaluated several prospective sites for a future 
water treatment plant.  Additionally, the report was peer-reviewed by the engineering firm Burns & 
McDonnell and costs, schedule, and general design consideration were refined as a function of this 
exercise.   

The findings of this report were documented in “Technical Memorandum 9, Expanded Alternative 
Water Supply System Update (Draft)”, dated April, 2024.  The results indicated that the project as 
refined in this study remained technically feasible and financially viable, and presented a suitable 
preferred alternative to continued purchase of commodity water from the City of Chicago.  The study 
further concluded that a 15-year construction period was reasonable for the project.  In March 2024, 
DWC extended the existing Chicago Water Purchase Contract for a 17-year period, through March 
2041 to accommodate construction and commissioning of the new regional source water system. 

Index of Reports & Studes (to be provided upon request): 

 Alternative Water Supply Report (Draft), Carollo   April 2023 
  Board Presentation document     April 20, 2023 

 Technical Financial Memorandum (Draft), Raftelis   August 14, 2023 

 TM 8 - Expanded Alternative Water System Study (Draft), Carollo September 2023 
  Board Presentation document     October 19, 2023 
  Peer Review Document (Draft), Burns & McDonnell   January 29, 2024 

 TM 9 – Expanded Alternative Water Supply System Update (Draft) April 2024   
 
 

5) Project Schedule & Progress: 

Green Acres Golf Course:  in May 2024, DWC completed the purchase of the 127-acre “Green Acres” 
golf course in Northbrook Illinois.  The strategic importance of this acquisition cannot be overstated, 
as the property is extraordinarily unique due to its size, proximity to Lake Michigan, proximity to 
electrical facilities, and proximity to extended highway ROW and RxR corridors.  A conceptual site plan 
has been prepared for the site, and DWC staff remains engaged with Village of Northbrook officials 
relative to the possibility of siting municipal services on portions of the site.  DWC has commenced 
and will continue site maintenance activities, including landscape maintenance, tree removal, and 
installation of additional security gates at site entrances to restrict access and fly-dumping.  Near-
term activities on the property may include limited wetland remediation and the potential for site 
work, if necessary, to facilitate the negotiated transfer of a parcel along Dundee Road to Northbrook. 

Financing / Congressionally Directed Funding Marks:  DWC has been very intentional to include federal 
elected officials in project discussions and facilitated many coordination calls and meetings to present 
the vision for the project and describe the potential for economic benefit to our state and region.  At 
this time, DWC has been identified for marks for Congressionally Directed Spending in the amount of 
$1.5M, with federal sponsors Congressman Casten ($0.5M), and Congressman Krishnamoorthi ($1M).  

 
                                                72 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 6 of 12| 

 

It was previously expected that these funds will become available to the Commission in 2026, 
although it is likely the continuing resolution may impact the marks.   DWC has also been contacted 
by officials from the WIFIA program who indicated that the project would be a desirable candidate for 
favorable WIFIA funding. 

Technical Engagements and Validation:  The prospective project is large in scale and will be a 
significant construction project occurring over many years.  While all design/construction activities 
contemplated in the project are conventional in nature with a long history of success, the logistics and 
scale of the project present challenges which must be thoughtfully prepared for.  Therefore, DWC has 
facilitated many learning opportunities to ensure that DWC and prospective partners agencies 
enhance and expand our knowledge of best management practices, delivery alternatives, and lessons 
learned from other large projects.  These activities have included attendance at tunneling 
conferences, tours of other large projects currently under construction in the United States (notably 
the Houston WTP), and presentations from expert consultants on a variety of topics including: design-
build and alternative delivery, utility regionalization case studies, stakeholder involvement, tunneling 
in the Chicagoland area, source water intake design considerations, and program management 
options and alternatives.  These learning activities will continue as the project advances to ensure that 
our knowledge remains up-to-date and continually expanding. 

As indicated above, significant progress has been made to advance the Source Water alternative to 
the current position.  In order to maintain the viability of the project, it is now necessary to program 
and implement additional activities within the next year.  Following is a summary of tasks and 
activities; many of which will be performed under the engagement of external professional 
consultants/firms.  These items have been included in the draft budget which has been presented to 
the Board of Commissioners for consideration.   NSMJAWA is also preparing their budget to fund these 
activities.  
 

6) Technical Advisor Concept: 

DWC and participating partners have studied and validated the concept of the Regional Source Water 
Project and are now ready to advance into the next phase, intending ultimately to select a Program 
Manager(s) - tentatively scheduled for 2026 - to bring the project to successful completion prior to 
the termination of the Chicago Water Purchase Contract in 2041.   

In order to support staff resources and provide additional access to expertise and vendors, it is 
intended that a Technical Advisor Team be selected to become embedded with the DWC and 
participating partner leadership team through the duration of the project.  While the Technical 
Advisory personnel will not be required to be physically located at DWC, the team will consist of 
limited selected individuals who will be intimately involved with leadership decisions throughout the 
duration of the project, including review of Program Management Firms and selection of the same. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: Therefore, firms submitting for the Technical Advisor role will be precluded from 
submitting for any Program Management role(s) in the future.   

It is expected that the selected Technical Advisor would consist of one or more uniquely qualified 
individuals with the ability to marshal additional expertise and resources when needed, from within 
their firm(s) or from external vendors as necessary based upon the task.  It is strongly desired that the 
identified individuals will be committed to a presence within the leadership team for an extended 

 
                                                73 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 7 of 12| 

 

period of time, but especially for the period from 2025-2030; during which time critical decisions will 
need to be made in a nimble yet deliberate manner.  The mechanism for this contract will be 
negotiated following identification of the preferred Technical Advisor Team, and may be based upon 
a negotiated annual scope (updated/revised each year), time and materials methodology, or base 
services plus reimbursables (including sub-consultant and vendor contracts). 

It is our objective that this process will provide uniquely qualified, dedicated personnel resources 
which will remain consistent throughout the next several years.  These individuals will remain engaged 
with DWC and participating partners at all times, will organize, direct, and carry out preliminary 
activities, and will provide guidance to the leadership staff and boards of DWC and partner 
organizations regularly - including presentations at monthly meetings when requested.  It is also 
desired that these individuals will be able to utilize existing relationships to call upon and activate 
qualified additional resources, firms, and vendors when necessary to ensure the project moves 
forward; and that essential information is provided quickly and concisely, but also in a thorough and 
thoughtful manner. 

Essential capabilities of the Technical Advisory team members will include the following: 

 Professional Engineering experience within the water sector, including 

o Understanding and a history of leadership within the water sector, including management 
experience or counsel to a large municipal water provider. 

o Experience with large project delivery, including water or wastewater facilities. 

o Experience with alternative delivery methodologies, including a variety of design-build 
options. 

o Experience and deep understanding of the regulatory environment relative to water 
treatment requirements, and the associated alternatives for treatment methodologies. 

o Experience and deep understanding of the permitting environment relative to necessary 
permits for the construction of a Lake Michigan source water intake, raw water 
tunnel/piping system, large water treatment plant, finished water treatment conveyance 
tunnel/piping system, and pumping stations. 

o Experience with successful easement and right-of-way acquisition and negotiations 
including advancement of such in adversarial situations. 

o Deep understanding and experience with cost estimating, project scheduling, and 
identification and management of critical path items. 

o Understanding of financing conditions, sources, and alternatives, including WIFIA, market 
financing, revenue bonds, etc; and reporting requirements of the same. 

o Understanding and appreciation for Illinois-centric political, cultural, environmental, and 
labor-related issues, conditions, and requirements. 

o Understanding of legislative processes, procedures, and the associated powers currently 
provided to water Districts, Agencies, and Commissions. 

o Experience with preparation and management of risk profiles, registers, and guidance 
documents. 

 
                                                74 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 8 of 12| 

 

o Outstanding leadership, collaboration, and communication skills. 

o Proven capability to manage complex long-term projects and to organize and coordinate 
tasks effectively among a large number of participants and stakeholders. 

o The unique ability to anticipate and position for unforeseen conditions and the ability to 
pivot quickly and assign/reassign resources appropriately to ensure that issues are 
resolved in a manner that does not jeopardize advancement of the project. 

o Proven existing relationships internal to or external to the firm which can be relied upon 
to provide additional support when called upon. 

o Experience engaging and working with the railroads (desired) 

o Experience engaging and working with various government bodies in Northeastern Illinois 
including IDOT, ISTHA, IDNR, IEPA, Cook County, Cook County Forest Preserve, Lake 
County, MWRD, North Shore Sanitary District, north shore municipalities (desired) 

 Financial Advisory experience and expertise, including 

o Experience with complex financial computations and the ability to utilize economic 
forecasts to present a range of expected conditions for consideration relative to a 
comprehensive financial plan. 

o Experience with utility rate setting and forecasting. 

o Understanding of financing conditions, sources, and alternatives, including WIFIA, market 
financing, revenue bonds, etc; and reporting requirements of the same. 

o Experience with Capital Funding sources, including advisory work related to assembly of 
financing instruments, laddering and scheduling of the same, and approaches to manage 
capitalized interest. 

o Experience with preparation of Business Plans and strategic guiding documents for large 
projects. 

o Experience with the anticipation, identification, and management of financial risks 
associated with a long-duration project, including but not limited to interest rate risk, 
labor risk, commodity pricing, and capital availability. 

o Proven relationships within the financial sector to provide access to financial markets, 
banks, bond agents, and other vendors which would assist in preparing, vetting, 
organizing, and ultimately issuing financing documents in a competitive landscape. 

o Capability to provide computational analysis of a variety of rate structures, debt 
structures, construction costing methodologies, cash financing, cost sharing agreements, 
and loan and grant instruments, and the ability to modify, refine, and communicate 
creative solutions and alternatives to the same. 

o Demonstrated ability to communicate effectively and to present to public boards and 
stakeholders, as well as experts within the financing field. 

 

 
                                                75 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 9 of 12| 

 

7) Technical Advisor 2025 Scope of Services: 

The objective is to contract with a technical advisor team which has unique engineering and financial 
expertise to act as advisor and project agent to advance the project and which has the ability to facilitate 
strategically important activities and activate additional resources as necessary in support of the same.  
Expected tasks to include the following (tentative delivery dates are shown): 

 Conduct/update business plan (target delivery August 1, 2025) 

 Prepare communications/outreach plan (target delivery August 1, 2025) 

 Prepare concept governance structure alternatives document (on-going, target September 2025) 

 Facilitate development and management of project website (target delivery September 2025) 

 Prepare project risk register (target delivery September 2025) 

 Prepare conceptual financing plan (target delivery September 2025) 

 Facilitate selection of contractor/vendor(s) for water intake preliminary siting activities: 

(i) Lake bottom / bathymetry survey (target activity August/September 2025) 

(ii) Lake bottom geotechnical sampling permit submittal (target December 2025)- 

 Commence route validation / easement introduction meetings (target September 2025) 

(i) Union Pacific RxR (target September 2025) 

(ii) Botanic Gardens (target September 2025) 

(iii) Cook County Forest Preserves (target September 2025) 

(iv) IDOT (target September 2025) 

(v) IL Tollway (target September 2025) 

 Facilitate coordination meeting with ACOE/INDR regarding water intake (target October 2025) 

 Prepare project delivery / program management alternatives document (October 2025)  

 Commence preparation of NEPA submittal documents (begin in October 2025) 

Intermediate Activities List & Budget Planning (2026+) 

a) Lake bottom geotechnical sampling/cores (target June 2026) 

b) Select Program Management Firm  

c) Identify Construction Paradigm (conventional, design-build, hybrid, etc) 

d) Facilitate preparation of preliminary documentation for “joint permit” application to Army Corps 
of Engineers  

 
 
 
 

 
                                                76 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 10 of 12| 

 

8) Submittal Requirements 

Firms providing an RFQ may assemble and format their submittal in the manner that they feel best 
presents their understanding of the project and illustrates the necessary expertise and experience.  
 
Submittals shall consist of five hard copies (including one original) as well as a flash drive containing a 
single digital file (PDF format) of the RFQ. They shall be formatted as 8.5” x 11” page sizes and shall 
include the following information:  
 
 Project Understanding – provide your Team’s understanding of the project objectives, scope, 

and schedule. 

 Project Team - Include an organizational chart for the team as well as a resume and summary 
of representative work for each potential team member.  Include a verification that future 
workload commitments of the designees, will not adversely impact the capacity of the 
selected individuals to provide for the identified services for the duration of the initial scope.  
Additionally, the ability of the team to scale-up or scale-down depending upon the necessary 
workload and complexity of tasks at any given time is critical to the success of the project.  
Each RFQ shall provide insight regarding the Firm’s abilities/capacity in this regard, including 
a list of external resources and vendors to be utilized to support the project.  It is expected 
that the personnel listed in the firms RFQ will be available for use on this project and would 
be assigned and present on the project for the duration of the contract.     

 Project Approach - Describe Team’s approach to facilitating timely completion of the activities 
identified Section 7, with a timeline of activities and anticipated work hours, as well as 
external vendors engagement and deliverable targets.  

 Address areas of team leadership, communication, cost control, schedule control and quality 
standards. 

 Provide a summary of project planning critical path items, and the recommended approach 
for tracking and reporting on the same. 

 Provide a summary of communication and reporting goals, including submittal of written 
documents, and presentations to the Board(s).  

 Identification of any critical project elements that may arise or are anticipated, along with the 
Team’s recommended approach in addressing them 

 Firm Information - Provide Firm background, office address, contact information, etc. (any 
corporate partners or sub-consultants that may be involved should be identified as well) 

 Firm Qualifications & Relevant Firm Experience - Provide examples over the past five years, 
focused on regional, large-scale water or wastewater projects. Provide a detailed description 
of the project and the Firm’s role in it, key personnel, project date(s) and the Owner’s contact 
information. Experience in a Program Management for a large project and on WIFIA-funded 
projects is desirable.  

 

 
                                                77 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 11 of 12| 

 

Submitted RFQs shall be properly addressed with the name of the submitting Firm and the project 
name (Regional Source Water Project – Technical Advisor RFQ) clearly labeled on the outside of the 
packaging and delivered to: 

 
DuPage Water Commission 

600 E. Butterfield Road 
Elmhurst, IL 60126 

Attn: Paul D. May, P.E., General Manager 
 
All submittals shall be received by the Commission no later than the deadline provided on the title 
sheet of this RFQ. The Commission is not responsible for mailed submittals that are received after the 
stated deadline. Any submittals received after that time will not be considered and will be returned 
to the submitting Firm unopened. Submittals sent via email or facsimile will not be accepted by the 
Commission.   
 
The Commission reserves the right to reject any and all submittals and issue a subsequent RFQ if it is 
determined to be in the Commission’s best interest. It is to be understood and agreed by all submitting 
Firms that this RFQ does not obligate the Commission to be responsible for any costs incurred by a 
submitting Firm in the preparation and submission of an RFQ or any related tasks as herein described.  
 

9) Evaluation Process 

This RFQ has been advertised to Firms which the Commission considers qualified for this work and/or 
with whom the Commission maintains a current Master Services Agreement (MSA). Qualified Firms 
without a current MSA are also invited to submit RFQs. Any Firm ultimately selected to provide 
services through the process will be required to enter into an MSA with the Commission. A copy of 
the MSA is available upon request. Submittals will be reviewed by a panel of representatives from the 
Commission and participating partners based on the following criteria: 

 Selected individual qualifications 
 Project understanding & recommended approach 
 Firm and personnel experience on similar projects 
 Identification of critical elements and corresponding approach  
 Financial planning capabilities and experience 
 Proposed project support vendor/subconsultant relationships 

 
The Commission reserves the right to request further information from any submitting Team in order 
to complete the evaluation. Teams may also be requested to participate in an interview with the 
review panel at the Commission offices for further evaluation. Interviews shall consist of a 
presentation by the submitting party (no longer than two hours in duration) with an additional 60 
minutes reserved afterward for questions and answers.  
 
Following the initial submittal review, and any subsequent interviews, the panel may establish a 
shortlist of candidates for further engagement if warranted.  All Teams will be notified regarding their 
status upon final determination by the Commission.  
 

 
                                                78 of 131



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 12 of 12| 

 

Proposals for cost shall not be submitted at this time.  After identifying the most qualified team for 
the Technical Advisor role, a proposal will be requested for the scope of services and terms for a 12-
month period. 
 

10) Review Process and schedule 

The anticipated review process and schedule is as follows: 
 

March 21st      Advertisement of RFQ 
April 21st     Deadline RFQ submittal 
April 22 – April 25    Submittal review and evaluation 
April 28 – May 2   Firm interviews & second interviews (if necessary) 
May 2 – May 8   Contract / terms negotiation and preparation 
May 15    DWC Board Meeting / Contract Award 
 

 
11) Available Resource List (provided upon requests following receipt of NDA) 

 Alternative Water Supply Report (Draft), Carollo 
o Board Presentation document 

 Technical Financial Memorandum (Draft), Raftelis 

 TM 8 - Expanded Alternative Water System Study (Draft), Carollo 
o Board Presentation document 
o Peer Review Document (Draft), Burns & McDonnell 

 TM 9 – Expanded Alternative Water Supply System Update (Draft) 
 Master Services Agreement Contract Template 
 

Any information shared in association with this RFQ is to be considered confidential and shall not be 
shared with any party beyond the requesting Firm.  
 

12) Contact Information 

All questions, inquiries, and request for information should be directed to: 
 

Paul D. May, P.E. 
General Manager 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road 

Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 
(630) 834-0100 
may@dpwc.org 

 
                                                79 of 131

mailto:may@dpwc.org


PROPOSAL FOR  

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

Owner’s Technical 
Advisory Team
LAKE MICHIGAN REGIONAL  
SOURCE WATER PROJECT 

Prepared by: Consor North America, Inc. 

April 21, 2025

 
                                                80 of 131



|   1

6505 Waterford District Drive, Suite 470
Miami, FL 33126 
p: 847.316.1498

CONTACT INFORMATION

Pete Mulvaney, PE
p: 847.316.1498
e: Pete.mulvaney@consoreng.com
6505 Waterford District Drive,  
Suite 470
Miami, FL 33126 

KEY SUBCONSULTANTS 
Each subconsultant partner listed 
below is designated to be eligible 
for contracts awarded under 
subsequent procurements:
• Raftelis
• Woolpert

April 21, 2025

DuPage Water Commission 
Attn: Paul D. May, P.E., General Manager
600 E. Butterfield Road
Elmhurst, IL 60126-4642

RE: DuPage Water Commission - Owner’s Technical Advisory Team for Lake 
Michigan Regional Source Water Project

The DuPage Water Commission (DWC) has embarked on a mission to identify 
and secure the lowest cost, highest quality drinking water for its current and 
future customers of DuPage and Cook Counties. Once completed, the DuPage 
Water Commission will transform the way we manage Great Lakes water in 
Illinois. There is no achievement more important for public health and the 
economy of the northwestern suburbs than attaining a long-term, reliable, 
and safe water supply. We are excited for the opportunity to participate. 

Our team understands and shares your vision to develop this critical supply 
effectively, cost efficiently, and in a timely manner. To answer your request, 
we have assembled a small team of highly qualified experts . Pete Mulvaney 
will lead the team, with support from John Mastracchio from Raftelis and 
Guy Carpenter from Woolpert; our team will be known as the DuPage Water 
Advisors, and we will serve as trusted advisors to DWC and its partners. 

Introductory Letter

DWC is seeking advisory services to guide and support the Commission in its vision. This will include stakeholder 
engagement, project planning, evaluation of contracting options, communications, and procurement and project 
management support. The DuPage Water Advisors bring you: 

Proven Experience - The DuPage Water Advisors have led and supported major infrastructure programs—as owners, 
advisors, and project engineers. We’ve done this before. And we’re ready to bring hard-earned lessons and practical 
guidance to help your Lake Michigan Regional Source Water project succeed.

Connected and Insightful Leadership  - Pete, John, and Guy bring deep connections across the water, infrastructure, 
and finance sectors. Whether it’s tapping technical expertise, understanding stakeholder dynamics, or solving complex 
challenges, we know where to turn—and how to deliver. 

Trusted Advisors - As trusted advisors, we offer both stability and momentum. We guide decision-making during times of 
uncertainty and help reduce risk by clearing the path for smart, timely investments.

Guy, John and I are senior leaders in our respective firms and in our industry. We are honored to be considered for 
this vital effort. The DuPage Water Advisors are ready to begin this journey with you—bringing clarity, confidence, and 
dedication to every step of the process. We look forward to partnering with the DuPage Water Commission to advance 
this transformational project and secure a sustainable water future for the region.

Sincerely, 
Consor 

Pete Mulvaney
Lead Advisor

 
                                                81 of 131



Table of Contents

Proposal

I N T R O D U C TO R Y  L E T T E R  P r e c e e d s

TA B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S  C u r r e n t

F I R M  I N F O R M AT I O N   

Firm Background 3

Subconsultant Partners 4

F I R M  Q UA L I F I C AT I O N S  & R E L E VA N T  F I R M 

   E X P E R I E N C E  5

P R O J E C T  T E A M  8

P R O J E C T  U N D E R S TA N D I N G  

Understanding, Objective, Scope 1 2

Schedule 1 3

P R O J E C T  A P P R O A C H  1 6

Appendix A

R E S U M E S  3 1

 
                                                82 of 131



|   3DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

C

FIRM BACKGROUND

Experts in Essential Public Water Facilities

For over 45 years, Consor has helped public agency clients identify 
sound solutions to their infrastructure needs in all areas of planning, 
analysis, design, and construction management. From the development 
of projects at the conceptual design level through the final site selection 
and design, we are experts in the pumping, treatment, storage, and 
transmission of municipal drinking water. 

Our team members have helped guide communities similar to DWC’s 
through the development of generational drinking water supply 
programs. We offer specialized experience and technical competence 
gained through decades of planning, implementing, and facilitating new 
initiatives for water utilities and municipalities. With Consor, DWC gains 
the experience and capacity of a national firm, paired with the agility, 
responsiveness, and local insight of a trusted advisory team. We 
tailor each approach to meet critical milestones and deliver high-quality 
results—efficiently and effectively.

At Consor, we know that every drop makes an impact. 
That’s why, for more than 45 years, we’ve specialized in the 
funding, planning, design, and construction management 
of water infrastructure. 

Firm Information

WATER TREATMENT & SUPPLY PROJECTS 
FOR PUBLIC AGENCIES

300+

Y E A R S  I N 
B U S I N E S S45 of our work 

is for public 
agencies

N U M B E R  O F  E M P L O Y E E S

1790
WATER SUPPLY PLANNING 
WATER INFRASTRUCTURE DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
ADVISORY SERVICES

OFFICE ADDRESS
6505 Waterford District Drive,  
Suite 470
Miami, Fl 33126

CONTACT INFORMATION
Pete Mulvaney, PE
p: 847.316.1498
e: Pete.mulvaney@consoreng.com

Areas of Expertise 

of our work is 
repeat business

94%

Our Keys to Project Success

RESPONSIVE CLIENT 
SERVICE

TEAM 
COLLABORATION 
 

CREATIVE, PRACTICAL 
SOLUTIONS

ATTENTION TO 
DETAIL

 
                                                83 of 131



|   4DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Founded in 1993, Raftelis provides trusted 
financial and management consulting services 
to public utilities and local governments. With a 
national team of 220 professionals—including 191 
consultants and 29 support staff—Raftelis works 
side-by-side with organizations to develop financial 
policies, business processes, and customer rate 
structures that promote financial sustainability and 
equitable cost recovery—ensuring alignment with 
agency and community goals. 

Financial and Capital Planning
As infrastructure demands grow, local governments 
and utilities face the challenge of prioritizing limited 
resources. Raftelis helps agencies develop robust, 
flexible financial plans that:

KEY SUBCONSULTANT PARTNERS

Woolpert is a premier architecture, engineering, 
geospatial (AEG), and strategic consulting firm 
with more than 2,700 employees and 60+ offices 
across five continents. Woolpert partners with 
public, private, and government clients to deliver 
innovative, integrated solutions worldwide.

Infrastructure & Geospatial Capabilities 
Woolpert provides infrastructure capabilities 
spanning water, energy, transportation, and 
aviation services. In addition, Woolpert is a leader 
in geospatial capabilities worldwide, including 
aerial, bathymetric, and hyperspectral assessment 
services. Their experts are experienced in the 
planning and implementation of intakes/outfalls, 
pipeline alignment studies and designs, easement 
assessments and acquisition, pipeline condition 
assessment and rehabilitation, pump stations, and 
facilities. They also specialize in easement surveys, 

• Forecast operations and maintenance (O&M) costs

• Evaluate funding strategies for critical capital improvements

• Project customer accounts and usage information

• Monitor long-term financial performance and sustainability

Their capital planning support also includes strategies to manage 
risk and ensure sufficient resources are available to meet both 
current and future needs.

Utility Rate and Fee Affordability Analysis
Raftelis assists in designing and implementing affordability 
programs tailored to your community’s needs—while minimizing 
any administrative and cost impacts. They conduct a financial 
capability assessment at the utility level, so you can assess your 
ability to address growing needs for capital investment. There 
are a number of ways to ensure customer affordability, including 
implementing bill assistance programs, water efficiency programs, 
or by incorporating affordability programs directly into your rate 
structure.

acquisition, and have performed easement and corridor studies 
for numerous energy, water, transportation, and other linear 
infrastructure assets across the country.

Specialized Bathymetric Mapping Services
Woolpert’s bathymetric mapping capabilities are highly 
specialized, and their team is uniquely qualified to support coastal 
and inland water projects. Their hydrographic professionals hold 
advanced degrees and certifications, including: professional land 
survey licenses, CG Captains Licenses, CDL and DOT certifications, 
extensive training, and certifications by the ACSM/THSOA. 
Their staff bring decades of professional experience acquiring 
multibeam, single-beam, side-scan, and sub-bottom sonar 
data in challenging coastal environments. The hydrographic 
surveys performed by Woolpert adhere to IHO, USACE and NOS 
Hydrographic Survey Standards and are supervised by certified 
hydrographers and professional land surveyors.

Woolpert’s unique blend of geospatial, bathymetric, infrastructure, 
easement, and strategic consulting services makes them an ideal 
partner for the Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project. Their 
team is ready to support DWC in delivering this critical and future-
focused water initiative.

 
                                                84 of 131



|   5DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Firm Qualifications & Relevant Firm Experience

The Consor team has supported agencies throughout the country with drinking water supply programs. The following 
projects highlight our team’s experience delivering similar conceptual engineering and owner’s advisory services over the 
past five years. 

Willamette Water Supply Project
Tualatin Valley Water District, City of Hillsboro, & City of Beaverton, OR

C O N TA C T:  Niki Iverson, Water Director • City of Hillsboro Water Department & 
Joint Water Commission • 150 East Main Street, Third Floor, Hillsboro, OR 97123 • 
p: 503.615.6770, 503.956.8914 • e: niki.iverson@hillsboro-oregon.gov

H I G H L I G H T S:  Willamette River water supply project that includes an intake, 
new water treatment plant, transmission pipelines, and water reservoir • Similar 
communications and permitting related risks and mitigation • Communications and 
permitting support from early planning through design and construction

KEY STAFF: Libby Barg Bakke

Libby is the communications consultant team lead for the Tualatin Valley Water 
District, the City of Hillsboro, and the City of Beaverton’s regional Willamette Water 
Supply Program, which includes a water treatment plant, 30+ miles of pipeline, and 
a water reservoir being constructed in Washington County over 10 years. Public 
engagement efforts on the project began during supply planning and continued 
the construction of the 30-mile pipeline, running through five communities and 
unincorporated Washington County. Outreach includes website development 
and maintenance; virtual and in-public open houses; community meetings and 
elected official briefings; monthly e-blast updates; articles in the community 
newspapers and city newsletters; direct mailings; educational video; construction 
communications; and groundbreakings and ribbon-cutting events. This program 
benefited from a WIFIA loan attained early in the Program.

PROGRAM 
TIMELINE

Preliminary Planning 
(Communications & 

Permitting) 
2014-2016

Supply Studies 
(Communications) 

2012-2013

Design, Permitting, 
and Construction 

(Communications & 
Permitting 
2016-2024

Hualapai Project Suite Program
Hualapai Tribe, AZ

C O N TA C T:  Philip Wisely • Hualapai Tribe • 941 Hualapai Way Peach Springs, AZ 
86434 • p: 928.715.8249 • e: philip.wisely@hualapai-nsn.gov

H I G H L I G H T S:  Colorado River water rights • Congressional Authorization • 60 
miles of watermain and treatment plant • CM/GC approach

KEY STAFF: Pete Mulvaney, Greg Hostetler

Consor currently serves as the design manager for the Hualapai Tribe’s innovative 
project bundle, which is being delivered with CM/GC. The Hualapai Infrastructure 
Program is a transformational bundle of more than 30 projects that will be 
rapidly delivered to enhance the quality of life for all Hualapai and preserve their 
heritage for future generations. It includes projects for water, transportation, 
community recreation, and tribal facilities, as well as capacity building/planning, 
operations, and maintenance. Signature projects include a community recreation 
park, an administration building, a large BNSF railroad overpass, major roadway 
construction, a new veterans memorial, and the Grand Canyon Water Rights 
settlement agreement pipeline. These projects are estimated to have more than 
$600M in construction and will be delivered over the next three to four years.

PROGRAM 
TIMELINE

Design Initiation 
May 2024

Signed Contract
May 2024

Recreation Park Ground 
Breaking

June 2024

Anticipated system 
completion 

In Progress - 2026

Administration Facility 
Ground Breaking

Nov 2024

NEPA/EIS Kickoff
Dec 2024

Program Completion
Dec 2029

 
                                                85 of 131



|   6DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Groundwater Supply Development 
Program Rockwood Water People’s Utility 
District (RWPUD)/City of Gresham, OR

CONTACT: Kari Duncan, General Manager, RWPUD • 19601 
NE Halsey, Portland, OR 97230 • p: 503.665.4179 •  
e: kduncan@rwpud.org

HIGHLIGHTS: New water supply system owned by RWPUD and 
Gresham • Independence from Portland water supply • Funded by 
WIFIA

KEY STAFF: Libby Barg Bakke

The Consor team represented the owners for one of the largest new water supply 
systems built in Oregon in the last 100 years. The Consor team was integral in the 
early planning and design projects with both RWPUD and the City of Gresham that set 
the stage for this $120-million WIFIA-funded water supply program. Consor assisted 
the District with the development of the first three groundwater wells that validated 
the feasibility of a major regional groundwater supply. In 2018, Consor helped RWPUD 
and Gresham develop the Master Plan for the Cascade Groundwater Development 
Program. The program includes eleven wells, three water treatment plants to remove 
iron and manganese, miles of new transmission mains, new reservoirs, new and 
updated pump stations, and other system improvements necessary to allow RWPUD 
and Gresham to become water providers for their communities without having to 
purchase water from the City of Portland as they have since 1912.

The Program consists of nine project packages that will provide up to 30 MGD, 
operational in 2025. Consor has been involved in design and construction of seven of 
the nine packages.

PROGRAM TIMELINE

30” Finished Water 
Transmission Main 

2005

Cascade Well No. 5 
2008

Cleveland Reservoir 
Rehabilitation & Booster 

Pump Station
2013

Groundwater Development 
Master Plan 

2018

Grant Butte Reservoir & 
Pipeline Seismic Upgrade 

2019

Water System  
Master Plan Update 

In Progress

Package 1 Design, Permitting, 
Bidding, & Construction

2022

Package 2A Design, 
Permitting, & Bidding

In Progress

Package 2B Design, 
Permitting, & Bidding

In Progress

Package 3 Design,  
Permitting, & Bidding

In Progress

Package 4 Design,  
Permitting, & Bidding

In Progress

Water System 
Master Plan 

2004

 › Package 1: New well, new 6.0 MG 
reservoir, rehabilitation of an existing 4.0 
MG welded steel reservoir, and multiple 
new large diameter water mains.

 › Package 2A: 8,000 LF of 16-inch 
diameter transmission main and 5,000 LF 
of 12-inch diameter distribution main

 › Package 2b: 14,000 LF of 24- and 36-inch 
diameter resilient DI transmission main, 
corrosion protection, and a tunnel under 
TriMet railroad tracks.

 › Package 3: New 141st Avenue Water 
Treatment Facility, rehabilitated reservoir, 
and pump station improvements.

 › Package 4: 30 MDG water treatment 
plant and pump station, 42-inch steel 
yard piping, backwash storage and 
discharge, a new vehicle storage building, 
emergency power generator, new SCADA 
and controls, and site improvements.

 › Package 6: New groundwater production 
well facility at Kirk Park and raw water 
transmission pipeline.

 › Package 7: Site improvements, new well, 
and associated piping to serve the City of 
Gresham.

 › Package 8: New North Meter Station 
for the City of Gresham and new 
transmission mains to connect the 
Package 2B pipeline to Gresham’s Grant 
Butte Terminal Reservoir. 

 
                                                86 of 131



|   7DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Bull Run Treatment Program Communications
Portland Water Bureau, OR 

C O N TA C T:  David Peters, PE, Engineering Manager • Portland Water Bureau, 
OR • 1221 SW 4th Ave, Portland, OR 97204 • p: 503.823.8462 • e: david.peters@
portlandoregon.gov

H I G H L I G H T S:  • Portland’s first water filtration plant • Strategic planning for EPA 
mandates

KEY STAFF: Libby Barg Bakke

As part of a Program Management team, Consor leads communications for 
this $2 billion, decade-long project. Consor’s work includes the development 
of a communications framework plan, public opinion research, long-term 
communications planning, program messaging, and implementation of a full suite 
of communications tools, including monthly e-news updates, fact sheets, website 
content, postcards and mailers, community surveys, City Council presentations,  
and supporting the development of the WIFIA Letter of Interest and organizing 
a press conference upon WIFIA loan closing. The Consor team also plans and 
facilitates neighbor meetings and provides support for land use communications 
and outreach.

PROGRAM 
TIMELINE

Financial Feasibility of Alternative Water 
Supply Project
DuPage Water Commission

C O N TA C T:  Paul May, General Manager  • DuPage Water Commission • 600 E 
Butterfield Rd, Elmhurst, IL  60126 • p: 630.834.0100 • e: may@dpwc.org

P R O J E C T  H I G H L I G H T S:  • Unit Water Cost Analysis review • Conceptual 
Financing Plan

KEY STAFF: John Mastracchio, Tom Beckley

PROGRAM 
TIMELINE

Financial Feasibility
6/16/22 - 12/31/23

Raftelis was engaged by the DuPage Water Commission to prepare a conceptual financing plan to support DWC’s 
Alternative Water Supply Project. Work entailed reviewing the anticipated project cost and timing and preparing a long-
term conceptual financial plan that considered various financing options for the project, including IEPA Public Water 
Supply Loan Program, WIFIA, conventional municipal bonds, and alternative project delivery approaches like DBOF.  The 
effort included weighing the advantages and disadvantages of these options and preparing financial modeling scenarios 
showing the projected annual cash flow needs and water rates that would be necessary to fund the cost of the project.  
The financial projections under various options were compared to a status quo scenario of continuing to purchase water 
from the City of Chicago. This analysis helped support a financial feasibility opinion regarding the Alternative Water Supply 
Project. Upon conclusion of the analysis, Raftelis supported DWC by presenting findings and results at a commission 
meeting.

Design Phase
2020

Bi-Lateral Compliance 
Agreement

2017

Planning Phase
2018

Construction Phase
2024

Required Completion
2027

 
                                                87 of 131



|   8DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Project Team

Regional experts you know and can trust to be with you from start to finish.

We are proposing a small experienced team to earn the position of “trusted advisor”, but do know we have access to a 
deep stable of staff from our respective firms. Pete Mulvaney will lead this team, with Guy Carpenter as his Deputy. These 
two local leaders have worked together on large programs and policies, and are both well-known leaders in the industry. 
To round out the expertise needed to address the scope, we have selected Woolpert, a firm which complements Consor’s 
skills and culture, and Raftelis, the nation’s leader in infrastructure finance. We do not believe you need a large complex 
organizational chart for your advisors; only a few of the best, with demonstrated access to the rest.

Legend (Subconsultants):
1 - Raftelis
2  - Woolpert
3  - RailPro

Organizational Chart

LEAD ADVISOR
Pete Mulvaney 

GENERAL MANAGER 
Paul D. May, PE

Resumes for our key staff can be 
found in Appendix A.

TECHNICAL  
ADVISOR

Libby Barg Bakke 

PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING 

Gregg Hostetler, PE 

FINANCIAL  
ADVISOR 

John Mastracchio1 

DEPUTY ADVISOR
Guy Carpenter, PE 2 

SUPPORT STAFF

NEPA, Federal Regulations
Kerry Winkler

Financial Advisory Support
Tom Beckley
Chad Cowan

Plant Design
Jasmina Markovski, PhD

Tunneling/Trenchless
Brendan O’Sullivan, PE

Paul Smith

UPRR Coordination 
Jen Drake

Easements
Steve Kreger

Bathymetry
Nick George

Architecture
Donna Becco-Schroeder

1
1

2

3

2

2

2

 Key Staff

 
                                                88 of 131



|   9DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Workload Verification, Flexibility, and Availability of Assigned Personnel
Our team recognizes that workloads are not flat; at times, the project team will need to scale-up or scale-down depending 
on the workload and complexity of tasks. We understand this program may sometimes demand more than 40 hours per 
work week, and at other times, less. We have procedures and protocols to manage these fluctuations. Further, this team 
has anticipated serving DuPage Water Commission as advisors for some time, putting in place the necessary flexibility in 
our schedules. Future workload commitments of the team, as noted in more detail in the team member introductions 
below, will not adversely impact the capacity of selected individuals to provide for the identified services for the duration 
of the initial scope. Finally, we have each achieved a level of seniority that we have control over which clients and 
projects we serve, and we have all chosen DuPage Water Commission’s Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project. 
Our proposed personnel are committed to this project for the duration of the contract. Our key staff availability and 
commitment statements are included below. 

Pete Mulvaney

Experience:
25 years

Education:
MBA, Business 
Administration, Kellogg  
School of Management

MS, Pollution Control, 
Civil, and Environmental 
Engineering, Pennsylvania 
State University

BA, Psychology, The University 
of Colorado

LEAD ADVISOR
Pete, the project lead, will be available up to 40 hours per 
week to the DuPage Water Commission – Lake Michigan 
Regional Source Water Project. Pete has a great deal of 
flexibility to scale up and down as needed. Pete is currently 
leading a water program for the Hualapai Tribe, and in 
anticipation of this opportunity, has instilled a succession plan 
for most of his responsibilities. This allows him to be up to 
100% dedicated to the Lake Michigan Regional Source Water 
Project, and engage with the Hualapai as needed to balance 
his time.

 h Comprehensive understanding the Great Lakes, Lake 
Michigan, and the Illinois water paradigms

 h Deep understanding of Chicago region’s hydrologic systems

 h Relevant relationships with local expertise

 h Understanding of the water politics between urban and 
suburban communities 

 h Proven leader of people and infrastructure teams

 h Expertise in both design and construction of large complex 
infrastructure

 h In-depth understanding of the regulatory process

Essential capabilities of your Advisory team 
members

Leadership

Availability and Commitment 

“This project has generational impacts on the dynamics of Illinois’ water management 
paradigm, it will drive changes that are much needed, and has the potential to serve as a 
model throughout the Great Lakes. I would consider it a privilege to be involved as DWC’s 
advisor, a responsibility that I feel prepared to accept.”  - Pete 

 
                                                89 of 131



|   10DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Guy, Deputy to Pete, will be available up to 30 
hours per week for the DuPage Water Commission’s 
Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project. Guy 
will augment our advisory leadership with his 30-
year history of leading regionally transformative 
infrastructure projects, and provide a backup for Pete 
and team as needed.

John, our lead Financial Advisor, will be available 
up to 32 hours per week to support and advise the 
DuPage Water Commission on the financial aspects 
of the project. John will be supported by Tom Beckley, 
who has prior experience working for DWC, and Chad 
Cowen, who is a financing advisor. 

Libby will be available for up to 16 hours per week, 
with flexibility to provide up to 30 hours per week 
during the initial development of the communications 
plan and website. She will also support outreach 
implementation, and facilitate workshops and meetings 
so that stakeholder voices are heard, information is 
shared, and decisions are made.

Communication

Finance

Essential capabilities of your Advisory team 
members

Leadership

 h Large capital program management

 h Stakeholder facilitation & governance

 h Municipal utility operations

 h Permit tracking and bird-dogging

 h Regulation & policy development and 
implementation

 h More than 25 years of water strategic planning 
communications experience

 h Public opinion research specialist

 h Expert at building public support for large and 
complex water projects

 h Prior financial feasibility support to DuPage Water 
Commission

 h Cost allocation evaluations for large water supply 
projects

 h Transactional due diligence and financial risk 
analysis experience

 h SEC Registered Municipal Financial Advisor 
Representative

 h Financial planning, financing, and rate setting 
analysis support

GUY CARPENTER, PE
DEPUTY ADVISOR

LIBBY BARG BAKKE
TECHNICAL ADVISOR

JOHN MASTRACCHIO
FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Availability and Commitment 

Availability and Commitment 

Availability and Commitment 

 
                                                90 of 131



|   11DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Our Key Subconsultant Partners
Consor will be the prime contract holder, and DWC need only to contract with Consor. Consor has a 
teaming agreement with Raftelis and Woolpert; each will subcontract with Consor upon selection. 
As mentioned, other standing agreements exist to facilitate services, if needed. For example, 
Consor has pre-existing contracts with a web hosting platform, relevant legal services (experience in 
developing programs and IGAs) and appropriate access to railroad advisors as needed.

Gregg Gregg is committed to this project and will 
be available up to 20 hours per week, but anticipate 
variation in the daily workload. He has a track record 
of success delivering exceptional results, with proven 
leadership on multiple complex projects and programs 
nationwide. He is a nationally recognized subject 
matter expert and owner advisor for alternative 
contracting methods and a co-founder of the 
Strategic Project Delivery Institute (SPDI). Gregg 
served as the Assistant Public Works Administrator 
for Osceola County, Florida, where he played a lead 
role in delivering hundreds of millions of dollars of 
infrastructure improvements. The program was touted 
as the “most rapidly deployed” program in the nation 
by Public Works Magazine and similar publications.

 h Subject matter expert for alternative contracting 
and strategic project bundling

 h Expert communicator, facilitator, and trainer

 h Co-author, NCHRP Report 787, Guide for Design 
Management on Design-Build and CM/GC Projects

 h CM/GC SME for FHWA’s Resource Center 

 h National presenter/speaker on alternative 
contracting methods and related topics

Program & Contract Design

Essential capabilities of your Advisory team 
members

GREGG HOSTETLER, PE
PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING

Availability and Commitment 

 
                                                91 of 131



|   12DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Project Understanding

The Water Commission Act 
of 1985 granted the DuPage 
Water Commission (DWC)the 
authority to finance, design, 

construct, and operate a Lake Michigan-to-DuPage County 
water supply system. The DWC now aims to construct 
all necessary infrastructure to provide its own water 
from Lake Michigan and meet the quality requirements 
of its customers. A preliminary study estimates the 
midrange capital costs for the new Source Water program 
to be approximately $3.5 billion, and studies to date 
conclude that the projected unit costs will be lower if the 
Commission operates its own system rather than continue 
the purchase of water from the City of Chicago.  

The objective of the Lake Michigan Regional Source Water 
Project (Project) is to provide DWC with control of its 
water supply and their customers secure, affordable, and 
reliable water. In the process, the DWC will also bring 
water resilience to the north and west suburbs of Chicago, 
Illinois, inclusive of large portions of Cook County. 

SCOPE - Our team acknowledges and 
respects the magnitude of change the Lake 
Michigan Regional Source Water Project 
represents for DWC and the management 
of water within Illinois. The Lake Michigan 
Regional Source Water Project is consistent 

with a national trend of suburban communities emerging 
as economic centers with a growing capacity to procure 
and operate large infrastructure projects. This trend 
provides suburban leaders with more control and reduces 
their reliance on aging urban centers. In the case of 
DWC, it has been demonstrated that continued reliance 
on water service by the City of Chicago will be more 
expensive to rate payers in the service area. Opportunities 
for community and economic development in the 
service area will be supported by new, reliable water 
infrastructure, and the municipalities served by the DWC 
will not be beholden to whatever policy and cost sharing 
impositions are determined solely by an external water 
supply provider.   

The Project will involve a new intake tunnel from Lake 
Michigan (potentially via the Village of Glencoe), a 
treatment plant in Northbrook, a supply tunnel, potentially 
within the Union Pacific Railroad’s right-of-way and other 
significant land holders, and potential interconnects with 
partners such as the North Suburban Municipal Joint 
Action Water Authority (NSMJAWA).  

PROJECT 
OBJECTIVES

DUPAGE WATER 
ADVISORS (DWA)

Our team, collectively known as 
the DuPage Water Advisors (DWA), 
will strategically guide the DWC as 
it executes its vision to shift from 
purchasing potable water to extracting 
and treating raw water for wholesale 
distribution. The DWA will leverage its 
extensive knowledge and experience, 
and when necessary, identify and 
secure the best expertise to provide 
thoughtful, defensible, actionable, and 
timely advice to the DWC.  

The DWA will serve as a sounding board for DWC 
leadership and a springboard to accelerate the Lake 
Michigan Regional Source Water Project. As a sounding 
board, our job is to listen, reflect, and offer thoughtful 
advice leading to sound decisions. As a springboard, we 
will augment the capabilities of the DWC with expertise 
that can be quickly called to action and competently 
execute tasks. 

SCHEDULE - In March 1984, the 
DWC signed a 40-year agreement to 
purchase water from the City of Chicago 
for redistribution in DuPage County. The 

DWC’s customer base and water supply services have 
increased steadily, including to customers outside DuPage 

 
                                                92 of 131



|   13DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

County, and in FY2024, the DWC delivered approximately 
30 billion gallons of water to its customers. On February 
16, 2024, the DWC exercised its option to renew the 
Chicago Contract for an additional 17 years, extending it 
until March 19, 2041. The DWC also extended its Water 
Purchase and Sale contract with its customers, to continue 
the provision of Lake Michigan drinking water until 
February 24, 2064. Under the City of Chicago contract, 
the DWC is required to purchase a minimum of 50% of 
their maximum capacity and the full water supply for its 
customers.  

Our team is prepared to meet the RFQ task deadlines and 
strive to exceed those deadlines if procurement concludes 
by May 14 and the stakeholders are available to meet and 
respond to the DWC schedule. 

There are three components that the DWA will bring 
to help expedite this project: (1) early trust building 
(2) establishing guiding principles (3) rapid and flexible 
contracting. 

At first, the team will be building trust with the DWC 
board and key stakeholders through proper planning, 
communication, and execution of the early technical tasks. 
We propose that Pete Mulvaney, our proposed project 
manager, be present, onsite, up to five days a week. In this 
way, Pete will be available to more rapidly align with the 
DWC, demonstrate our commitment, and initiate the early 
tasks efficiently and effectively. 

While we are accustomed to using various platforms for 
remote meetings, early interactions are best accomplished 
face to face. Trust is the bedrock of successful execution; 
trust breeds collaboration which, in turn, stimulates 
innovation. 

One approach to facilitating timely decisions is to 
establish principles that guide all actions and discussions 
throughout the project lifecycle. Establishing, sharing, 
and committing to a set of principles can coalesce the 
team more quickly, eliminate distracting discussions, and 
provide a playbook for dispute resolution. Further, a set 
of principles can help establish a healthy culture for the 
team, which will carry on throughout the organization.  
Anticipated principles include: 

• Transparency 
• Expediency 
• Creativity 
• Courage 

Third, the DWA is primed to start addressing the foreseen 
tasks with our stable of experts, and we are aware that 
the activities of the DWA must evolve with the project. 
Further, we acknowledge that surprises may come 
where we need additional capacity or expertise. We are 
confident in our assertion that we have the best possible 
assemblage of relationships and networks in the market 
with flexible contract processes to add any expertise 
needed to match unforeseen needs.  

Task Activity
2025

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
01 Conduct / Update Business Plan

Review prior effort and analyze current information
Draft business plan
Review with client

Second draft

Second Review

Finalize for board approval in Word and PPT

02 Prepare Communications/Outreach Plan
Research and Prep
Create messaging that resonates with the public and 
elected officials.

Documenting the Plan (Draft and Final)

TECHNICAL ADVISOR SCHEDULE

 
                                                93 of 131



|   14DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

SCHEDULE | (continued)

Task Activity
2025

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

03 Prepare Concept governance structure alternatives 
document
Stakeholder meetings
Drafts
Reviews

04 Facilitate development and  
management of project website
Coordination and Drafts

Approvals

05 Prepare project risk register 
Establish format

Updates

06 Prepare conceptual financing plan
Draft

Review

07 Facilitate vendor selection for water intake siting 
activities:
Prepare bathymetry survey scope and release RFP

Select and contract with vendor

Prepare and submit Lake bottom geotechnical sampling 
permit

08 Commence route validation / easement introduction 
meetings 
(i) Union Pacific RxR

(ii) Botanic Gardens

(iii) Cook County Forest Preserves

(iv) IDOT

(v) IL Tollway

09 Facilitate coordination meeting with ACOE/IDNR 
regarding water intake
Prepare and schedule

Facilitate

10 Prepare project delivery/program management 
alternatives document
Draft

Review

 
                                                94 of 131



|   15DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

SCHEDULE | (continued)

Task Activity
2025

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
11 Commence preparation of NEPA submittal documents 

Scoping meetings + prep (@4 )
Agency meetings (@2)
Internal Strategy
EIS RFP creation and consulting selection
Preparing visual aids

Planning and design Coordination with the designers

Task Activity
2026

J F M A M J J A S O N D

A Lake bottom geotechnical sampling/
cores
Facilitate Permit Process

Provide RFP Solicitation and Selection

Sampling

Interpretation of results

B Select Program Management firm
Workshops / strategy

Define Selection Committee and Criteria

Definition of scope and contract type

Solicitation and selection including 
interviews

C Identify Construction Paradigm
Prepare summaries

Workshops

Final Decision

D
Facilitate preparation of preliminary 
documentation for “joint permit” 
application to Army Corps of Engineers
Permit Assessment and Coordination

Client Coordination Meetings

USACE meetings

Coordination with the designers

Preparation and submittal of permit 
application

INTERMEDIATE ACTIVITIES SCHEDULE

 
                                                95 of 131



|   16DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Project Approach

Pete Mulvaney will lead the DWA, and be supported by 
senior technical and financial advisors, selected for their 
specific and relevant expertise as well as their proven 
character and willingness to commit to this project. This 
advisory team, described in the Project Team section 
is available and fully committed to this project. John 
Mastracchio is intimately familiar with the project and 
the DWC leadership as he led the prior financial analysis 
task during the feasibility stage of the project. Pete, 
our Lead Advisor, and Libby our Communications Lead, 
have each presented to the DWC leadership and other 
program stakeholders, and Pete has been involved in 
topical discussions since the conception of an alternate 
water supply for Chicago’s suburbs. DWA’s history with 
the project will greatly reduce the typical ramp up time 
common to complex projects.   

Consor is committed to making Pete 100% available to 
DWC, and we suggest having a small workspace onsite if 
available. This proximity will improve communication, help 
Pete to “read the room” as various stakeholders engage 
with the DWC, and enable spontaneous face-to-face 
conversations that so often lead to beneficial ideas. 

A formal kickoff meeting will establish initial expectations 
and facilitate introductions. Immediately afterwards, 
the DWA will prepare a project charter and establish a 
meeting cadence. To facilitate timely completion of the 
activities described below, the team will develop and 
maintain a Project Charter that clearly defines the: 

• Guiding principles and project goals 
• Roles, responsibilities, and communication plan, 

including a Responsible, Accountable, Consulted, and 
Informed (RACI) matrix 

• Data management and file sharing strategy and tools 
• Quality, schedule, budget, and risk management 

approach 
• Conflict resolution and escalation plan 

Immediately after the kick-off meeting, the DWA will also 
initiate standing programmatic meetings, and associated 
attendance, agendas, and meeting notes, that might 
include: 

Weekly Monday Status Meetings with the DWC 
leadership 

• In-person meetings preferred, especially early on, with 
video conferencing as needed 

• Candid and transparent dialogue (requires trust) 
• Debrief activities from the previous week 
• Set expectations for the upcoming week 
• Identify, share, and problem solve scope, budget, 

schedule, risk, and technical challenges   

Monthly Friday Free Space meeting for the Executive 
Director and DWA (inclusive) 

• Creative and candid session to identify unforeseen 
challenges and brainstorm potential solutions  

Section 7 Task Meetings - Kickoff meeting for each task 
identified in the RFQ 

• Discussion of appropriate topical details 

All meeting schedules, agendas, and notes will be 
contained within a single OneNote “binder” and will 
be kept on a secure and sharable platform such as 
SharePoint. This model has proven beneficial to program/
project teams who have only one file to access all meeting 
records. 

This task involves updating the conceptual financial plan 
for the Alternative Water Supply Project that Raftelis 
completed in October 2023. The updated business 
plan will be comprised of a financial analysis and risk 
assessment. The financial analysis will incorporate 
the latest anticipated project capital and operations & 
maintenance (“O&M”) costs associated with the project 
into a long-term cash flow projection for the project. We 
will update the review and selection of capital funding and 
financing alternatives associated with the project and will 
also consider and evaluate the share of costs attributable 
to DWC and other municipal partners that may participate 
in the Alternative Water Supply Project. The financial 
analysis portion of the business plan will compare the 
updated financial plan and cash flow projections with the 
status quo scenario.  We will also calculate anticipated 
water rates that would be necessary to generate sufficient 
revenues to pay for the projected O&M and capital 
revenue requirements of the project.   

TASK ONE: CONDUCT / UPDATE BUSINESS 
PLAN (TARGET DELIVERY AUGUST 1, 2025)

 
                                                96 of 131



|   17DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

The DWA will also prepare a risk analysis that identifies 
the uncertainty of parameters that may have financial 
consequences for DWC, such as capital construction costs, 
schedule extensions, interest rate risk, water consumption 
variability, etc. In addition to identifying these and other 
risks, we will assess their likelihood of occurring and 
identify risk mitigation strategies to address these risks.  
We will also complete additional financial modeling that 
will show the financial impact to DWC of incurring the 
upside and downside risks associated with the Project. 

DELIVERABLE:  
A draft business plan report will be prepared for DWC 
review.  Upon receipt of comments from DWC, we will 
prepare and provide DWC with a final version of the 
business plan.  

Elements of the Plan may include: 

• Revised Program Purpose & Objectives Statement 
• Updated Business Case Technical Memorandum 
• Business Case Presentation for Internal and Partnering 

Sessions with Stakeholders 

SCHEDULE, LEVEL OF EFFORT:

Hrs 2025

Task 01 - Conduct / Update 
Business Plan 320

M J J

Review prior effort and 
analyze current information

Draft business plan

Review with client

Second draft

Second Review

Finalize for board approval 
in Word and PPT

Our team has extensive experience in all phases of 
community engagement, handling multifaceted, dynamic, 
high-profile, and high-stakes assignments that often span 
a decade or more. These projects represent significant 
investments and generate high levels of interest from the 
public, stakeholders, and agencies. Our long-standing 
experience benefits our clients by supporting their 
communication efforts to help mitigate risks of delays and 
cost increases due to public opposition. Effective 
communication lies at the heart of successful community 
engagement. It’s not just about talking but also listening. 
Consor’s team consists of experienced communicators 
who rely on research-based methods to gauge public 
sentiment, address key concerns, and craft impactful 
messaging. External communications are equally 
important to internal communications, and our 
communication plan will include guidance for both. 

Our external approach will be tailored to meet the needs 
of the DWC. We will start by listening to your interests and 
ideas, and in the process, we will map the stakeholders, 
begin to frame key messages, identify channels of 
communication, and define the key themes appropriate 
for this project. We will be informative but not too loud.
To better understand the audiences and find the right 
voice, we can apply any of the following tools as needed: 

• Focus group facilitation
• Public opinion research 
• Live and virtual polling
• Online surveys
• Stakeholder interviews

TASK 02: PREPARE COMMUNICATIONS / 
OUTREACH PLAN (TARGET DELIVERY  
AUGUST 1, 2025)

 
                                                97 of 131



|   18DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

In our experience, engaging in some of these relatively 
low-cost efforts provide tremendous value in creating 
messaging that resonates with the public and elected 
officials.

Once we have a solid consensus of how to frame 
the key issues, we can begin to brand the project. 
Branding is one way to create buy-in with the DWC 
partners, and shift the focus from DWC to the partners, 
customers, and team delivering on this vision. Branding 
is also important for selling the values of this project 
to political groups or activist and community groups, 
providing the DWC the opportunity to manage the 
narrative. The right approach will emerge as we study 
the landscape of stakeholders.

Internally, (DWA, DWC, and key partners such as the 
NSMJAWA and Glencoe) our approach is based on 
the successful delivery of programs and advisory 
services across the country. In this case, as the project 
is in early stages, we will pay particular attention to 
communications that create a sense of partnership and 
ownership across the key stakeholders. It is important 
to build that sense of buy-in from stakeholders before 
broadcasting to the public sphere. We will establish 
clear lines of communication, clear expectations, and 
access to timely and current information. 

For issues that have legal, business, and external 
implications, DWA will have formal channels of 
communication. These channels are likely to run 
exclusively between Pete and the DWC Executive 
Director. However, for working meetings, and for task 
level work, communication between DWC and DWA 
will be informal to promote total transparency and 
expediency. 

All meeting notes, decisions and action items will be 
documented on the project OneNote and hosted on 
a secure site such as OneDrive or SharePoint. Access 
to specific pages and files can be controlled if or when 
necessary.

DELIVERABLE
The Communications Plan will encompass both 
external and internal communications. The 
Communications Plan will articulate the expectations, 
strategies and channels, key messages, schedule, and 
assessments. We will draft an initial document for 
review by the DWC leadership team and update the 
plan as the project evolves.

Hrs 2025

Task 02 - Prepare 
Communications/Outreach 
Plan

135
M J J

Research and Prep
Create messaging that 
resonates with the public 
and elected officials.
Documenting the Plan 
(Draft and Final)

Ongoing, target September 2025

Without a strong governance structure, partners are open 
to risks, erosion of trust, and confusion. Whereas good 
governance establishes authorities, responsibilities, and 
clear legal roles leading to structured frameworks for 
decision-making, transparency, cost share, and protection 
of investments, as well as an exit ramp in the unlikely 
event one party needs renege on the agreement.  
 
The DWA will start with a review of existing governance 
within the DWC and it partners to understand the historic 
and current relationship with its partners. DuPage Water 
Advisors will also summarize and share a survey of other 
program approaches / intergovernmental agreements 
and other governance structures established to initiate, 
execute, and operate large infrastructure. Examples will 
come primarily from the water industry but may include 
transportation and or gas examples if they have relevant 
lessons to inform the team. While this will be a concerted 
effort to initially populate examples, it will also be a live 
document that we continuously update with examles from 
planning, construction, and operating phases. 
 

TASK 03: PREPARE CONCEPT GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES DOCUMENT 

The DuPage Water Advisors has, under contract, 
access to the legal team which established 
all the Willamette Water Supply Program 
agreements from initial concept to ongoing 

operations.

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE 

 
                                                98 of 131



|   19DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Also, if desired, the DWA will facilitate discussions with 
the appropriate stakeholders to establish the foundations 
of an agreement - be they customer, partner, owner , or 
other interested party.

DELIVERABLE
A Technical Memo delivered in Word and PDF, that 
describes various options and examples of governance 
for each of the identified agreements. For example, 
the ownership and governance of the intake may be 
different from the treatment plant, the governance of the 
construction phase will be different than the governance 
of the operations phases, and it may be necessary to 
create a governance document between the DWC and the 
incoming Program Management team. 

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

Hrs 2025

Task 03 - Prepare Concept 
governance structure 
alternatives document

220
M J J A

Stakeholder meetings

Drafts

Reviews

TASK 04: FACILITATE DEVELOPMENT AND 
MANAGEMENT OF PROJECT WEBSITE 

Target delivery: September 2025

The DWA has developed successful program websites 
for major infrastructure programs across the country.  
Through this work, we’ve seen how impactful a 
centralized, purpose-built website can be for keeping 
partners, stakeholders, and the public informed, up to 
date, and aligned. Rather than embedding program 
content within a larger agency site—where information 
can get lost, diluted, or is hard to find—we recommend 
developing a dedicated program website that is a 
centralized source of program-related information.  This 
approach provides a single, reliable source of truth 
for all program-related information, providing clarity, 
consistency, and accessibility across updates, documents, 
and announcements. Our team will work hand-in-hand 
with the DWC team to:

• Define the purpose, goals, and user experience of the 
site

• Develop and leverage project-specific branding and 
graphics

• Build a structure that is simple and user-friendly, yet 
flexible enough to grow with the program

• Craft clear, accessible language that communicates 
the program’s mission, progress, and value

• Tell the story of the program through consistent 
messaging and compelling visuals 

• Develop processes for creating, updating and 
approving content 

• Verify that content is up to date and accurate

DELIVERABLE
A functional, live, branded website appropriate for the 
Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project.

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

Target delivery: September 2025

The first line of defense against risk is sound decision 
making. Seeking and hiring a qualified team of advisors 
is a strong step towards improved decision making, and 
a risk register augments the team with a tool to assist in 
retiring or mitigating the known risks and contingency 
planning for unknown risks.

Hrs 2025

Task 04 - Facilitate 
development and 
management of project 
website

100

M J J A

Coordination and Drafts

Approvals

TASK 05: PREPARE PROJECT RISK REGISTER 

A good risk register addresses risks related 
to design, geotechnical, environmental, 
utility, design survey, construction staking, 
traffic management, climate/weather, 

construction phasing, long-lead purchase items, 
material availability/proximity, schedule, budget, 
cost escalation, political, public involvement/
communication, and other issues.

 
                                                99 of 131



|   20DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Risk registers are a great tool to help the team identify, 
quantify, and manage project risks. When used properly, 
risk registers are powerful tools for the planning, design, 
and construction of infrastructure. In the planning phase, 
risk registers can help identify critical paths, improve 
coordination, and stimulate better designs. In the design 
phase, the risk register can identify cost, supply chain, 
operational, and constructability concerns with enough 
time to mitigate the impacts. During the construction 
phase, the risk register is likely to add crew safety, 
schedule conflicts, and contractor / vendor conflicts 
to the above. But, equally important, is that the risk 
register has a companion “innovation register”. This is the 
documentation of ideas, processes, or technologies that 
help to reduce costs, save time, or lower risks.

Each item on the risk register will be assigned a “risk 
rating,” which is comprised of a severity of impact factor 
and probability of occurrence factor. The risk rating 
informs the team as to the level of attention the risk item 
warrants. Each risk item will be assigned a champion 
for a single point of accountability. In some cases, the 
risk champion may organize an innovation committee to 
develop a strategy to either retire or mitigate the risk.

The second tier of risk mitigation is the facilitation 
of clear and effective communication coupled with 
documentation. The DuPage Water Advisors suggest a 
single risk register tool, available to the full team, to be 
open and updated during every relevant meeting. Many 
teams will update a risk register during a pre-scheduled 
risk meeting. However, we have found that to be effective, 
it is far more powerful when the risk register is open and 
updated during the project working sessions.

The third element is having the trust and courage to 
raise these risks with the team and taking appropriate 
measured action. Tracking is simply not enough. The 
DWA will assign action items, follow-up, and drive actions 
to reduce risks. In time, the Program Manager will be 
leading the risk register. Under the Program Manager, 
the risk register should inform capital cost contingencies 
and construction schedule impacts. A best management 
practice is to develop the discipline to utilize risk 
management tools and create a culture that the Program 
Manager can follow and enhance.

DELIVERABLE
The deliverables will be a risk register tool, delivered and 
updated in Excel or, if desired, from an industry project 
management software. The risk register will be updated, 
and can be used for this advisory scope, or the program as 
a whole.

TASK 06: PREPARE CONCEPTUAL 
FINANCING PLAN

Target Delivery: September 2025

The DWA will update the evaluation of the use of different 
financing options that Raftelis considered in its October 
2023 memorandum prepared for the DWC.  As part of 
the conceptual financing plan update, we will identify 
viable financing options, such as the use of a combination 
of Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) Public 
Water Supply Loans, Water Infrastructure Financing 
and Innovation Act (WIFIA) funding, and conventional 
municipal bond financing using Revenue Bonds.  We will 
examine the advantages, disadvantages, and suitability 
of these financing options considering the anticipated 
cash flow needs of the project and the timing of incurring 
project expenditures and the receipt of revenues from the 
DWC’s sale of water.  We will select up to three potentially 
viable funding and financing options and prepare a cash 
flow and water rate projection for each of these options.  

DELIVERABLE
The results of the conceptual financing plan will be either 
incorporated into the business plan report as described in 
Task 1 or a separate conceptual financing plan report will 
be provided to DWC, if desired.

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

Hrs 2025

Task 06 - Prepare 
conceptual financing 
plan

220
M J J A S

Draft

Review

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

Hrs 2025

Task 05 - Prepare 
project risk register 60

M J J A S

Establish format

Updates

 
                                                100 of 131



|   21DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

To facilitate the selection on specific and niche expertise, several 
elements are necessary. One is the awareness of where and how to find 
the firms serving this market. On that front, the DWA can tap a 
tremendous network and personal relationships. We have done some 
preliminary investigation into this and have a draft list of firms with 
relevant qualifications, not the least is our team-member Woolpert. 

The second element to succeed is preparing a scope and procurement 
process attractive to the market. The DWA teammates have prepared 
dozens of RFPs as owners and / or consultants for the successful 
procurement of services.

The third element to successfully procure these services is being able to 
understand the respondents’ value proposition. This requires a degree 
of understanding the technical details, ability to communicate these 
details, and bridge any divide between parties. This becomes especially 
important if there is a proposed innovation or a discrepancy between the 
vendor submittals. There is no doubt that poking a hole in the bottom of 
Lake Michigan will require permits. The DWA will facilitate the process, 
leverage relationships and work with the vendor to meet the schedule 
and budget.

DELIVERABLE:
Highly qualified vendor under contract and all environmental clearances / 
permits obtained.

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

DWA has the in-house capability to perform bathymetric 
surveys, operating their own water and aircraft with the 
most current technology.

TASK 07: FACILITATE SELECTION OF 
CONTRACTOR/VENDOR(S) FOR WATER 
INTAKE PRELIMINARY SITING ACTIVITIES:

• Lake bottom / bathymetry survey  
(target activity August/September 2025)

• Lake bottom geotechnical sampling permit submittal  
(target December 2025)

Hrs 2025

Task 07 - Facilitate 
vendor selection for 
water intake siting 
activities:

120

M J J A S O N D

Prepare bathymetry 
survey scope and 
release RFP
Select and contract 
with vendor
Prepare and submit Lake 
bottom geotechnical 
sampling permit

TASK 08: COMMENCE ROUTE 
VALIDATION / EASEMENT 
INTRODUCTION MEETINGS

Although the technical elements 
of this project will be important, 
we know success depends on the 
communication and framing of 
the easement conversations. Our 
advisory team will be there as a coach 
and will bring relationships to gain 
success. We will provide visual aids 
for clear communication, strategic 
planning expertise, and a willingness 
to collaborate to reach an acceptable 
negotiation. Of all the tasks, this will be 
most dependent upon relationships and 
stakeholder management. 

The importance of these stakeholder 
meetings cannot be overemphasized. 
DWC’s ability  to provide clear, timely 
information—and to remain responsive 
and consistent throughout these 
discussions—will be essential to 
establishing stakeholder confidence in 
the proposed alignment. Without that 
confidence, momentum toward design 
may stall, directly impacting the project 
schedule. 

We will work collaboratively with the 
DWC lobbyists, who likely have started 
relationship building with the RR, IDOT 
and Tollway. This task will take a series 
of meetings with each stakeholder; at 
times, the DWA may suggest a strategic 
ally to join us in meetings with the 
targeted agency. 

The DWA has strong 
relationships with railroad 
advisors (RailPro), and 
suburban oriented lobby 

teams with access to Cook County 
leadership (Cozen O’Connor Public 
Strategies). Both have confirmed 
their availability and interest in 
advising if the need arises.

 
                                                101 of 131



|   22DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

• UNION PACIFIC RR 
Consor has significant railroad experience across the country. 
Locally, Pete has strong relationships with RailPro a well-known 
railway consultant with strong relationships to the Union 
Pacific Railroad, which can be leveraged if needed.

• BOTANIC GARDENS 
Pete is a member, regular visitor, and has personal and 
professional relationship with the current CEO and other staff 
which may help initiate dialog with an open mind.

• COOK COUNTY FOREST PRESERVES 
With the upcoming 2026 Cook County election, it will 
be important for DWC to proactively shape the narrative 
around the Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project. 
Engaging early and communicating transparently will help 
build understanding and support for the project’s long-
term benefits. The DuPage Water Advisors can recommend 
additional outreach efforts and identify influential advocates 
who are well-connected within the current Cook County 
leadership.

• IDOT
IDOT is an agency in change with many competing priorities, 
DuPage Water Commission will need to identify an IDOT 
priority to advance their agenda.

• IL TOLLWAY
The Illinois Tollway has had several recent transitions, all 
attempting to find more efficiency. Their construction team is 
filled with consulting firms, and the DWA may be able to gain 
access to appropriate leadership for initial conversations that 
complements the relationships of the DWC lobbyists.

DELIVERABLE:
Contacts, Meetings, Meeting Records, Key Decision Log

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

The level of effort and schedule are shown in the table below. 
In this case, we call out that the schedule will be largely 
dependent on the stakeholder willingness to meet and their 
schedule availability.

Hrs 2025

Task 08 - Commence route 
validation / easement 
introduction meetings

200
M J J A S

(i) Union Pacific RxR

(ii) Botanic Gardens

(iii) Cook County Forest 
Preserves

(iv) IDOT

(v) IL Tollway

Target Delivery: October 2025 

The US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and 
Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) are 
typically amendable to preliminary and preparatory 
meetings. It will be important to elicit their 
feedback and learn as much as possible regarding 
their design expectations, and how the design may 
impact permitting processes. We will also want to 
explore their schedule and approval process in the 
subsequent NEPA and permit submittals.  

With the IDNR, we want to explore any implications 
to state water allocations, and if the intended 
design and/or ownership models affect DWC 
customers through the IDNR LMO-2 reporting.  

The IDNR has regulatory authority pursuant to 
the RIVERS LAKES AND STREAM ACT OF 1911 [615 
ILCS 5] and, IDNR/OWR Part 3704 “Regulation of 
Public Water” Rules. These regulations identify 
specific project types (such as shoreline protection, 
dredging, harbors, etc.) but do not specifically call 
out intakes. On Lake Michigan, the IDNR/OWR 
issues a joint permit with the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency (IEPA).  

Part 3730 also provides the IDNR Office of Water 
Resources Division authority to allocate water 
from Lake Michigan. Allocations are made through 
a hearing and order procedure. Entities receiving 
an allocation of Lake Michigan water receive an 
allocation permit.   

To be clear, our understanding of this task is 
specifically related to design feedback on the intake 
vs engaging with these agencies for either the 
NEPA or 404 “joint application” processes discussed 
further in this response. 

DELIVERABLE 
The DuPage Water Advisors will prepare materials 
for this meeting, schedule, and document the 
outcomes for use in subsequent steps and any 
ongoing dialog with stakeholder regarding the 
intake. 

TASK 09: FACILITATE COORDINATION 
MEETING WITH ACOE/IDNR REGARDING 
WATER INTAKE

 
                                                102 of 131



|   23DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

SCHEDULE / LEVEL OF EFFORT

Hrs 2025

Task 09 - Facilitate 
coordination meeting 
with ACOE/IDNR 
regarding water intake

80

M J J A S

Prepare and schedule

Facilitate

Target delivery: October 2025

A project of this scale requires a program management 
approach. However, there are many styles of program 
management, and selecting the approach is a critical 
decision facing the DuPage Water Commission. DWA will 
endeavor to guide the DWC towards the optimal delivery 
strategy for the Project. For example, some owners prefer 
a transactional approach, whereas other owners prefer 
to build collaboration into the program approach, sharing 
more of the costs and benefits.  

Developing the appropriate scope elements is closely 
tied to the Program Management approach. For example, 
the program manager may be scoped to outsource 
design or to prepare bid-packages. Likewise, some 
program management offices will include construction 
management (PM/CM) services including inspectors to 
simply representatives, whereas other owners like to 
have a firewall between program management and the 
construction management. 

Another area of decision in the Program Manager scope 
is whether to accept joint ventures or prime contracts 
with subconsultants. This has implications for DWC when 
it comes to dispute resolution, decision processes, and 
communications. There are means to encourage or 
dissuade these responses in the crafting of procurement 
documents.  

The DuPage Water Commission will also want to consider 
the degree to which the Program Management is onsite 
or offsite. Some owners require the Program Management 
to be onsite with a reduced overhead rate. Whereas other 
Program Management Offices will rent a space nearby and 
have a higher overhead rate. We recommend flexibility, 
except for the leadership team who we feel must, at the 
minimum, have easy access to the DWC offices. 

TASK 10: PREPARE PROJECT DELIVERY / 
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ALTERNATIVES 
DOCUMENT 

The final element to raise early in the Program Manager 
discussion is associated with check and balances – or 
degree of owner control. Some owners want to have their 
staff integrated with the program to make decisions and 
insert their position; whereas, other owners provide more 
latitude to their selected program manager.  

To help DWC and partners make this decision, the DWA 
will facilitate a workshop(s), coordinate discussion with 
owners who have leveraged a program management 
approach, and host follow up discussions as needed. 
We will prepare a summary of these options and make 
recommendations as to the best way to define the 
scope of work for the Program Manager based on our 
assessment of the environment, culture, and capacity of 
the DuPage Water Commission. 

We know that, ultimately, the Program Manager must 
seamlessly function as an extension of your staff that you 
can utilize as you see fit to support the design and 
construction phases of the project. As advisors, we will 
provide you with the support and expertise to select the 
right approach, and to help you keep pace with the many 
demands that the future Program Management team will 
impose on DWC resources.  

DELIVERABLE 
Facilitated workshop(s) and summary with 
recommendation on the appropriate program 
management approach for the DuPage Water 
Commission. 

 
                                                103 of 131



|   24DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

• Performing quality assurance/quality control (QA/
QC) of NEPA documentation and supporting technical 
reports. 

• Verifying timely submission of NEPA documentation to 
the EPA. 

• Advising on the maintenance of official decision-
making documentation to support the Administrative 
Record, if needed. 

• Assisting with public involvement activities and 
stakeholder engagement. 

• Proactively identifying and addressing any deficiencies 
in NEPA compliance. 

Through this structured and experienced approach, DWA 
will support regulatory compliance and environmental 
stewardship throughout the life of the project.

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

Hrs 2025

Task 11 - 
Commence 
preparation of 
NEPA submittal 
documents 

150

M J J A S O N

Scoping meetings + 
prep (@4 )
Agency Meetings 
(@2)

Internal Strategy

EIS RFP Creation 
and consulting 
selection
Preparing visual 
aids
Planning 
and Design 
Coordination with 
the designers

LEVEL OF EFFORT / SCHEDULE

 

The DWA team, including Ms. Kerry Winkler as 
the NEPA Leader, brings extensive experience in 
implementing the NEPA process, environmental 
compliance, and permitting for multiple federal 
agencies. This includes serving in technical 
advisory roles and navigating agency-specific 
NEPA protocols. 

At this stage, it is anticipated that the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) may 
serve as the lead federal agency for the NEPA 
process for the proposed Lake Michigan 
Regional Source Water Project. The DWA will 
assist DWC in initiating coordination with the 
EPA and will continue to support ongoing 
communication throughout the NEPA process. 
The appropriate level of NEPA documentation—
either an Environmental Assessment (EA) or an 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)—has yet to 
be determined. DWA will support the process to 
identify the appropriate level of documentation in 
accordance with Federal guidelines. 

DELIVERABLE
DWA will develop and implement standard 
operating procedures to verify full compliance 
with NEPA and the Council on Environmental 

Hrs 2025

Task 10 - Prepare 
project delivery/
program management 
alternatives document

150

M J J A S O N

Draft

Review

Quality (CEQ) Regulations for Implementing the 
Procedural Provisions of NEPA (40 CFR Parts 
1500–1508). This will include preparation and 
submission of comprehensive environmental 
documentation for all proposed actions under 
the Lake Michigan Regional Source Water 
Project. 

Key responsibilities include, but are not 
limited to: 

TASK 11: COMMENCE PREPARATION 
OF NEPA SUBMITTAL DOCUMENTS

The National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA) establishes procedures to 
ensure that federal agencies integrate 
environmental considerations into 

their decision-making processes. 
These procedures require agencies to conduct 
thorough environmental reviews, inform the 
public, and interpret and administer federal 
policies, regulations, and laws in a manner 
consistent with NEPA.

 
                                                104 of 131



|   25DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

INTERMEDIATE ACTIVITIES LIST & BUDGET 
PLANNING (2026+)

RESPONSE 
This scope is akin to the bathymetric survey and could 
include the same vendor. Woolpert is considered a leader 
in this field and has the expertise to scope and oversee 
any drilling or geotechnical work in Lake Michigan. 
Working lake barges are in short supply and must be 
scheduled in advance. We will take this on as an early item 
to secure access to an appropriate working platform for 
this work. The DuPage Water Advisors will: 

 h Provide summary of permit process 

 h Provide an RFP which solicits appropriate action from 
the market 

 h Respond to any request for information from the 
selected vendor 

 h Provide onsite owners representative during drilling 

 h Facilitate interpretation of results 

 h Manage amendments if needed 

SCHEDULE 
No concerns meeting the target date of June 2026. Please 
refer to the schedule on page 15.   

LEVEL OF EFFORT 
DuPage Water Advisors level of effort is estimated at 60-
80 hours 

DELIVERABLE 
Oversight of drilling and interpretation of results

RESPONSE 
Finding the proper technical and cultural fit of your 
program manager will ease the tremendous challenge 
of delivering this infrastructure on time and on budget. 
The procurement process should be well-defined and 
allow the selection committee to understand both the 

LAKE BOTTOM GEOTECHNICAL 
SAMPLING/CORES (TARGET JUNE 2026) A

Our teammate, Woolpert, is expert at 
bathymetric surveys, and has the planes, 
boats, drones, and geospatial technology to 
meet any intake mapping needs. 

SELECT PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FIRM B

capabilities and the personalities of the individuals being 
proposed. Likewise, the DWC’s solicitation should present 
a clear scope, contract options, and cultural expectations. 
The DWA has been through a competitive selection 
process multiple times and will provide advice and offer 
creative ideas on how to prepare an RFP that increases the 
odds of selecting the right team. 

Some of the key steps in this process include strategic 
discussions with the DWC on the anticipated Program 
Management type. Once a mutual understanding of the 
desired outcome is reached, the DWA will prepare the 
scope of work and suggest the selection criteria. 

Concurrently, the DWC and DWA will need to establish 
the selection process. Starting with solicitation, the DWA 
will recommend where to submit the RFP for maximum 
response. The competitive firms are already aware of 
this upcoming RFP and are preparing themselves, but we 
find it can be valuable to reach others for two reasons. 
First, you may get a surprise bidder bringing novel ideas. 
Second, an RFP of this magnitude is a good way to 
promote awareness and create a buzz in the market which 
can alert the construction and contractor workforce. 

Following solicitation, it is strongly suggested to conduct 
interviews. We recommend applying some constraints on 
the interview, such as requiring the proposed program 
manager lead the presentation, limiting the number of 
team members present, and holding the interview in 
person.  

Finally, there must be good governance of the selection 
committee. It is likely that the submitters will all have 
prepared extensively, invested time and money, and if 
there is any indication of an unfair process, it will likely be 
contested. This can create significant distraction, and lead 
to ill-will right out of the gate. Therefore, the selection 
committee must have defensible guidelines. The selection 
committee can take several forms of governance, and the 
DWA will advise the team as needed.

Through this scope of work, the DWA will help 
the DWC prepare for a successful selection 
and Program Management Team by 
establishing: 

• Clear and aligned vision and values 

• Aligned objectives 

• Proper contract framework 

• A strong culture and expectations 

• Clear communications
 

                                                105 of 131



|   26DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

There are a multitude of project delivery and contracting 
methods screening and selection tools, most of which the 
DPA have utilized to assist owners. Our preference is to 
take the best of these available tools and tailor a selection 
tool to the needs of the DPC. Once this tool has been 
developed and adopted, the DPA will facilitate workshops 
for each project segment to decide on the preferred 
contracting method(s).  

Our approach to selecting contract paradigm will be 
holistic and collaborative. We will prepare tabular 
summaries of pros and cons, contract interdependencies, 
and discuss the tradeoffs of each approach until the 
DuPage Water Commission is satisfied with the strategy 
and how it impacts all facets of the Lake Michigan 
Regional Source Water Project. Our initial understanding 
is that DuPage Water Commission will need to prioritize 
schedule, thus delivery time may be a strong selection 
factor. 

DELIVERABLE 
Summary of contract options. Tabular pros and cons by 
contract unit. 

SCHEDULE 
No concerns meeting the proposed target date. Please 
refer to the schedule on page 15. 

LEVEL OF EFFORT 
200-250 hours

RESPONSE 
The 404 “Joint Permit” is administered by the USACE and is 
considered a Joint Permit as other agencies including the IEPA 
and the IDNR review and sign off on the permit application. 
The permit process does not typically commence until late in 
the NEPA process, as agencies can not permit the project until 
after all the Federal clearances are completed. Furthermore, as 
the permits have a limited life, we do not want permits before 
we are ready to construct. That said, engaging in preliminary 
discussion is helpful, but it is unlikely that we will be preparing 
permit application materials until we are closer to a bid pack for 
construction. 

DELIVERABLE 
When applicable, the DuPage Water Advisors will have 
preliminary permit application materials ready to submit. 

SCHEDULE 
We believe the timeline for this should be pushed out until the 
NEPA process is underway. Please refer to the schedule on page 
15. 

LEVEL OF EFFORT 
100 - 120 hours

FACILITATE PREPARATION OF PRELIMINARY 
DOCUMENTATION FOR “JOINT PERMIT” 
APPLICATION TO ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS 

D

SCHEDULE 
The DWA will endeavor to position the DWC to contract 
the right Program Manager as quickly as possible. Please 
refer to the schedule on page 15. 

LEVEL OF EFFORT 
200-250 hours 

DELIVERABLE 
h Procurement Process

h Scope for RFP

h Evaluation Criteria and Log

h Record of Decision

RESPONSE 
There are many approaches to the delivery of a program 
of this magnitude. Our team has experience with Design 
Build (DB), Progressive Design Build (PDB), Construction 
Manager-at-Risk (CMAR), Construction Manager/General 
Contractor (CM/GC), and traditional Design Bid Build 
(DBB) and other iterations. Members of DPA are subject 
matter experts and routinely provide training to agencies 
on traditional and alternative contracting methods. One of 
the first steps is confirming the contracting method that 
the State of Illinois supports. 

Selecting an appropriate contracting method has 
significant implications for cost, schedule, quality, risk 
management, and permitting success. Selecting the right 
method depends on how the Lake Michigan Regional 
Source Water Project is divided into logical construction 
packages, along with the following: 

h Goals of the DuPage Water Commission, 

h Finance strategy for each work package, 

h Details of the Program Manager contract, 

h Required or desired speed of delivery, 

h Complexity of the project/work package, 

h Budgetary constraints, and 

h Local market capacity for relevant skills.  

For example, if the Program Manager is going to have 
a construction manager scope, it may affect the choice 
of DB vs CMAR; and if the Program Manager has a 
design scope, it may impact the choice between DB and 
DBB. These options in the program manager scope are 
addressed as part of Task 10. 

IDENTIFY CONSTRUCTION PARADIGM 
(CONVENTIONAL, DESIGN-BUILD, 
HYBRID, ETC.) 

C

 
                                                106 of 131



|   27DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

Address areas of team leadership, 
communication, cost control, schedule control 
and quality standards. 

LEADERSHIP
Pete and Guy’s leadership styles are 
complementary, and at our core is the desire 
to lift others and shine light to foster growth. 

Further, they are both willing and adept at creating 
space to raise difficult conversations in a respectful and 
productive manner. As such, we will foster a leadership 
ethos that is professional, humble, and effective.  

COMMUNICATION
We will have formal channels of 
communication between the DWC and 
the DWA associated with legal, business, 

and stakeholder engagement issues. For daily working 
meetings, and for task level work, communication 
between DWC and DWA will be informal to promote total 
transparency and expediency. All meeting notes, decisions 
and action items will be documented on the project 
OneNote, on a secure site such as OneDrive or SharePoint. 
Access to specific pages and files can be controlled if or 
when necessary. 

COST CONTROL. Pete will discuss the 
budget with the DWC at whatever 
frequency works for the DWC. Our monthly 
invoices will provide a summary of activities 
completed and a budget summary with 

spent to date and remaining funds clearly tabulated. 
Further, Pete will have monthly check-ins with Consor’s 
“Manager of Projects” as an added means of cost control 
and to de-risk potential overruns.  

SCHEDULE CONTROL
For this scope of work, our task schedule 
will be managed primarily by monitoring our 
project management tools and meetings. 

However, we will constantly be monitoring the Lake 
Michigan Regional Source Water Project’s overall schedule 
and indicate if there are any schedule concerns. This will 
be done by intentionally maintaining a holistic perspective 
and leaning into the two topics above—Leadership and 
Communication—as well as our proposed principles of 
transparency, courage and expediency. 

QUALITY
It is standard on all Consor projects to have 
QC processes by senior leaders on the 
margins of the project team. 

Each written deliverable will have a signoff for Pete as well 
as the QC reviewer. Further, those same professionals will 
reach out to the DWC leadership and request feedback on 
the team at key milestones. 

Provide a summary of project planning critical 
path items, and the recommended approach for 
tracking and reporting on the same.   

All facets of this project have the potential to become 
critical path items.  

As is typical of major infrastructure projects, the DWA 
will maintain a master schedule for the elements of 
services within this scope, showing the timelines and 
interdependencies of our tasks. We suggest a tool such 
as Microsoft Project as this is more than capable for our 
scope. Further, if at some point we want to integrate tools 
with the Program Manager (which may be different or 
proprietary), Microsoft Project can be exported and we 
are happy to adjust to any industry standard.  

For our scope of work, tracking and reporting on critical 
path items will be part of all standing meetings. 

Further, it is our practice to have one Risk Register, and 
one Master Schedule for all activities, and it is our best 
practice to have these documents open prior to meetings, 
so that quick reference and updates can be made real 
time. The use of OneNote, as a single binder for all notes, 
accessible to the whole team, is also intended for this 
project. This consolidation makes it easier to access 
information, and provides the transparency and history to 
all members of the team.

The same approach is recommended once the Program 
Manager is in place. We suggest that these principles be 
applied, which will be easier if we develop that culture 
and discipline and evolve and mature the process to meet 
the DWC needs and expectations. 

Our standing meetings will have several common 
agenda items, including:

Culture of Caring

Old and New Action Items 

Critical Path Items 

1

2

3

 
                                                107 of 131



|   28DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

ANTICIPATED CRITICAL PATH ITEMS  
AT THIS TIME INCLUDE:

Unifying the communications from the leadership 
team (NSMJAWA, DWC, and potentially Glencoe 
and Northbrook) is important to build support for 
the project. Managing the narrative can be done by 
providing the team talking points and clear guidance 
when talking with the press, and by selecting appropriate 
channels to release updates to the public.

Establishing the terms and governance of funding 
the project elements  - See that there are no surprises 
among your partners and supporters while providing the 
framework for transparency and risk management. 

Securing easements through the entire alignment 
- We cannot move forward with the EIS until we have 
preliminary designs, and we cannot have preliminary 
design without confidence that we can build within the 
alignment. This is a time sensitive and politically sensitive 
component with many opportunities to go sideways. 

Establishing the NEPA process  - Understanding who 
will be the lead agency, and the process they want to 
follow will enable better planning. If staffing limitations 
exist with the lead Federal agency, we will identify ways 
to shore that deficiency up to keep the project on track 
without delay.  

Provide a summary of communication and 
reporting goals, including submittal of written 
documents, and presentations to the Board(s).   

First off, the success of DuPage Water Commission is 
inseparable from trust, and there is no trust without 
communication. That includes communication within the 
leadership team, between the DWC and its stakeholders, 
and appropriate public outreach.  

Our communication and reporting goal is to become a 
partnership and build trust between the DuPage Water 
Advisors and the DuPage Water Commission leadership. 
To do this, we endeavor to: 

• Eliminate surprises 

• Communicate as clearly and quickly as possible 

• Disseminate information equally and transparently 
to the team 

• Be available to the DWC leadership 

On a practical front, Pete will be our point person 
for formal communications with DWC, such as board 
presentations or external meetings. Pete is familiar with 
Board and Committee presentations, and will prepare 
slides in advance, for approval, and meet all public 
document submittal guidelines. Pete will not present or 
submit any documents without DWC Executive Director 
approvals – consistent with our goal of no surprises.  

However, we anticipate being partners, so during working 
meetings, sidebars, quick updates, or when the DWC 
needs immediate information, there is no need to follow a 
formal chain of command from DuPage Water Commission 
to the DuPage Water Advisors. Our team has mutual 
respect and trust in our professionalism. This is consistent 
with expediency. We also recognize that partnership and 
communication is a two-way street. The expectation is 
Pete will have the ability to contact DWC leadership in an 
open-door manner , although likely through a single point 
of contact such as the Executive Director.

An internal communication plan will evolve, documenting 
the norms to disseminate information and provide the full 
team with situational awareness. As a start, the internal 
communication plan will: 

• Identify key points of contact for each task 

• Provide a weekly summary report via email to the 
DWC Executive Director cataloging key activities 
completed, anticipated activities for the following 
week, and highlight any concerns

• Require that our written documents such as Tech 
Memos, Summary Reports, and other deliverables 
have signature blocks for the originator and reviewer 

• Limit all engagement with stakeholders outside the 
DWC without express permission

Identification of any critical project elements 
that may arise or are anticipated, along with the 
Team’s recommended approach in addressing 
them.

One of the ways in which we will organize thoughts and 
discussions of the Lake Michigan Regional Source Water 
Project is to break the whole into the logical components, 
as each component will have its own critical project 
elements. From upstream to down, the components 
include: intake, raw water tunnel, treatment plant, 
potable water tunnel, and interconnections with existing 
distribution. Below are some preliminary thoughts on 
each:

 
                                                108 of 131



|   29DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

INTAKE. (Permit, impingement) The exact alignment 
is not yet set, and the property owners need to be 
addressed. This could include Glencoe, the North Shore 
Congregation of Israel, or the Northshore Country Club. 
DWC should cultivate relationships with each to allow 
flexibility and negotiating leverage. Also, DWC should 
consider design elements for threats such as Zebra 
/ Quagga mussels, or accidental spills, and possible 
sabotage. Each of these are elements of resilient design 
but should be addressed in the planning phase. These 
threats can be addressed through the risk register, 
proactive discussion and strategic actions. In these 
particular issues, there is no right or wrong, but there 
needs to be an awareness and transparency of the risks.  

RAW WATER TUNNEL. At the moment, the raw 
water tunnel appears to be technically viable, without 
much complexity, but the rights-of-way may need 
some negotiating room to cross the highways and RR. 
Objections may need to be overcome by looking for win-
win opportunities for the objectors. Therefore, it will be 
necessary to secure the services of tunneling specialists 
early on to ensure understanding of technical feasibility 
and challenges and their mitigations to be ready for 
objections.  And, we will seek advice on what beneficial 
opportunities may avail themselves to the objectors so 
we can present them in negotiations. Such opportunities 
may be co-location of utilities, fiberoptic lines, structural 
enhancements, and monitoring/detecting devices.   

TREATMENT PLANT. The Treatment Plant is most 
dynamic regarding the capacity and water quality 
treatment. Designing the capacity with modularity may 
help defer initial costs, and the ultimate scaling may 
become a minimum financial threshold, depending on 
the business case. As for the water quality elements, 
addressing emerging contaminants, such as PFAS, will be a 
decision that the DuPage Water Commission will need to 
make and work into the business case. 

FINISHED WATER TUNNEL. The finished water 
tunnel may pass through some faults and requires 
some significant concessions from the UPRR, which are 
important elements to reflect upon. Our approach to the 
faults will be to have targeted conversations with experts 
to create enough understanding of the risks, and the 
mitigation costs, so the designers can properly scope their 
solutions. For the alignment with the UPRR, we will, as 
indicated above, try to navigate to a yes/no decision from 
the RR as fast as possible so there is time to refine a new 
alignment. 

INTERCONNECTIONS. There is no point in this 
project if it does not interconnect with a distribution 
system. These interconnections can be very 
intricate and have impact to the local distribution. 
Modeling may be needed to understand the impact 
of local pressures and flows to meet current and 
anticipated demands. The interconnections, if 
contracted separately, are local points of interest for 
contracting, financing, and ownership questions. The 
DuPage Water Advisors would raise and facilitate 
these conversations early and bring a background 
of information to help guide the conversation and 
inform the decision-making process. 

Furthermore, there are five Programmatic Elements 
to this project that we think should be raised: 

1 First, is timing; elements of Tasks 1-7 such as 
communications, finance / finding, and 

governance, are the right places to focus attention. 
But we emphasize that this needs to be brought as 
quickly as possible. We believe one of the factors of 
success is the ability of the project team to quickly 
gain momentum and move at a pace that keeps the 
DWC one step ahead of resistance. The DWA must 
accelerate the team until it has enough mass where 
the force is overwhelming, quickly and decisively 
moving towards a clear goal. 

2 Second, is preparing the market for a project of 
this scale. For example, there are only so many 

tunnel boring machines available, and contractors 
need time to recruit and train local workforce. 
Preparing the market can have significant benefit to 
the cost and schedule. We would facilitate awareness 
through our own network of contractors, select 
conferences, articles, or other outlets to make the 
project attractive to bidders nationwide. 

3 Third, the current political climate may affect 
permit reviewing agencies such as the EPA, 

USACE, and the NEPA and WIFIA processes. While 
some impacts may accelerate timelines, others may 
hinder approvals. The impacts range from policy 
changes to personnel changes, the impacts of which 
are largely unknown. This creates uncertainty in 
timelines and budgets—risk elements that should be 
monitored closely. The DWA has available capacity 
and capability to monitor and advise as needed. 

 
                                                109 of 131



|   30DuPage Water Commission |  Technical Advisory Team -  Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project  |  April 2025

4 The City of Chicago may reengage and seek broader 
support for its position. Continued financial and 

technical analysis will help inform DuPage Water 
Commission’s (DWC’s) approach, making sure responses 
remain grounded in data and aligned with long-term goals. 
Currently, the City does not appear to benefit directly from 
the Lake Michigan Regional Source Water Project, which may 
shape its level of interest and engagement—though this 
dynamic could evolve as regional priorities, leadership, or 
partnership opportunities shift over time. As leadership 
transitions occur, priorities may shift. Staying informed and 
focused on the best outcomes for DWC’s customers will help 
maintain clarity and direction 

5 The fifth and final topic we would like to share is our 
awareness that the Lake Michigan Regional Source 

Water Project is an opportunity to inform our industry in 
novel ways. As mentioned, many suburban communities 
across the nation are developing capacities that allow them 
to dissociate from a central urban hub. This trend is likely to 
continue, and the DuPage Water Commission may be able to 
provide a great service to our industry by selecting and 
inviting a University Professor (i.e. Northwestern, University 
of Illinois, which has a history of studying the local water 
systems) to engage in developing case studies of this entire 
process. He or she would be an unobtrusive low or no cost 
addition to the program. Invited to listen, evaluate, and 
disseminate a scholarly assessment of the journey the DWC 
is about to embark upon. This will not only provide the 
lessons learned from forming a multibillion dollar 
investment, not only elevate the role of engineering to 
business leaders, not only position the DuPage Water 
Commission as leaders, but also be one more important 
voice in how a local utility is shaping the face of water 
management in or country. The DuPage Water Advisors have 
strong relationships with professors who have spent much of 
their careers studying the Great Lakes and local water 
management, and we would be happy to facilitate these 
conversations.

 
                                                110 of 131



|   31

KEY STAFF RESUMES

Appendix A 

Pete Mulvaney
Lead Advisor

Guy  
Carpenter

Deputy  
Advisor

John 
Mastracchio 

Financial 
Advisor

Libby 
Barg-Bakke 

Technical  
Advisor

Gregg  
Hostetler, PE
Professional 
Engineering

 
                                                111 of 131



|   32

Pete has more than 25 years of experience providing and leading sustainable solutions 
to challenges across the globe. He is expert at connecting water policy and science 
to utility strategies that improve outcomes for all stakeholders. Pete has a blend of 
practical experiences, including governance and policy development as an Assistant 
Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Water Management, financial advisory roles 
in private equity, and large infrastructure management expertise from leadership roles in 
architecture for other engineering firms. 

As Director of Utility Management at Consor, Pete leads a team of multidisciplinary 
experts dedicated to supporting water and wastewater utilities. With experience as a 
former utility leader, Pete brings practical insight into the operations and business of 
public utilities. His background includes oversight of large infrastructure projects—both 
domestically and through his work with the World Bank—and a strong understanding of 
the political and regulatory landscape, as demonstrated through his published work.

Why Pete: 
• Deep understanding of Chicago’s hydrologic, political, and engineering systems.

• Proven ability to align utility strategies with funding, regulatory, and policy 
frameworks to deliver sustainable, stakeholder-driven outcomes.

• Broad infrastructure leadership experience—from local government to global 
consulting—provides the perspective needed to navigate complex programs and 
deliver long-term value.

Experience:
25 years

Education:
MBA, Business 
Administration, Kellogg  
School Management

MS, Pollution Control, 
Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, Pennsylvania 
State University

BA, Psychology, The University 
of Colorado

Certifications:
• USGBC LEED AP, 2002
• EcoDistricts AP, 2020

Key Expertise:
• Program Leadership
• Team and Trust Building 
• Sustainability Strategies
• Climate Resilience
• Sustainable Water 

Systems
• Stakeholder Management 

and Facilitation
• Sustainable Design of 

Built Environment
• Connecting business 

cases to strategic goals

HUALAPAI PROJECT SUITE PROGRAM, HUALAPAI TRIBE, AZ; Program Manager 
Director. Consor currently serves as the design manager for the Hualapai Tribe’s 
innovative project bundle of 30 projects, which is being delivered under a CM/GC 
contract. Projects include 60 miles of pipes, pumps, and treatment to access the Colorado 
River as a new source of water, a new administration building, a railroad overpass, and 
other roadwork. This suite of projects will enhance the quality of life for all Hualapai 
and preserve their heritage for future generations. Pete’s work is also focused on 
preparing the Tribe to operate and manage a utility that will support and sustain the new 
infrastructure delivered through this program.

CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF WATER MANAGEMENT JOINT VENTURE; 
CHICAGO, IL; Board Member and Program Manager. The six core areas of service 
included: (1) Planning and Design of Watermains (2) Construction Management 
Facilities and Watermains (3) Advanced Technology (4) Sewer Advisory and (5) Inventory 
Management (6) Utility Coordination and Permit Reviews. As Program Manager, Pete was 
responsible for all aspects of program. He managed around 200 employees of the Joint 
Venture, and reported to the Board representing the three partner firms within

 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE

PETE MULVANEY, LEED AP, ECODISTRICT AP
LEAD ADVISOR
“I look forward to working with the DuPage Water Commission and confirm 
my deep commitment to making you and this project a success.” 

 
                                                112 of 131



|   33

the joint venture (Jacobs, Arcadis, EXP). Pete saw both 
the startup of CTR as a City employee and later led its 
execution phase as a Board Member, and finally its and 
close-out phase as its Program Manager.

CITY OF CHICAGO, DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
MANAGEMENT; CHICAGO, IL; Assistant Commissioner. 
Pete was responsible for capital planning and engineering 
of Chicago’s sewer system. He was also the Department 
liaison from the Mayor’s Office to the regional wastewater 
agency. Additionally, Pete was a key author of several 
policies which defined the city’s goals, strategies, 
and implementation tactics, while building cross-
functional teams to execute infrastructure initiatives and 
management directives. This included the state’s first 
design-build tunnel (McCormick Place Tunnel), the first 
comprehensive hydrologic and hydraulic model of the city 
sewers, the first operations and operating manual, and the 
first Chicago Stormwater Management ordinance, now an 
EPA model for cities across the country

GREAT LAKES COMMISSION THE NATURAL DIVIDE; 
CHICAGO, IL; Project Manager. Feasibility study of 
the technical and economic possibilities of hydrologic 
barriers within the Chicago Area Waterways. Led the 
stakeholder outreach, engagement, and collaboration 
strategy and execution for over 30 agencies and 
institutions to establish an open dialog and exploration 
of the reversal of the Chicago River. Guided the science, 
stakeholder engagement, and process development for 
the “Envisioning the Chicago River for the 21st Century” 
project. Prepared input reports to the USACE for their 
analysis of the Chicago River and the need for protection 
against Asian carp.

PRIVATE EQUITY, - SUSTAINABILITY FUND, 
PFINGSTEN PARTNERS, CHICAGO, IL; Project Manager. 
Pete directed capital toward infrastructure businesses 
that, had the potential to deliver better projects and 
competitive returns for investors. On behalf of private 
equity firms, he identified and evaluated potential 
portfolio companies—interviewing CEOs and senior 
leadership, reviewing financials, and preparing market 
analyses.

OMAHA COMBINED SEWER OVERFLOW CONSENT 
DECREE MASTER PLAN EVALUATION; CITY OF 
OMAHA DEPARTMENT OF WATER; Client Facilitator. 
The team established the optimal suite of projects to 
meet combined sewer overflow goals for the EPA. Pete 
facilitated the dialog between client and consulting teams 
to establish and affirm alignment between multiple 

PETE MULVANEY | LEAD ADVISOR (continued)

stakeholders. The team also defined the elements of the 
proposed real estate development to attract the best and 
brightest companies and workforce and established the 
overall framework and the implementation schedule

DANUBE RIVER RESTORATION, THE WORLD BANK, 
BULGARIA; Managing Consultant. Drove project 
consensus among team of engineers, ecologists, 
economists, and local special interest groups by 
establishing a clear and unifying vision of stakeholder 
benefits, resulting in the establishment of Bulgaria’s 
negotiation position for an international water quality 
treaty. Presented to heads of state on the merits of the 
restoration to provide results to the international treaty. 
Responsibilities included assembling and leading teams 
that specialized in multi-disciplinary projects requiring the 
integration of business, environmental, engineering, and 
social concerns associated with two very large landscape 
restorations within the Danube River.

AMAILA FALLS HYDROPOWER PROJECT, THE WORLD 
BANK, GUYANA; Managing Consultant. Assembled and 
led field teams into the rainforest to establish the potential 
impacts of hydropower on the Amaila river. Results led to 
the World Bank decision to halt investment in Guyana’s 
hydropower expansion.

JACOBS MIDWEST WATER LEADER; CHICAGO, 
IL; MidWest Group Leader. Pete was responsible for 
personnel, contracts, client service, and financial 
performance for all water / wastewater / stormwater 
business in Illinois, Wisconsin, Iowa, and Minnesota. 
Projects under his purview included new treatment 
facilities, asset rehabilitations, PFAS removal pilots, 
condition assessments, hydrologic and hydraulic studies.

MICROSOFT DATA CENTER - GLOBAL WATER 
STRATEGY; SEATTLE, WA; Subject Matter Expert. Created 
and led the process to establish a global sustainable 
water strategy for data centers, aligning with corporate 
goals. Established the approach to reduce or eliminate 
water use for cooling at existing, planned, and in-progress 
data center projects. Prepared guidance to incorporate 
environmental context into the siting and design of data 
centers, advancing Microsoft toward a water-neutral 
footprint.

CONDITION ASSESSMENT OF CAMPUS CIVIL 
INFRASTRUCTURE; ARGONNE NATIONAL 
LABORATORY, IL; Civil Infrastructure Lead. The 
team prepared the condition assessment for all civil 
infrastructure on campus to prepare a budget estimate 
and request to Congress for infrastructure modernization 

 
                                                113 of 131



|   34

PETE MULVANEY | LEAD ADVISOR (continued)

funding. Pete led the multi-discipline team of subject 
matter experts, client interface and quality control.

SKIDMORE OWINGS AND MERRILL GREAT LAKES 
CENTURY VISION; CHICAGO, IL; Global Water Strategist. 
A multinational collaboration to establish an inspirational 
vision for the Great Lakes. Directed water research and 
identified baseline critical issues across the Great Lakes 
basin. Articulated and presented findings to a broad 
range of audiences to raise awareness of freshwater 
management. Engaged a wide array of stakeholders to 
advance shared understanding and inspire action.

CONSOLIDATED EDISO CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT 
PLAN; NEW YORK, NY; Task Leader Customer Outreach 
and Stakeholder Engagement. ConEd’s largest capital 
project in its history –a complex replacement of meters 
and the associated infrastructure to collect, manage and 
analyze the data to improve customer experience. Built 
relationship bridges across numerous internal and external 
stakeholders to develop consensus on the messages, 
channels, and approach to outreach.

EXTREME HEAT MANAGEMENT; CHICAGO, IL; 
Project Manager. Established a common platform to 
manage extreme heat events and facilitate data sharing, 
communications, and coordination of field sites among 
all managing stakeholders. Developed a multidisciplinary 
approach to urban heat stress response. Collaborated 
across eight City departments—including Public Health, 
Planning, Emergency Management, Fire, Police, Human 
Services, Library, and Schools—as well as with external 
partners such as the electric utility, ambulatory care 
providers, hospitals, and NASA.

EXAMPLE PUBLICATIONS 

Strategy and Water/Wastewater Management

1. October 2014; National Climate Assessment, 
Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ), Lead Author, 
Coastal Zone Development and Ecosystems, Kirshen, 
Mulvaney, Murley, Neumann, Petes, Reed. http://
nca2014.globalchange.gov/report#menu-report; 
http://nca2014.globalchange.gov/report/regions/
coasts#intro-section-2 

2. August 2016; Integration of Nature and Technology for 
Smart Cities; Springer International Publishing; ISBN 
978-3-319-25713-6, Anil Ahuja, Peter Mulvaney, Petra 
Stieninger 

3. October 6, 2021, CRAIN’S BUSINESS; An open letter 
to Illinois leaders: We can solve the Chicago area’s 
water challenges. https://www.chicagobusiness.com/

opinion/open-letter-illinois-leaders-solutions-water-
challenges 

4. September 18, 2013, CRAIN’S BUSINESS; Enough 
carping: Chicago can modernize its port and deter 
invasive species http://www.chicagobusiness.com/
article/20130918/OPINION/130919800/enough-
carping-chicago-can-modernize-its-port-and-deter-
invasive-species 

5. April 1, 2014; CRAIN’S BUSINESS; Great Lakes need 
a great vision; otherwise, it’s just a load of carp 
http://www.chicagobusiness.com/article/20140401/
OPINION/140339970/great-lakes-need-a-great-vision-
otherwise-its-just-a-load-of-carp 

6. August 13, 2014; Cleveland Post; Toledo’s water ban 
demands a holistic view: Pete Mulvaney http://www.
cleveland.com/opinion/index.ssf/2014/08/toledos_
water_ban_demands_a_ho.html 

7. Winter 2024; Central States Water Official Magazine of 
the Central States Water Environment Association, 
Inc.; Sewer Thermal: Can Sewage Be Used to Heat and 
Cool My Building?; Peter Mulvaney, page 32. 

8. July 2016; American Water Works Association, 
OpFlow; Advanced Metering Infrastructure Underpins 
a Smart Water Utility; Hulsebosch, Tom; McClung, 
Tommy; Mulvaney, Peter, Weeks, Greg; Volume 42, 
Issue 7; Pages 14-17.  

9. September 2017; West Monroe White Paper, 
Defining the Waters of the United States: How We 
Got Here and Where We Should Go, Mulvaney, http://
www.westmonroepartners.com/Insights/White-
Papers/EU-WOTUS

10. June 2016; Time for Transformation – Water Utilities 
Are on the Rise, By Peter Mulvaney; West Monroe 
Partners; Blog; Our People, Our Perspectives, Our 
Work; http://blog.westmonroepartners.com/time-for-
transformation-water-utilities-are-on-the-rise/

 
                                                114 of 131



|   35

Guy has more than 30 years of experience in water, water resources, wastewater, and 
reclaimed water consulting and master planning. His experience includes operations, 
capital project budgeting and management, decision support, management consulting, 
stakeholder facilitation, system evaluations, water resource development support, 
water rights negotiations and valuations, water resource accounting and management, 
and permitting. Much of Guy’s career has leveraged his knowledge of water quality 
and quantity regulations and policy to help communities create infrastructure plans to 
support their community health, economic development, and quality of life goals in a 
cost-effective manner. 

Why Guy: 
With the recognition that engineers and water providers are the ultimate stewards of 
the rate payer’s trust and money, Guy is constantly focused on balancing capital costs 
with O&M costs to provide for reasonable rate setting for reliable revenue, defensible 
finance plans, and long-term asset management. Guy’s experience with multi-jurisdiction 
stakeholder engagement and facilitation will help DWC with maintaining priorities while 
ensuring all voices are sufficiently considered.

Experience:
34 years

Education:
Bachelor of Science, 
Chemistry, Northern Arizona 
University

Certifications:
• Professional Engineer 

(Civil) - AZ

Key Expertise:
• Inter-jurisdictional 

relations
• Permitting & negotiations
• Risk mitigation
• Conflict resolution

HUALAPAI PROJECT SUITE PROGRAM, HUALAPAI TRIBE, AZ; Principal-in-Charge, 
Independent Program Board Chair. Guy served as the Principal-in-Charge with the primary 
responsibilities of risk mitigation, cash flow monitoring, conflict resolution, and workload 
balancing among the firms that make up the design team. The Hualapai Infrastructure 
Program is a transformational bundle of more than 30 projects that will be rapidly 
delivered to enhance the quality of life for all Hualapai and preserve their heritage for 
future generations. It includes projects for water, transportation, community recreation, 
and tribal facilities, as well as capacity building/planning, operations, and maintenance. 

PIPELINE MAINTENANCE STRATEGY; CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT (CAP), AZ; 
Principal-in-Charge. Guy led an alternatives analysis and 100-year life-cycle cost analysis 
(LCCA) for continuing to use the existing mild steel pipes, build new PCCP pipes, or 
making use of abandoned pre-stressed 21-foot diameter concrete pipes as sleeves for 
smaller diameter pipes to convey Colorado River water under the Agua Fria and Salt 
Rivers along the 330-mile Central Arizona Project (CAP). The team used a triple bottom 
line approach to evaluate three alternatives and provide defensible criteria for the final 
recommendation, which was projected to save the client nearly $500M over the 100-year 
life cycle.

GOLDFIELD RANCH SMALL PLANT REVIEW TECHNICAL SUPPORT STUDY; SALT 
RIVER PIMA-MARICOPA INDIAN COMMUNITY (SRPMIC), AZ; Project Manager. Guy 
served as owner’s representative to the Salt River Pima Maricopa Indian Community 
to review applications submitted by the Goldfield Ranch homeowners association to 
construct a new small scale wastewater treatment facility near the Verde River.  The 
Community was opposed to the project, and Guy provided technical and regulatory 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE

GUY CARPENTER, PE
DEPUTY ADVISOR

 
                                                115 of 131



|   36

review to demonstrate why the project should not be 
permitted. 

WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE 
STUDY; PASCUA YAQUI INDIAN TRIBE, TUCSON, 
AZ; Project Engineer. This project evaluates water and 
wastewater system alternatives for the Tribe to develop 
its own infrastructure and disconnect from 3rd party 
service providers. The study also includes an Operations 
and Maintenance Organization framework development 
for the recommended water and wastewater system 
alternatives.

WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT; SRPMIC, 
AZ; Project Director. The project included the demolition 
of several obsolete facilities, and the design of three new 
wells, a water production facility with a 2.25 MG reservoir 
and booster pump station and an administration building 
and equipment storage, and several water and wastewater 
pipelines needed to improve water pressure and flow 
throughout the system. The project also included a minor 
update to the community’s potable water system hydraulic 
model, and the demolition and re-design of a wastewater 
lift station.

RECHARGE AND RECOVERY CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT 
STUDY; ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE (APS); Project 
Manager. The concept was to recharge reclaimed water 
when it is available from the 91st Avenue Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (typically in winter, spring, and fall), 
but is not immediately needed for cooling, and recover 
stored water through a well-field and associated pipeline 
to meet peak cooling demands that occur during the 
summer months. This approach could also provide a 
backup supply of water to support power generation 
should the dedicated effluent pipeline from the 91st 
Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant to PVNGS be out of 
service for a prolonged period of time. The final report 
will provide the APS project manager with information 
necessary to describe the concept and its associated 
potential costs and benefits to APS management for 
further consideration of concept development.

CANADA FRAMEWORK FOR SUSTAINABLE WATER 
MANAGEMENT IN THE NORTH REGIONAL CONTEXT 
STUDY AREA, CITY OF CALGARY, ALBERTA; Project 
Manager. The study resulted in an integrated water 
deployment system that decreases the investment 
required for new potable water development, treatment, 
and distribution while implementing an efficient non-
potable water delivery system that is responsive to the 
City’s water related policies, including those for efficiency, 
storm water management, watershed management, and 
the City’s triple bottom line policy.  The plan balanced the 

GUY CARPENTER | DEPUTY ADVISOR (continued)

costs for potable water service by incorporating water 
reuse, stormwater capture and treatment for non-potable 
demands, and strategies for in-stream flow management 
and erosion control.

JOINT WATER TREATMENT PLANT FEASIBILITY 
STUDY, TOWN OF GILBERT AND CITY OF CHANDLER, 
AZ; Project Engineer. Determined the best and lowest 
cost route and infrastructure to transport Central Arizona 
Project water through the East Valley to three potential 
joint water treatment plant sites. Considerations included 
tunneling; jack & bore  and horizontal directional drilling 
options; canal, freeway, railroad, and flood control facility 
crossings; rights of way and easement opportunities and 
constraints, and; cultural resources and threatened and 
endangered species.

INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER PLAN, 
CITY OF GLENDALE, AZ; Technical Advisor. To initiate 
the master plan, Guy facilitated scenario planning 
sessions with operations, management, engineering, 
and community development staff to consider a wide 
range of scenarios related to water scarcity, economic 
development, workforce availability, technology 
innovations, and “black swan” events such as pandemics. 
The result of the scenario planning set the stage for water, 
wastewater, recycled water, and stormwater planning 
that would give the client the best opportunity to invest 
in infrastructure that would not result in stranded assets, 
improve resiliency, and increase reliance on automation 
for optimization of chemical, power, and labor.

REVIEW OF THE 91ST AVENUE WATER TREATMENT 
PLANT EFFLUENT CONTRACTS, CITY OF PHOENIX, AZ; 
Project Manager. Responsible for developing the scenarios 
and associated cost estimates for determining the cost 
of replacing 90,000 AFY (80-mgd) of reclaimed water 
should the APS/ Arizona Nuclear Power Project (ANPP) 
need to develop a replacement supply and should the 
SROG (Phoenix, Glendale, Mesa, Scottsdale, and Tempe) 
member cities need to use the reclaimed water for other 
purposes. The value of the reclaimed water that may be 
leased to ANPP was estimated by examining the cost to 
purchase Indian lease CAP water and the cost to increase 
the use of groundwater as a means of replacing the water 
that may be leased to ANPP. Follow up work required 
support services during negotiations with ANPP to include 
developing a water-pricing index, cost assessments, 
decommissioning a nuclear power plant considerations, 
a case study review of reclaimed water costs for other 
power facilities, and a water appraisal report review. 

 
                                                116 of 131



|   37

Libby is widely known for her planning and strategic communications expertise, working 
with elected officials, interest groups, and the public to build long-term support for 
projects. She specializes in developing public involvement strategies and programs that 
support clients’ initiatives such as new and expanded facilities, funding strategies, and 
ratepayer communications. Additionally, Libby has helped several clients evaluate and 
submit funding applications for EPA’s Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act 
(WIFIA) funding. Over the past decade, Libby has played a pivotal role in the strategic 
planning and communication for significant water resource projects, representing more 
than $3.5 billion in infrastructure investments. These include the Portland Water Bureau’s 
Bull Run Filtration Project; Tualatin Valley Water District, Hillsboro, and Beaverton’s 
Willamette River Water Supply Program; the City of Bend’s Bridge Creek Water Supply; 
the Lake Oswego-Tigard Water Partnership; and planning for Eugene Water & Electric 
Board’s Willamette River water treatment plant. 

Libby is a seasoned drinking water professional and was formerly the Water Quality 
Manager for the City of Salem, Oregon, responsible for watershed protection, the 60-
MGD water filtration plant on the North Santiam River, Oregon’s first Aquifer Storage and 
Recovery system, and a 100 MG open reservoir. She is also a past Trustee for the Pacific 
Northwest Section of the American Water Works Association. 

Why Libby: 
• Expert facilitator adept at bringing stakeholders together to find lasting solutions
• Innovative communicator, skilled at building public support for large and controversial 

projects
• Deep expertise in water related topics that informs clear communications: rates and 

financing, planning, design and construction, partnering, permitting and more

Experience:
25 years

Education:
Master of Community and 
Regional Planning, University 
of Oregon
BS, Fisheries and Wildlife 
Biology, Kansas State 
University

Key Expertise
• Strategic planning
• Data driven insights
• Survey design and 

administration
• Leadership advising
• Strategic communications
• Public engagement 

planning
• Held Level 4 Water 

Treatment and 
Distribution Operator 
License for 25 years

WILLAMETTE WATER SUPPLY PROGRAM, TUALATIN VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
(TVWD), CITY OF HILLSBORO, AND CITY OF BEAVERTON, OR; Strategic 
Communications and Stakeholder Engagement. Since 2014, Consor has led public 
engagement for the $1.6B Willamette Water Supply Program, a partnership between 
TVWD, the City of Hillsboro, and the City of Beaverton. The Program includes a treatment 
plant, 30 miles of pipelines, and a reservoir—constructed in five communities and 
unincorporated Washington County. Public engagement efforts on the project began 
during water supply planning efforts and have continued seamlessly over the last decade 
through design and construction. When the Willamette Water Supply System is online 
in 2026, it will be one of Oregon’s most earthquake-resilient water systems. Libby’s 
strategic approach to communications spans a variety of tools and activities: branding 
developed with public opinion research, website development and maintenance, virtual 
and in-public open houses, interactive community meetings, monthly e-blast updates, 
informative fact sheets, and news stories, targeted direct mailings, engaging educational 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE

LIBBY BARG BAKKE
TECHNICAL ADVISOR

 
                                                117 of 131



|   38

videos, comprehensive construction communications, 
and the facilitation of groundbreaking and ribbon-cutting 
events. Public and elected official input and awareness 
is ongoing to ensure public support and reduce the 
potential for opposition to the project during the local 
land use permitting and federal environmental permitting 
processes.

GROUNDWATER SUPPLY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 
ROCKWOOD WATER PEOPLE’S UTILITY DISTRICT 
(RWPUD)/CITY OF GRESHAM, OR; Strategic 
Communications. The Consor team represented the 
owners for one of the largest new water supply systems 
built in Oregon in the last 100 years. Our Consor team 
was integral in the early planning and design projects with 
both RWPUD and the City of Gresham that set the stage 
for this $120-million WIFIA-funded water supply program. 
The new system will provide up to 30 MGD, and be 
operational in 2025. Consor has been involved in design 
and construction of nearly every package, and provides 
communications support including developing a campaign 
for the transition of surface water to groundwater.

BULL RUN WATER FILTRATION PROJECT, PORTLAND 
WATER BUREAU (PWB), OR; Strategic Communications 
and Stakeholder Engagement. Since 2018, Libby and her 
team at Consor have partnered with the Portland Water 
Bureau (PWB) to lead strategic communications for a 
multi-year effort to enhance the reliability and resilience 
of the Bull Run water supply. The program includes the 
development of a new 135 million gallon-per-day water 
filtration facility and the construction of approximately 
four miles of large-diameter pipeline to safeguard public 
health and ensure compliance with federal drinking water 
regulations. Libby’s team has played a critical role in 
shaping and executing a comprehensive communications 
strategy, beginning with gathering community feedback 
to inform key Program decisions regarding the treatment 
plant’s location, technology, and capacity. They developed 
a long-term strategic communications framework to 
support project implementation, facilitated community 
advisory groups, and planned and managed public 
engagement events. Additionally, the team conducted 
public opinion research, produced content for digital 
outreach and monthly newsletters, and provided key 
support for stakeholder briefings and City Council 
presentations. Their efforts also extended to the 
procurement process, where they worked on strategies 
to maximize DMWESB (Disadvantaged, Minority, 
Women, Emerging Small Business) participation, creating 
opportunities for firms that had not previously engaged 
with the City of Portland.

WATER SDC POLICY ADVISORY GROUP, CITY OF 
HILLSBORO, OR; Facilitator. Libby facilitated an 
11-member citizen policy advisory group, including 
representatives from the Homebuilders Association, 
developers, major water customers and low-income 
housing providers to consider the advantages and 
disadvantages of dividing the costs of Hillsboro’s new 
water source between existing customers, and new 
development. Electronic polling ensured everyone had a 
voice at the table and streamlined the discussion to the 
most relevant topics. The panel recommendations for 
sharing the cost for Hillsboro’s new water source between 
residential customers and new development were 
unanimously supported by the Utilities Commission, with 
no hearing testimony in opposition. 

BRIDGE CREEK WATER SUPPLY STRATEGIC 
COMMUNICATIONS, CITY OF BEND, OR; Strategic 
Communications and Stakeholder Engagement. Libby led 
communications efforts for the City of Bend’s Surface 
Water Improvements Program, which included a new 
intake, replacement supply pipeline, and a new treatment 
plant to meet EPA LT2 requirements. When Libby joined 
the project, the pipeline replacement component had 
suffered a series of setbacks in federal court and from 
the Land Use Board of Appeals, giving the appearance 
the project had stalled or lost momentum. Support from 
the City Council was low, and the project was at risk. 
Libby re-branded the project as the Bridge Creek Pipeline 
Replacement Project, emphasizing the importance of 
renewing a vital water source. Through this and other 
branding and communications efforts, public opinion 
shifted, and the project was completed and put into 
operation.

GEREN ISLAND WATER TREATMENT FACILITY 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, CITY OF SALEM, OR; 
Strategic Communications and Stakeholder Engagement. 
The City of Salem installed a state-of-the-art drinking 
water treatment system to remove cyanotoxins to provide 
long-term protection from cyanotoxin blooms in the 
watershed. As part of the Carollo team, Consor provided 
communications support for the ozone project, including 
developing a fact sheet, an interactive virtual tour of 
the project, and project videos. Consor also planned, 
facilitated, and created materials for the successful ribbon-
cutting event. Along with communications for the project, 
Consor drafted a Communications Workplan to provide 
timely and accurate information to the public and key 
stakeholders and prepare the community for water system 
emergencies. Communication goals included:

LIBBY BARG BAKKE | TECHNICAL ADVISOR (continued)

 
                                                118 of 131



|   39

• Raising awareness of water quality and reliability 
improvements underway.

• Increasing Salem area residents’ awareness of their 
role in preparing for emergencies.

• Developing proactive lines of communication with 
critical facilities managers, agriculture sector and 
industrial users, restaurant proprietors, Oregon Health 
Authority, Marion County Environmental Services, 
business organizations, neighborhood associations, 
and others. 

• Facilitating well-coordinated interdepartmental 
communications.

• Developing and initiating a media strategy. 
• Ensuring coordinated communications with the Geren 

Island project and other water quality initiatives. 

Materials developed as part of the 2019 communications 
effort included wallet cards, presentations, press releases, 
website updates, FAQs, cyanotoxin event notification 
messaging, and drafting the public notification chapter of 
the cyanotoxin emergency response plan.

CITY OF HILLSBORO CIP ROADMAP, CITY OF 
HILLSBORO, OR; Principal in Charge/Facilitator. Libby 
and her team, facilitated the development of Hillsboro’s 
Capital Program Improvement Roadmap to advance the 
City’s approaches to planning, prioritizing and delivering 
capital projects. Participants included both top leaders 
and key stakeholders from across City departments. The 
public involvement process included a series of interactive 
workshops, interviews, and analysis of department capital 
improvement plans. The Plan sets the priorities, goals, and 
action items for the Department, providing a roadmap for 
implementation and improvements. 

CORVALLIS WATER SUPPLY MASTER PLANS, CITY OF 
CORVALLIS, OR; Outreach and Facilitation Lead. Corvallis  
is incorporating climate change and natural disaster 
events into their water system master planning effort. 
Libby is providing public engagement services, including  
facilitating workshops with key water users.

BEND PUBLIC EDUCATION RESEARCH AND STRATEGY 
SERVICES, CITY OF BEND, OR; Project Manager. The 
City of Bend selected the Consor team to help develop  
a public education strategy to promote understanding  
and support among Bend voters for a package of  
transportation investments.  The work included assisting  
in implementing a transportation vision  for  the 
community, discerning community values for an improved 
sustainably funded transportation system, ensuring  
projects to be funded reflect community values and 
needs, creating outreach  tools, and leveraging support  

from community groups. With the support and effort 
of a dedicated group of community leaders and Bend’s  
City  Council, the General Obligation Bonds for Traffic 
Flow, East-West Connections, and  Neighborhood  Safety   
Improvements passed on  November  3,  2020,  despite  
the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
TRANSITION PLAN, TUALATIN, OR; Facilitator. 
Libby facilitated a transition team in identifying 
recommendations for internal and external 
communications, internal process improvements and 
team building regarding the Community Development 
Department (CDD). Services provided included opinion 
research, outreach, vision, and branding. 

MEDFORD WATER STRATEGIC PLAN; MEDFORD, OR; 
Project Manager. Libby Bakke and her team led a strategic 
planning workshop in 2019 for the Medford Water 
Commission (MWC) Commissioners, conducting a pre-
workshop survey, reviewing MWC’s mission and values, 
and prioritizing strategic initiatives into an implementable 
plan. Results were summarized in the utility’s strategic 
planning document, including a list of priority actions 
directly linked to their updated mission and values. One 
immediate action that came out of the workshop was to 
move forward with completing, then implementing, their 
Water Right Strategy and Source Water Protection efforts.

OAK LODGE SANITARY DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN; 
OAK GROVE, OR; Project Manager. Oak Lodge Sanitary 
District engaged Libby to update its Strategic Plan. The 
update began with a visioning workshop for the Board 
of Directors and reshaping the District’s vision, mission, 
values, and goals. The results were shared with the 
management team for refinement. A rollout for the 
plan was also created that included presentations to 
neighborhood associations, business organizations, and 
environmental groups; newsletter articles and news 
releases; and a publication for customers. The strategies 
and goals of the updated strategic plan are tied to the 
District’s budgeting process.

LIBBY BARG BAKKE | TECHNICAL ADVISOR (continued)

 
                                                119 of 131



|   40

John is an Executive Vice President with more than 30 years of experience as a financial 
and management consultant serving the utility, governmental, and private sectors. 
His extensive experience includes over 250 financial projects covering technical areas 
including financial planning and rate setting, capital financing, asset management, 
regionalization, valuation, litigation support, and transactional consulting, and spans 
several utility sectors including water, wastewater, electric, solid waste, and stormwater, 
along with consulting for federal and municipal general government, transportation, and 
ports. John has provided financial advisory and due diligence support for a number of 
large water supply projects across the U.S.  In addition, he is also an accredited appraiser 
who has experience in valuing utility assets for mergers and acquisitions, reorganizations 
(recapitalization and restructuring), eminent domain condemnation, tangible property 
valuation, cost to cure economic damages analyses, and litigation support.  

John has co-authored manuals of practice and utility industry papers on infrastructure 
investment, capital financing, financial management practices, and rate-setting, including 
AWWA’s Manual of Practice M1, Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges; Water 
Rates, Fees, and the Legal Environment; Manual of Practice M29, Water Capital Financing; 
and Financial Management for Water Utilities: Principles of Finance, Accounting, and 
Management Controls, along with the textbook The Effective Water Professional: 
Leadership, Communication, Management, Finance, and Governance, published by the 
Water Environment Federation (WEF). 

Why John: 
• Trusted advisor for major infrastructure investments: Supported financial planning 

and due diligence for large-scale water supply projects nationwide, including a 
financial feasibility assessment for DuPage Water Commission.

• Proven financial leadership: Brings over 30 years of experience and has led more than 
250 financial projects across utility, governmental, and private sectors—including 
water, wastewater, electric, and stormwater.

Experience:
31 years

Education:
Master of Business 
Administration, Finance - 
Cornell University

Master of Science, Civil & 
Environmental Engineering - 
Clarkson University

Bachelor of Arts - State 
University of New York, 
College at Geneseo

Certifications:
• Accredited Senior 

Appraiser
• Chartered Financial 

Analyst
• Professional Engineer 

(PA)
• Lean Six Sigma
• Series 50 Municipal 

Advisor Representative

Key Expertise:
• Financial analysis & 

modeling
• Financial planning, cost 

of service, rate design
• Bond feasibility studies
• Transactional due 

diligence support
• Government 

consolidation/
regionalization

• Capital financing & 
project planning

• Asset management/
business case 
evaluations 

FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY ASSESSMENT, DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION, IL; Lead 
Financial. John led efforts to prepare a conceptual financing plan to support DuPage 
Water Commission’s Alternative Water Supply Project. The work entailed reviewing 
the anticipated project cost and timing and preparing a long-term conceptual financial 
plan that considered various financing options for the project, including IEPA Public 
Water Supply Loan Program, WIFIA, conventional municipal bonds, and alternative 
project delivery approaches like DBOF. The effort included weighing the advantages and 
disadvantages of these options and preparing financial modeling scenarios showing 
the projected annual cash flow needs and water rates that would be necessary to fund 
the cost of the project. The financial projections under various options were compared 
to a status quo scenario of continuing to purchase water from the City of Chicago. This 
analysis helped support a financial feasibility opinion regarding the Alternative Water 
Supply Project.

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE

JOHN MASTRACCHIO ASA, CFA, PE
FINANCIAL ADVISOR

 
                                                120 of 131



|   41

JOHN MASTRACCHIO ASA, CFA, PE | FINANCIAL ADVISOR (continued)

SAWS VISTA RIDGE P3 WATER SUPPLY PROJECT, 
CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT (TX); Lead Financial. John led 
the completion of technical and financial due diligence 
evaluations for an investor group considering an equity 
investment in a billion-dollar water public-private 
partnership in San Antonio, TX comprised of a 142-mile 
water pipeline to provide an alternative water supply for 
the San Antonio Water System. Services included review 
and evaluation of contractual documentation with the 
owner, developer, and subcontractors, developed up-side 
and down-side financial projections and risk scenarios, 
identification and evaluation of investor risk, review and 
development of financial modelling assumptions regarding 
supply and demand, operation and maintenance costs, 
rate of return, capital expenditures and cost recovery. 
Efforts assisted equity investors evaluate the public-private 
partnership deal. 

PURE WATER SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA, 
METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA, CA; Lead Financial. John assisted the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
(Metropolitan) develop a cost allocation and funding plan 
for the Pure Water Southern California program. The 
Program is a partnership between Metropolitan and the 
Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts that will create 
a new water supply at an estimated cost of $8 billion 
to help meet the region’s needs by providing up to 150 
million gallons of water daily or 155,000 acre-feet-year, 
enough for 1.5 million people. The water will replenish 
groundwater basins, be used by industries, and potentially 
be integrated into Metropolitan’s existing drinking 
water treatment and delivery system. In support of the 
development of this project, John assisted Metropolitan 
identify and develop cost recovery options that will 
provide a long-term revenue source to fund the capital 
and operating cost of the project and also supported 
Metropolitan in developing a revised business model.  
John has led financial assessment and cost recovery 
surveys to help identify revenue recovery alternatives for 
the project. 

FINANCIAL AND RATE PLANNING, CITY OF 
COLUMBUS, OH; Lead Financial. The City is in the process 
of planning and designing a new 48 MGD water plant and 
transmission pipeline that will be constructed at a cost 
of over $2.1 billion to help serve the City’s nearly three 
million customers.  John led efforts to prepare a financial 
plan for the City’s water plant project and for its other 
water system capital needs.  In addition, he completed a 
detailed cost-of-service evaluation to determine the cost 
responsibility of the City’s customers, and helped the City 

modify its rate structure. The rate structure evaluation was 
completed to identify water and sewer rate structures that 
were closely aligned with the cost of providing service and 
developing rate formulas for the city’s future use. John 
also led efforts to complete the City’s affordability analysis 
to support implementation of a financially sustainable and 
affordable financial and rate plan.  Based on the results of 
this study, he assisted the City in implementing a customer 
assistance program.   John has presented study results 
to city staff, city council, and other stakeholders using 
interactive financial modeling tools that were developed 
for the client. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS SUPPORT, METROPOLITAN 
WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF GREATER 
CHICAGO; Lead Financial Analyst. John served as the 
lead financial analyst in completing comprehensive 
financial, economic, and environmental analyses of 
potential effluent disinfection at the District’s three largest 
water reclamation plants. Developed an economic and 
affordability model and completed an analysis of the 
impact of funding projects needed to meet the effluent 
disinfection requirements. Assessed the ability to fund 
and finance the District’s entire capital program, assessed 
the impact on customer cost of service, and assessed 
customers’ ability to pay for the proposed improvements. 
Presented written and oral testimony of evaluation results 
before the Illinois Pollution Control Board.

TRANSACTION DUE DILIGENCE, LEHIGH COUNTY 
AUTHORITY, PA; Lead Financial. John provided technical 
and financial due diligence services for the Lehigh 
County Authority (Authority) to support the issuance of 
revenue bonds to fund the up-front concession payment 
for the utility assets associated with the concession 
agreement with the City of Allentown, PA. Reviewed and 
evaluated financial projections and cash flow forecasts, 
evaluated upside and downside financial scenarios, 
supported organizational due diligence, system condition 
assessment, and provided bond feasibility opinions 
related to the transaction. Identified key risk factors for 
consideration during the negotiation process. Developed a 
financial feasibility report to assist the Authority in issuing 
$300 million in debt to finance the concession transaction. 
Continue to work with the Authority to optimize revenues 
and costs under the concession agreement.

 
                                                121 of 131



|   42

Gregg has dedicated much of his career to Alternative Contracting Methods (ACMs), 
including award winning programmatic use of Construction Manager/General Contractor 
(CM/GC) contracting for local and tribal agencies. He is a national expert on CM/GC and 
Project Bundling and his experience includes serving as co-author for NCHRP Report 787, 
Guide for Design Management on Design-Build and CM/GC Projects and presenting on 
CM/GC at national conferences. 

In addition to his Consor project portfolio, Gregg served as the Assistant Public 
Works Administrator for Osceola County, Florida from August 2008 to May 2010, where 
he assisted in developing one of the most progressive CM/GC road-building programs 
in the United States, increasing production by more than 1,000% and decreasing costs 
by 30% to 40%. Gregg played a lead role on a team that implemented and administered 
this successful program, for which the Public Works Administrator was recognized as 
one of “ENR’s 25 Top Newsmakers of 2009.” The team was also featured in Public Works 
Magazine, Construction Today, and ENR Magazine in 2009.

Why Gregg: 
• Track record of success building and leading teams to exceptional results
• Proven leadership on multiple complex projects and programs nationwide
• Nationally recognized SME for alternative contracting and strategic project bundling
• Co-founder of the Strategic Project Delivery Institute (SPDI)

Experience:
29 years

Education:
Bachelor of Science, Civil 
Engineering, University of 
Central Florida

Certifications:
• Professional Engineer 

(Civil) - AR, MO, NE, OK, 
TX

Key Expertise:
• Alternative Contracting

• Project Bundling

• Strategic Planning

• Team Building

• Strategic Communication

• Facilitation

• Training

Subject Matter Expertise:
• Co-author, NCHRP Report 

787, Guide for Design 
Management on Design-
Build and CM/GC Projects

HUALAPAI PROJECT SUITE PROGRAM, HUALAPAI TRIBE, AZ; Design Manager. 
Consor currently serves as the design manager for the Hualapai Tribe’s innovative project 
bundle, which is being delivered with CM/GC. The Hualapai Infrastructure Program 
is a transformational bundle of more than 30 projects that will be rapidly delivered 
to enhance the quality of life for all Hualapai and preserve their heritage for future 
generations. It includes projects for water, transportation, community recreation, and 
tribal facilities, as well as capacity building/planning, operations, and maintenance. In 
his role as Design Manager, Gregg is responsible for and leads all design activities for the 
program and facilitates weekly program and project specific production meetings for the 
team. He fosters collaboration between the design team, the owner, the construction 
manager, and the independent cost estimator

CM/GC DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, PUEBLO OF ACOMA, NEW 
MEXICO; Consultant Project Leader and Design Project Manager. Consor served as the 
lead engineer for a CM/GC delivery for a program of projects for the Pueblo of Acoma 
in New Mexico. This collaborative approach includes the owner, designer, construction 
manager, and independent cost estimator, all of whom are engaged in the project 
from conceptual design to ribbon cutting. As the first-ever application to a program of 
projects, the managing team also included members of FHWA, New Mexico DOT, and 
Bureau of Indian Affairs. The results are innovative solutions to accelerate construction 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE

GREGG HOSTETLER, PE
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

 
                                                122 of 131



|   43

GREGG HOSTETLER, PE | Professional Engineering (continued)

and deliver projects significantly under budget while 
enhancing quality and long-term sustainability. Due to the 
collaboration and innovation brought forward during the 
completion of the nine project, the team saved enough 
funds across the program to incorporate an additional 
project to the suite.

CM/GC SAFETY AND ENHANCEMENT PROJECTS, 
PAWNEE NATION, OKLAHOMA; Consultant Project 
Leader And Design Project Manager. In partnership 
with the Pawnee Nation, a construction manager, 
and an independent cost estimator, Consor provided 
engineering design for 13 bundled projects utilizing the 
CM/GC contracting method for expedited delivery and 
cost-savings. This program represents the first successful 
bundling of both horizontal and vertical construction 
projects under CM/GC contracting, with 13 projects 
including safety improvements, realignment, and/or 
surfacing for 1st Street and two Morris Road corridors, 
the Green Bridge replacement, fog sealing and striping, 
lighting on Catlett Road, directional signage, campground 
(including dance arbor) revitalization with “fit trail”, two 
building roof replacements, building demolition, a porch 
addition, and park expansion. 

CM/GC DELIVERY PROJECTS; OSCEOLA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; Assistant Public Works Administrator. Gregg 
served as the Assistant Public Works Administrator 
for Osceola County, Florida from August 2008 to May 
2010, where he assisted in developing one of the most 
progressive CM/GC road-building programs in the United 
States, increasing production by more than 1,000% and 
decreasing costs by 30% to 40%. Gregg played a lead 
role on a team that implemented and administered 
this successful program, for which the Public Works 
Administrator was recognized as one of “ENR’s 25 Top 
Newsmakers of 2009.” The team was also featured in 
Public Works Magazine, Construction Today, and ENR 
Magazine in 2009. Gregg was responsible for overseeing 
the design of the eight CM/GC delivery projects while 
working at Osceola County.

ASTORIA BRIDGE EMERGENCY REPAIR, 
STRENGTHENING, AND REPLACEMENT; SNAKE RIVER 
SPORTING CLUB, WY; Owner’s Advisor and Design 
Manager. In June of 2021, Consor was contacted by the 
Snake River Sporting Club (Jackson, WY), about an over 
height truck impacting and damaging primary structural 
members on one of two 1920s era truss spans on a bridge 
at the entrance to the sporting club. Consor immediately 
mobilized a team to assess the damage and was then 

contracted to develop a repair strategy. Recognizing 
the urgent nature of the repairs and the relatively short 
construction window due to impending winter weather, 
Gregg proposed utilizing the alternative contracting 
method known as Construction Manager/General 
Contractor (CM/GC). The CM/GC method allowed the 
owner to immediately hire a contractor to join the team to 
provide valuable input into the repair strategy during pre-
construction. The team successfully repaired the bridge 
utilizing a combination of heat straightening methods 
and in-kind member replacement, while meeting the 
aggressive schedule requirements of the owner. Following 
the emergency repairs, the same team performed 
additional truss member strengthening to address some 
capacity issues identified during the load rating analysis. 
In November 2022, this same bridge was hit again by 
an over height truck, causing similar but more severe 
damage to the same members damaged by the previous 
impact. The bridge was immediately closed. Consor was 
then contacted and mobilized to perform an emergency 
inspection, followed by another by a temporary repair 
that allowed the Sporting Club to open the bridge with 
a 5-ton posting restriction. The same team completed 
these repairs and the immediately started evaluating 
options to replace the compromised bridge. Utilizing 
CM/GC, the team overcame significant environmental 
challenges, geotechnical challenges, and weather-related 
challenges to rapidly design and construct a new bridge 
with a signature pony truss span. The team started the 
design and environmental compliance/NEPA process in 
the summer of 2023 and had the bridge open to traffic by 
November of 2024.

 
                                                123 of 131



6505 Waterford District Drive,  
Suite 470

Miami, FL 33126
www.consoreng.com

 
                                                124 of 131



R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 4 | 

Resolution #:  R-42-25 
Account:  01-60-628000 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

        RCB    RCB  CAP   PDM 

Date: 05/08/20253 

Description:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Task Orders Under a 
Master Contract with Arcadis USA, Inc. to Perform a Gap Analysis of 
AWIA Required Documentation 

Agenda Section:    Engineering & Construction 

Originating Department:    Administration 

In accordance with America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) of 2018, in 2020 The Commission 
updated its Vulnerability Assessment (VA), developed a Risk and Resiliency Assessment (RRA), updated 
the Emergency Response Plan (ERP), and a Crisis Communication Plan (CCP) with the assistance of a 
consultant, culminating in providing certification of these documents having been completed to the 
EPA.  With the renewal and recertification deadline of these documents approaching in September of 
2025, Staff is requesting the 2020 content be reviewed by a Contract Consultant to determine if 
significant regulatory revisions are necessary.  We expect that the modification to RRA, ERP and CCP 
should be minor in nature and the VA may remain largely valid as is.  Nonetheless, it is important that 
a thorough review be performed to ensure full compliance, and that any new or updated standards or 
requirements are properly addressed in the submitted document. 

Staff approached several of the Commission’s Contract Consultants to receive proposals to perform a 
gap analysis.  After discussions, Staff is confident the services of Arcadis USA, Inc. can perform a 
complete gap analysis at an estimated cost of $20,000.  For reference purposes, the 2020 effort to 
develop the original documents was at a cost to the Commission of $199,000. 

Recommended Motion:  

To adopt R-42-25 for the Gap Analysis to the existing Risk and Resilience Assessment, Emergency 
Response Plan and the Crisis Communication Plan by Arcadis USA, Inc., at an estimated cost of 
$20,000. 

125 of 131



| 2 of 4 | 

 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-42-25 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND RATIFYING 
CERTAIN TASK ORDERS UNDER A MASTER CONTRACT WITH ARCADIS USA, INC. 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 

et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission entered into a contract with Arcadis USA, Inc. (the Consultant) to 

provide, from time to time, professional engineering services in connection with the design and 

construction of extensions and improvements to the Waterworks System and other projects of the 

Commission (the "Master Contract"); and 

WHEREAS, the Master Contract sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which the 

Commission will obtain from time to time, and the Consultant will provide from time to time, professional 

engineering services for such discrete projects as are delineated and described in Task Orders to be 

approved by the Commission and the Consultant; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The Task Order shall be and hereby are approved and, if already issued, ratified 

because the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission has determined, based upon the 

representations of staff and Consultant, that the circumstances said to necessitate the Task Orders were 

not reasonably foreseeable at the time the Master Contract was signed, the Task Orders are germane to 

the Master Contract as signed, and/or the Task Orders are in the best interest of the DuPage Water 

Commission and authorized by law. 

  

 
                                                126 of 131



| 3 of 4 | 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

ADOPTED THIS ___ DAY OF _____________________, 2025. 

________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2025/R-42-25.docx 

Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Cuzzone, N. 

Fennell, J. 

Greaney, S. 

Honig, A. 

Noonan, T. 

Novotny, D. 

Pruyn, J. 

Romano, K. 

Russo, D. 

Saverino, F. 

Suess, P. 

Van Vooren, D. 

Zay, J. 

 
                                                127 of 131



| 4 of 4 | 

EXHIBIT 1 

Arcadis USA, Inc. Proposal 

 
                                                128 of 131



 
                                                129 of 131



 

www.arcadis.com                                                   Review of the Risk & Resiliency Assessment, Emergency Response Plan, & Crisis Communications Plan | 2 

2. Scope 

Task - Data Collection and Gap Analysis (Duration - 4 Weeks) 

Arcadis will facilitate a one-hour project Kickoff Meeting with DWC to review project scope, schedule, objectives, and  
data collection needs. A list of project data collection and information needs will be provided to DWC prior to the  
Kickoff meeting. 

To accomplish the Data Collection portion of this task, our team will work with DWC staff to obtain information for the 
assessment. Important documents and information requested will include the following, as available: 

 Previous vulnerability and/or risk and resilience assessments. 

 System maps, facility information, and flow diagrams. 

 Water system master plan. 

 Chemical inventory, as applicable to facilities. 

 Security system information, policies, and procedures. 

 Information or plans that cover alternate water sources, source water assessments, emergency backup power, 
detection strategies, and mitigation measures.  

 Existing emergency response plans, facility specific response procedures and plans, hazard specific procedures, 
Continuity of Operations Plan(s)/Business Continuity Plan(s), and recovery plans. 

 Emergency response planning information including contact information (internal and external), organizational charts, 
mutual aid agreements, resources and equipment, communication protocols, training and exercise information. 

 Emergency procurement process. 

 IT Business Continuity Plans/Disaster Recovery Plans, cybersecurity policies and procedures. 

Arcadis will conduct a thorough Gap Analysis of DWC’s compliance with the RRA and ERP requirements as outlined in 
AWIA and USEPA guidance. Our team will gather data on DWC’s system and the latest RRA, along with the latest water 
system ERP, to serve as the foundation for the gap analysis. Additionally, Arcadis will review DWC’s current documents, 
plans, policies, and procedures. We will request further materials from DWC as needed to complete this analysis. To 
ensure adherence to the regulatory schedule, it is recommended that the gap analysis be expedited. Arcadis will utilize our 
gap analysis tool, which has been successfully applied to over a dozen water utilities, and tailor it specifically to DWC to 
maximize efficiency and meet the September 30, 2025, deadline. 

In support of the Gap Analysis, Arcadis will reference the following regulatory requirements and sector best practice 
methodologies and guidance documents in our approach:  

 Section 2013 of AWIA, promulgated in 84 FR 11536.  

 American Water Works Association (AWWA) Risk and Resilience Management of Water and Wastewater Systems 
(AWWA J100-21) 

 U.S. EPA’s Water Cybersecurity Assessment Tool (WCAT)  

 AWWA/American National Standards Institute (ANSI) G-430-14: Security Practices for Operation and Management  

 AWWA/ANSI G440-17: Emergency Preparedness Practices 

 AWWA G300-14: Source Water Protection  

 AWWA M19: Emergency Planning for Water and Wastewater Utilities, 5th Edition, Manual for Water Supply  
Practices, 2018  

 United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), Office of Water, Community Water System, Emergency 
Response Plan, Template and Instructions, July 2019 

Our team will facilitate a 1.5-hour virtual meeting with DWC to review the results of the gap analysis. This task is estimated 
to be completed within one month of Notice to Proceed. 

 
                                                130 of 131



 
                                                131 of 131


	Eng2505.pdf
	ENG250320.pdf
	Status of Operations - April 2025.pdf
	May Status Report - DWC WaterLink (2025).pdf
	R-41-25 Source Water Tech Adv.pdf
	R-42-25 ERP Gap Analysis.pdf



